
All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. 
Appointment of Supervisor Pro Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary.  

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:  
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  
TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 

September 3, 2019 6:00 pm 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS

3. ROLL CALL

4. PRESENTATION

A. Lifesaving Recognition

B. Okemos Solar Car Competition

C. 2020 Township Budget Presentation

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS*

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

9. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Communications

B. Minutes-August 8, 2019 Regular Meeting

C. Bills

D. Quarterly Treasurer’s Report

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY

11. HEARINGS (CANARY)

A. 2020 Township Budget

12. ACTION ITEMS (PINK)

A. Amendment to Chapter 66 Tax Exemption – PILOT Introduction

B. Bond Authorizing Resolution

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS (ORCHID)

A. Special Use Permit #19121 Woodward Way

B. 2020 Township Budget

C. Franchise and PEG Fees

D. Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes)

14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

16. CLOSED SESSION

A. Consider a Confidential Written Legal Opinion Regarding an Employment Severance Agreement

B. Strategy Session/Update Concerning the Negotiation of Pending Collective Bargaining

Agreements

17. ADJOURNMENT



9A 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

RECIEVED BOARD 
COMMUNICATIONS 
September 3, 2019 

BOARD INFORMATION 
(BI)  



1

Riley Millard

From: Meridian Township, MI <meridian-mi@enotify.visioninternet.com>
Sent: Friday, August 2, 2019 3:49 PM
To: Board
Subject: Okemos Rd bridge replacement

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website. 
 
Site Visitor Name: Dan Garijo 
Site Visitor Email: dgarijo@comcast.net  
 
I am writing this to offer a possible alternative to funding the Okemos Rd. bridge replacement, one which would 
allow an “ideal” design and construction without the need for budgetary constraints. The latest trend in road 
funding is a private partnership between the governmental owner and a private contractor. The contractor would 
fund the project initially and be responsible for maintenance of the project for a set number of years. The 
governmental owner would then make yearly payments to the contractor for the duration of the contract. In this 
way the owner does not have to fund the entire project up front and has the benefit of having known quantity 
payments each year. Such a partnership between the township/county and a private contractor would allow for 
the optimal design of the replacement spans without the need for cutting services/amenities due to funding. 
Ideally this would allow the township to move forward with planning based on current revenue projections and 
without the need for another bond issue.  
Thank you for your time.  
Dan Garijo 



1

Riley Millard

From: Zhiheng Bi <zhbi2000@yahoo.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 4, 2019 9:19 PM
To: Board
Subject: Oppose the rezoning #19060

Dear Meridian Township Board: 
 

We are writing to strongly oppose the rezoning #19060 proposed by Bennett Road Holding LLC. Because the rezoning is 
requesting a RAA zoning, it will result in a higher density, not lower density of housing development in the area proposed. 
In our opinion, a higher density housing development is an OVER DEVELOPMENT for this area which should be avoided. 
Because: 

        It will not be consistent with the township’s master plan 

        It will have a negative impact on the environment, i.e. wetland and wildlife 

        It will decrease the property value for the neighboring communities 

        It will make the area less attractive and thus will not benefit the county/township  
       economically and environmentally in the long term 

We urge you to sincerely consider our concerns about the rezoning #19060 (Bennett Road Holding LLC).        

 
Sincerely, 

Zhiheng Bi & Xiamei Xu 

2694 Sophiea Pkwy 

Okemos, MI 48864 

517-203-0922 

Zhbi2000@yahoo.com 
 



1

Riley Millard

From: Teri Thornburg <thornburg913@hotmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 4, 2019 11:12 PM
To: Board
Subject: Mayberry Rezoning Request

Please deny the request for rezoning.  Highland Terrace, the street on which I live, goes north off Bennett 
Road.  Because of the sidewalk situation here, the only time I feel safe walking across the street to get to a 
sidewalk is before 7:15 am, and that is with traffic as it exists now.  That will be worse when the new homes 
are built....but to build even more homes with more traffic is unacceptable. 
 
I understand progress; I understand that this company wants to make a profit on the land which they've 
purchased to build homes and that is entirely reasonable...but this seems like bait and switch to me.  You have 
approved the zoning as it exists now.  Mayberry now wants to build MORE homes, and I sincerely hope you 
find that unacceptable as I do. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Teri Thornburg 
4044 Highland Terrace 
Okemos 



1

Riley Millard

From: mindy@northwestbroadcasting.com
Sent: Monday, August 5, 2019 9:22 AM
To: Board
Subject: Mayberry Rezoning Request #19060

From Richard and Mindy Kraus residing at 4325 Aztec Way in Sundance Estates.  
 
Resubmitting our concerns and, again, advising that we are against ANY development proposed by the above mentioned 
developer for the following reasons:   

1. Lack of transparency – no explanation for rezoning request presented by BRHC or the Township. 
2. Wetland disturbance – the NATURAL habitat cannot be replaced by a man‐made wetlands at the discretion of 

the developer and convenience of the development.  Disruption of the natural underlying flow cannot be 
changed no matter!   

3. Flora and Fauna – displacement of the diverse wildlife that rely on the wetlands.    
4. Traffic – the infrastructure is already antiquated and unable to accommodate current vehicle count.  Our 

subdivision roadway is already deteriorated to the point of gravel in spots and no effort to repair is made other 
than small patching that holds for about six months.  

5. Sidewalks – the Township does not maintain the dilapidated, disconnected pathways in place.   
6. Overdevelopment – the area will be unable to accommodate the increased population and place stress on local 

school systems, power supplies, police enforcement and fire protection.   
7. Board and Planning Commission Review – would like a poll on board members for and against this development 

and reasoning.  
8. Lack of transparency – impacting local real estate values. 

 
Additionally, we never received notice on the proposed vote for additional millage for funding road construction or 
which roads will be impacted/resurfaced.  More lack of transparency by the township, which will be recognized during 
the next election.  

 
We are submitting this in lieu of attendance to the Meeting being held on Thursday August 8th 2019 at 6:00p and wish 
for our comments to be considered during discussions.  
 
Mindy D. Kraus 
NBI Holdings, LLC 
2111 University Park Dr., Suite 650 
Okemos, MI  48864 
 
Voice: 517.347.4141 
Fax: 517.347.4675 
mindy@northwestbroadcasting.com 
 
NORTHWEST BROADCASTING, LP 
Broadcasting Communications, LLC 
Mountain Broadcasting, LLC 
Bristlecone Broadcasting, LLC 
Stainless Broadcasting, LLC 
Syracuse Broadcasting, Inc. 
BRYSON HOLDINGS, LLC 
Idaho Broadcast Partners, LLC 
Cala Broadcast Partners, LLC 
Blackhawk Broadcasting, LLC 



2

Lost Coast Broadcasting, LLC 
Redwood Television Partners, LLC 

The information transmitted in this message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may 
contain proprietary, confidential and/or privileged material.  You are hereby notified that any retransmission, 
dissemination, distribution, reproduction or other use of the contents of this message is prohibited.  This includes, but is 
not limited to, publicly posting the contents of this message to a social media platform.  If you received this message in 
error, please contact the sender and delete the message and any attachments without printing, copying or further 
disseminating it. 

 
 



1

Riley Millard

From: Meridian Township, MI [mailto:meridian-mi@enotify.visioninternet.com] 
Sent: Sunday, August 04, 2019 7:46 PM 
To: Peter Menser 
Subject: Please deny rezoning request #19060 (Bennett Road Holding LLC) 

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website. 

Site Visitor Name: Yue Cui 
Site Visitor Email: cuiyue.msu@gmail.com 

Dear planner and committee members, 

Rezoning request #19060 is not a new matter/application. The applicant redrawn / revised many times when the 
people from Meridian Township raised many concerns that the development will harm the environment, nearby 
neighbors' safety and quality of life, as well as the potential decreasing their home value and increasing traffic 
congestions. 

The applicant didn't take these concerns seriously. For example, as the resident indicated in the public hearing, 
their traffic count estimate has simple math errors that rarely made by professionals. In the new application, the 
applicant didn't have any solid reasons to rezone the proposed land. 

The land is in an environmental sensitive area, which is not only impact the surrounding houses, it also impact 
the upper stream (College Field) and all down stream areas to Red Cedar River regions. The proposal doesn't 
match the west side of the land as well as the overall master plan. It might also increase the dredging mills in 
the property tax and home insurance. A environment impact study should be provide by the applicant to answer 
the residents' concerns. 

The proposed land is not only the housing stock in Okemos. It has provided housing opportunities with current 
zone. Providing housing opportunities is not a reason to rezone the land. 

Please consider to deny the application. 

Yue Cui 
2687 Sophiea PKWY, Okemos 



1

Riley Millard

From: Lynne Page <page.okemos@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 5, 2019 2:48 PM
To: Board; Planning Commision (DG)
Subject: Rezoning #19060 Bennett Road Holdings LLC-Agenda Item 13-A

To the Meridian Township Board and Planning Commission: 
 
I have several concerns regarding the documents provided for Agenda Item 13-A (Rezoning #19060 Bennett 
Road Holdings LLC) included in the August 8, 2019 Township Board meeting packet posted on the Township 
website on Friday, August 2, 2019. 
 
1. Mayberry Homes' original Rezoning Application for this property (#18120) was submitted on 9/27/18. The 
Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on this application on 10/22/18. Mayberry submitted an amended 
application for this property on 4/16/19 (#19060). The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on this 
application on 6/10/19. Mayberry submitted a further amendment to its Rezoning Application on 6/19/19, 
subsequent to the 6/10/19 Public Hearing. On 7/22/19, the Planning Commission voted to recommend denial of 
Mayberry's Rezoning Application. 
 
2. The Township Board meeting packet for 8/8/19 contains a new Rezoning Application signed by Mayberry on 
7/23/19. Every page of the application is different than that of all the previous rezoning applications. Unlike 
Mayberry's previous Rezoning Applications, there is no dated receipt stamp or signed acknowledgement by 
Meridian Township for this application. 
 
3. According Principal Planner Peter Menser, the new application is an "update" and does not constitute a new 
or amended application. Per Mr. Menser, the previous applications dated 4/16/19 6/19/19 were 
"modification(s)". These terms are not defined in Meridian Township's Code of Ordinances, and are merely 
semantics which undermine accountability, transparency and consistency in the application review process. 
Despite incurring additional staff time for the review of each new rezoning application, Mayberry was charged 
only a single application fee, remitted in 2018.  
 
4. Mr. Menser's staff memo dated 8/1/19 (included in the Township Board's meeting packet for 8/8/19) 
regarding this Rezoning Application is addressed to the Planning Commission. Has this revised application 
been sent back to the Planning Commission for review? 
 
Allowing multiple, significant revisions of a Rezoning Application without holding a new Public Hearing for 
each change or imposing additional application fees sets a dangerous new precedent for our Township and its 
Boards and Commissions. Please take immediate action to develop a fair, consistent, democratic process. 
 
Sincerely, 
Lynne Page 
3912 Raleigh Drive 
Okemos, MI  48864 



1

Riley Millard

From: Patrick Murphy <patrickjohnmurphy1@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 5, 2019 3:56 PM
To: Board
Subject: Rezoning 19060 opposition

Dear Meridian Township Board, 
 

The dangers of the rezoning request (#19060) have been reflected publicly thus 
far in hundreds of signatures, approximately 4 hours of verbal opposition at 
planning commission meetings, and over 100 letters written. Behind all of that 
are the countless private hours of internal dialogue, personal anxiety, dinner 
table conversations, and neighborhood interactions. Publicly and privately, we 
have shared our expertise and concerns as mothers, fathers, partners, 
professionals, and retirees. We are active organized citizens who are invested 
in our neighborhood, and we are privileged to engage in the democratic 
processes that allow our values and ideas to shape our personal and collective 
future.  
 

It is ironic that Mayberry Homes, to present, has failed to meaningfully engage 
or respond to the concerns of the very community they purport to develop. To 
be honest, it feels a pained affront to our individual and collective efforts, as 
well as the democratic process, when on July 23rd (the day after the Planning 
Commission meeting where so many of us attended and spoke publicly) 
Mayberry Homes submitted significant amendments to their application. The 
amended application was not reviewed by the Planning Commission, voted on 
by the Planning Commission, or been exposed for public comment. 
 

My opposition to the rezoning request remains-regardless of which iteration of 
the application is being considered. The current zoning allows for considerable 
development at a diversity of price points . A change in zoning holds too great 
a risk of drainage issues, flooding, and school overcrowding (in particular as 
schools likely plan future enrollment based on development within existing 
zoning designations, not potential changes to zoning). And ultimately, there is 
too great a risk to the safety of our children brought on by increased traffic on 



2

Sophiea Parkway and the likelihood that it will become a thruway. I ask the 
committee to reject the rezoning application.  
 

Sincerely, 
 

Patrick Murphy, Ed.S. 
2589 Sophiea Parkway  
Okemos, MI 

48864 



1

Riley Millard

From: New, Jennifer <jnew@msu.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2019 9:38 AM
To: Board
Subject: Community Member Against Rezoning Application

Dear Meridian Township Board,  
 
I am writing to share my strong opposition to rezoning request #19060 (Bennett Road Holding LLC) with the recent 
amendments. As a community member and a resident of the Champion Woods subdivision I have several concerns 
about their request to rezone to RAA. First, the land can be zoned as is, fitting better into the intentional land usage in 
the surrounding community. Our community is one that places strong value on the safety of its residents as well as on 
ethical and thoughtful environmental usage.  This rezoning request, would counter these values.  
 
First, traffic will increase in the area, particularly on Sophiea Parkway if the road is extended. This will impact the safety 
of our community, including my two young children, Milo (age 5) and Eloise (age 2). The traffic would drive right by our 
neighborhood playground. Children would be less safe while playing in their yards and riding their bikes to school or in 
our neighborhood. We purchased our home in 2017. Champion Woods was the only neighborhood we considered, in 
part due to the quality of life that we felt living in the neighborhood would bring to our children. Our house sits directly 
across from the playground and on the corner of Sophiea and Benca Circle. An increase in traffic (in our fully complete 
neighborhood) would make me concerned about the safety of my children and when they are older, the ability to let 
them play outside with their neighborhood friends. This is not the childhood that I want for my children. 
 
Second, the environmental impact of this change cannot be ignored.  A higher density certainly increases this impact. 
The area in question is located adjacent to the Southwest Meridian Upland Preserve, which you purchased in 2010 to 
preserve the area from development. Increasing the density will lead to less protection for this wildlife corridor. This 
higher density means increased storm water runoff. This higher density likely means upstream pooling and flooding, 
thereby decreasing usable space in our yards. In a time where our larger government is not protecting the environment 
as it should be, it is up the local communities and individuals to do so and I hope that you keep this at the forefront of 
your minds when you are choosing how to vote on this issue, which otherwise very much seems to be about profit for a 
developer. 
 
The financial impact of this change to already established residents should not be ignored either. This rezoning allows 
for a potential change in floodways/floodplains, which would require extra insurance for many current residents. Just as 
concerning is the likely impact on our property values due to the comparables used in real estate assessments, the 
possible increase in traffic on Sophiea Parkway, etc. Decreasing the property values of surrounding neighborhoods is 
harmful to both residents and the township and should not be overlooked. 
 
Additionally, throughout the process of this (and the previous) rezoning request, we have yet to see anyone other than 
the developer stand in favor of rezoning. However, nearly 80 individuals have spoken against the change at planning 
commission meetings, with many more sending individual letters, signing neighborhood letters, or sitting in opposition 
at the commission meetings without speaking. It seems clear that to the developer the goal is increased profit, while the 
surrounding community is able to see the negative implications that would come from this change in zoning. As it is 
currently zoned, the new subdivision would already allow for more units than Champion Woods, the Woods of Heron 
Creek, and College Fields Northpointe combined. 
 
If you are representing our community values, why would you allow a developer to squeeze as many homes as possible 
into an area simply for profit? I ask you to follow the Planning Commission’s recommendation and the concerns of so 



2

many members in our community and to vote no on rezoning. Please hold Bennett Road Holding LLC accountable to the 
intentional land usage vision of our township. 
 
Thank you, 
Jennifer New 
4139 Benca Circle 
 
 
Jennifer R. New 
Assistant Director of Academic & Student Affairs 
Coordinator of Study Abroad Initiatives 
Michigan State University 
College of Communication Arts & Sciences 
Office of Academic & Student Affairs 
404 Wilson Road, Room 189 
East Lansing, MI 48824 
Phone:  517.355.8988  
Fax: 517.355.3346 
jnew@msu.edu 
 
Schedule an Advising Appointment at: https://msu.campus.eab.com/ 
 



1

Riley Millard

From: Dean Bolton <bolton2@comcast.net>
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 3:17 PM
To: mccoleda@msu.edu; Board
Cc: Hood
Subject: RE: School District Stance on Development

Dear Mr. McCole, 
 
The Okemos Board of Education had the opportunity to discuss your letter at our August 6, 2019 meeting and 
directed me to respond to you and copy the Meridian Township Board. I appreciate the opportunity to clarify 
the statements you referenced. 
 
The board’s role is to establish policies that improve public education. Matters such as zoning and 
development are not within the scope of the powers and responsibilities of the board and the board has not 
and will not take a position on this specific development proposal or development in general. 
 
As a district that is committed to equity and inclusion, we welcome any and all students who enroll in our 
district. My response to Supervisor Styka communicated the school board’s actions to accommodate 
enrollment growth in general, no matter the source, and did not state a position on any specific development 
proposal or development in general.  
 
Dean Bolton, President 
Board of Education 
Okemos Public Schools 
 
bolton2@comcast.net 
517‐896‐4436 
 

 
From: McCole, Daniel <mccoleda@msu.edu> 
Sent: Monday, August 5, 2019 3:13 PM 
To: board@okemosk12.net <board@okemosk12.net> 
Subject: School District Stance on Development  
  
School Board, 
  
As you may know, a parcel of land in Okemos (just west of Bennet Woods Elementary/Chamption Woods/The woods of 
Heron Creek, north of Bennett Road and East of the northern part of College Fields) will likely be developed soon.  The 
developer (Mayberry Homes) has been trying for almost a year to change the zoning of the land to make it more 
dense.  Their latest request would increase the number of units that could be developed on that land from 177 to 
255.  A large number of Okemos residents (myself included) oppose to this rezoning request. 
  
Although the Planning Commission recently voted against the rezoning request, their vote is advisory and the question 
now goes to the Meridian Township Board.  In preparation for the Township Board’s consideration, Mayberry has 
submitted an amended application (attached).  As you can see, the application contains a memo from School Board 
President Dean Bolton to Township Supervisor Ron Styka, and in two different places on the application, Mayberry 
Homes insinuates that the Okemos school district is supportive of their application.  In section A6, the application states 



2

“The Okemos School District has expressed support for new development, and is prepared for increased enrollment.”  In 
Section B4, the application states, “The school district is in support of future development.”  It also refers to the memo 
from Board President Bolton, which to my read, does not state support for development, but seems to be intentionally 
neutral. 
  
Given that Mayberry is claiming school district’s support for development and refers to the memo from Dean Bolton, I 
wonder if the school board could please clarify the school districts position on supporting this specific application and 
development in general. 
  
Thank you very much. 
  
‐Dan McCole 
  
  
 



1

Riley Millard

From: Manoj Zutshi <manojer@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 9:00 PM
To: Board
Subject: Rezoning 19060

Dear Meridian Township Board, 
 
I live in Champion woods neighborhood and am writing to express my deep concerns about the above mentioned 
rezoning application as I fear safety, water encroachment and environmental degradation. I am sure you would have 
detailed reasons from fellow neighbors which I and my family share. We have been going through this process for 
months now and are yet to hear genuine reasons for rezoning from the applicant. It appears as a circumvented process 
aimed at maximizing profits with utter disregard to public safety and other concerns from adjoining neighborhoods. 
Even the planning commission has vehemently opposed the previous applications multiple times recognizing the 
demerits and insufficient fulfillment of application requirements, most important being why current zoning is not 
enough. 
 
I strongly oppose the rezoning for the reasons above and request the board to deny this application. 
 
Thank you for your diligence in enforcing due process and addressing people’s concerns. 
 
Smriti and Manoj Zutshi 
2559 Sophiea Pkwy 
Okemos MI 48864 
Ph: 517‐507‐0145 
 
 



1

Riley Millard

From: Fabio Casagrande [mailto:fabiocasagrande61@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, August 08, 2019 8:58 AM 
To: Planning Commision (DG) <planningcommission@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Re: Champion Woods Opposition to Rezoning 

Hello 
Again for another meeting tonight 
No change, we stay firm in our position of complete opposition to this relentless charge to make money against 
the will of the community 
I loved my family to Okemos I can move it out if things change 
We signed again the petition, no changes but we still signed 
We are the Casagrande 
2672 LaForet Circle, Okemos 48864 
We are against the rezoning 
Thank you 

On Mon, Jun 10, 2019 at 10:31 AM Fabio Casagrande <fabiocasagrande61@gmail.com> wrote: 

Hello my Name is Fabio Casagrande  
With my wife Terri, two boys and one daughter we live at 
2672 Laforet Circle, Okemos 48864 
I would like to notify you of our strong opposition to rezoning that would affect negatively our subdivision. 
One of the reason why I accepted the job at MSU when I was recruited is the school system for my boys and 
the area to live in 
I would consider to move away if any of the two conditions would not match our standards and expectations 
I plan to attend tonight meeting at 7pm 
My best regards 
Fabio Casagrande 



1

Riley Millard

From: Scott Hendrickson <hendrickson87@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2019 12:21 PM
To: Board
Subject: Mayberry Rezoning Request#19060

Good Afternoon Members of the Township Board, 
 
Let me start by saying that I speak only for myself, and what follows are not the opinions of the rest of the 
Planning Commission.  
 
I would like to request that you send Mayberry Rezoning Request #19060 back to the Planning Commission to 
be reconsidered. As you may know if you follow our meetings, we have spent a number of meetings devoted to 
this request and have had tremendous public involvement. After our public hearing, the applicant submitted an 
amended request (changing the future state zoning to RAA as opposed to RA) but did not submit any supporting 
materials to go along with it. I cannot speak for the rest of the Commission, but I personally felt that the 
applicant had made no case as to why the current zoning was inappropriate nor did they make a case as to why 
the new zoning was appropriate. Never during the 5 meetings that we considered this issue did the applicant 
answer any questions from the Planning Commission. Ultimately, the Commission ultimately voted to reject 
this rezoning request 6-2.  
 
Now, as the proposal is coming before your body, the applicant has added details that were not included in the 
previous proposal that might have impacted the decision-making of the Planning Commission. That is the first 
reason why I would request that you send this matter back to us for further consideration. 
 
Secondly, if the Planning Commission is to provide maximum value through our recommendations to the 
Board, we need to be providing those recommendations based on the same information that the applicants are 
providing to you. If you were to state that proposals that undergo changes will be sent back to the Planning 
Commission, you'd encourage applicants/developers to make sure that their ducks are in a row before coming to 
the Planning Commission, so that we can provide better recommendations on the applications that ultimately 
make their way to you.    
 
I understand that changes will be made to proposals in discussions with the Board, and I completely respect 
your position as the ultimate authority on these matters. The Planning Commission is making recommendations 
to you for a reason; you've entrusted us with acting as a vital gateway when we offer our thoughts on these 
proposals. I'm only seeking to make sure that we are offering input based on the proposals that make it in front 
of you, not a different version than what you're seeing in your packets. 
 
Thank you very much for your consideration! 
 
Scott Hendrickson 
Meridian Township Planning Commissioner  



1

Riley Millard

From: Wei Li <weidli2012@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, August 9, 2019 10:55 AM
To: Board; Planning Commision (DG)
Subject: Rezoning #19060 Mayberry Homes

Dear	Board	and	Planning	commission,	
		
I’m	upset	by	how	rezoning	#19060	is	being	handled	by	the	applicant	and	would	like	you	to	
consider	the	following	concerns.	
		
At	the	Aug	8,	2019	board	meeting	when	addressing	a	question	from	Treasurer	Deschaine	as	
to	why	the	applicant	submitted	a	blank	section	II	of	the	application	form	for	the	July	8,	2019	
planning	commission	meeting,	Bob	Schroeder,	the	Mayberry	owner	said	it’s	due	to	staffing	
issue	(11:18	of	the	discussion).			At	19:00	min,	Mark	Kieselbach,	the	Community	planning	&	
development	director,	said	that	the	applicant	wasn’t	given	any	time	to	update	the	
application	to	provide	answers	to	questions	on	the	rezoning	criteria.			
		
I	want	to	point	out	that	the	planning	commission	asked	the	applicant	to	address	the	criteria	
on	rezoning	to	RAA	at	the	June	24,	2019	meeting	and	the	applicant	had	FOUR	WEEKS	by	July	
22,	the	day	when	the	planning	commission	denied	the	application,	to	satisfy	the	request	from	
the	commission.		Why	did	the	applicant	submit	a	new	application	the	day	after	the	planning	
commission	voted	to	deny	the	request?		How	could	the	applicant	solve	the	staffing	issue	
overnight?		It	appears	to	me	the	applicant	tried	to	bypass	the	planning	commission	and	public	
review.		This	should	not	be	allowed	and	please	have	it	sent	back	to	the	planning	commission	
for	full	review.	
		
Also	there	is	an	error	on	the	application	form	submitted	on	7/23/2019.		It	says	the	applicants	
are	requesting	to	rezone	7	parcels	of	96.74	acres	in	total	from	RAAA	and	RR	to	RAA.		But	our	
understanding	is	that	partial	of	the	96.74	acres	is	already	zoned	RAA.		Could	you	please	have	
the	application	sent	back	to	the	applicant	for	corrections?		
		
		
		
Respectfully	yours,	
		
		
Wei	Li	



1

Riley Millard

From: Meridian Township, MI <meridian-mi@enotify.visioninternet.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 11, 2019 2:19 PM
To: Board
Subject: Bennett Rezoning Request

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website. 
 
Site Visitor Name: len schwartz 
Site Visitor Email: lenschwartz2000@yahoo.com  
 
I am a long time Meridian resident, and, though I have never attended any government meetings, I regularly 
watch Board of Trustee meetings. Though I live near the Bennet Road property, 
 
I do not have any position on the requested rezoning. HOWEVER, I do have strong feelings and opinions about 
the anticipated actions the Board seems to be taking. I believe it is essential for the Board to carefully and 
vigorously follow the established procedures regarding the Planning Commission and the appropriate steps for 
any applicant to follow. It is incombent on the Board to do so. For if the Board will not adhere to established 
procedures, why should any applicant? 
 
It would seem that this applicant wishes to bypass a serious review by the Planning Commission and deal 
directly with the Board. If you allow this to occur, and, mediation suggest that you will, you both seriously 
undercut the role and power of the Planning Commission, and, you encourage future applicant for anything, to 
ignore established procedures and deal directly with the Board. 
 
Regardless of the outcome of any mediation, it is incumbent on the Board to require the applicant to submit a 
NEW request to the Planning Commission, so that a formal review and public hearing on the proposal can take 
place. Though this may further delay any action, the applicant has only itself to blame for ignoring proper 
procedures. 



1

Riley Millard

From: Meridian Township, MI <meridian-mi@enotify.visioninternet.com>
Sent: Sunday, August 11, 2019 2:28 PM
To: Board
Subject: Camelback Bridge

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website. 
 
Site Visitor Name: len schwartz 
Site Visitor Email: lenschwartz2000@yahoo.com  
 
I was dismayed earlier this year to hear several Board members suggesting that the Camelback Bridge be 
preserved and ownership taken over by the Township. The bridge is narrow and falling apart. Forcing Meridian 
taxpayers to assume the cost of maintaining the bridge, and eventually removing it, would be a very poor 
decision.  
 
Sooner or later it will need to be removed which is likely to be a very costly endeavor. Far better to allow the 
County and State assume that burden and cost, then to force Meridian residents to pay for it. 
 
I am aware that some Board members seem to have a sentimental attachment to keeping the bridge. But frankly, 
having lived nearly four decades in Okemos, my only feeling for it, are the sooner it is gone, the happier I will 
be. 
 
If you insist on pursuing ownership, please, please, please either put the matter on a ballot, or at a minimum, do 
a serious survey to determine resident feeling. Frankly, I doubt anyone from Haslett would want their taxes 
going to such and effort, and, I would guess that most Okemos residents do not share the Board's sentimental 
feeling, at least not enough to want to see their taxes going to that purpose. This seems especially true as 
everyone's taxes are about to take a big leap for road repairs. 



1

Riley Millard

From: Carla Galligan <carlagalligan@gmail.com> on behalf of Carla Galligan 
<carlagall@comcast.net>

Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2019 11:07 AM
To: Ronald Styka
Cc: Board
Subject: Rezoning #19060 - Bennett Road Holdings

Dear Supervisor Styka : 
 
I spoke with Township Manager Frank Walsh yesterday regarding the Bennett Road Rezoning Neighborhood Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, August 19th.  In our conversation , Mr Walsh stated “ if the “mediation” isn’t successful , it may go to 
court”.  I assume that Mr. Walsh was referring to the potential for a lawsuit with Mayberry as the plaintiff and Meridian 
Township as the defendant if the subject rezoning application is denied.  Therefore, facilitating a quasi‐legal process, and 
calling it a “mediation” may be putting the township at risk. There is nothing in the township ordinances that defines this 
process. 
 
Many residents are concerned with the Township’s requirement for such “mediation” as part of the rezoning application 
approval process, since the current application contains no conditions and the applicant has not submitted any site/concept 
plan for consideration.  As an attorney , I am sure that you are aware that in a true “mediation”,  the mediator wouldn’t be 
one of the parties to the “mediation” process. 
 
Have you consulted with the Township's legal counsel regarding this unorthodox procedure?   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Carla A. Galligan 
4367 Aztec Way 



1

Riley Millard

From: Yingxin Zhou <zhou0824@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2019 7:13 AM
To: Frank Walsh
Cc: Board; Planning Commision (DG); <championwoodsokemos@gmail.com>
Subject: Rezoning #19060 yield plans and concept site plan
Attachments: Screen Shot 2019-08-26 at 6.44.50 PM.png

Hi,	Frank,	
		
Thank	you	for	the	update	on	the	facilitated	discussion	on	the	Hagadorn	&	Bennett	road	
development.		Could	you	please	ask	the	applicant	to	provide	the	board,	the	planning	
commission	and	all	other	related	parties	with	detailed	yield	plan	calculations?		Champion	
woods	subdivision	board	and	I	asked	for	it	on	Aug	11	and	Aug	16	respectively	but	we	haven’t	
got	such	info	yet.				
		
Per	the	application	form	submitted	on	July	23,	2019	(Please	see	the	attached	screenshot),	a	
preliminary	yield	plan	based	on	current	zoning	yields	89	units	while	yield	plan	based	on	RAA	
zoning	would	yield	140	units.	
		
Per	Mr.	Bob	Schroeder	in	the	Aug	8,	2019	board	meeting,	the	yield	rate	on	current	zoning	is	
92	units	and	the	yield	rate	on	RAA	zoning	is	132	units.		And	Mr.	Schroeder	could	supply	your	
office	with	yield	plan	schedules	the	next	day.	
		
It’ll	be	very	helpful	for	us	to	understand	the	issue	if	detailed	yield	plan	calculations	are	
available.		Also	could	you	please	ask	the	applicant	to	provide	a	conceptual	site	plan?		Thank	
you	for	your	consideration.	
		
Yingxin	Zhou	



1

Riley Millard

From: Yingxin Zhou <zhou0824@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 19, 2019 11:36 AM
To: Board; Planning Commision (DG); Peter Menser; Frank Walsh
Subject: Medical marihuana ordinances revisit

Hello	board	and	planning	commission,	
		
It	has	been	almost	3	months	since	the	medical	marihuana	ordinances	were	adopted	by	the	
township	board	on	5/21/19.					
		
Per	board	members’	discussion	at	the	5/21/19	board	meeting,	in	3	months	if	we	don’t	have	
any	applicants	for	growers,	processors,	distributors,	safety	compliance	centers	and	other	
categories	that	are	allowed	by	the	ordinances,	Treasurer	Deschaine	will	induce	the	motion	to	
change	the	ordinances	and	change	it	back	to	zero	or	whatever	the	number	is	at	that	point.			
		
As	of	the	8/9/2019	deadline	to	apply	for	the	permits,	21	applications	had	been	
submitted.		None	of	them	are	for	growers	or	processors.		There	is	only	1	application	for	safety	
compliance	center,	1	application	for	secure	transporter	and	the	remaining	are	all	for	
provisioning	centers.	So	could	the	board	build	a	consensus	to	eliminate	category	of	growers	
and	processors	and	reduce	the	number	of	permits	for	secure	transporter	and	safety	
compliance	center	to	1	in	the	ordinance?	
		
Thank	you	for	your	time	and	consideration	on	this	matter.		I	look	forward	to	hearing	from	
you.	
		
Sincerely,	
	
	
Yingxin	Zhou	
2565	Sophiea	Pkwy	
Okemos,	MI	48864	



1

Riley Millard

From: Daria LaFave <darialafave@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2019 9:33 AM
To: Board
Subject: Hillbrook Park Subdivision roads situation

Good morning dear Board Members, 
I am including you all as I am not sure the best person to contact about the situation. Please feel free to direct 
me to the right individual who oversees this issue.  
I wanted to express my anger with the current state of roads and, more importantly, sidewalks in the Hillbrook 
Park neighborhood. A total of five children walk to Murphy Elementary from our street alone (there are quite a 
few total that we know of. Today we experienced the "joy" of road construction firsthand. We had to walk on 
the road for a pretty major section of our trip since the sidewalks are torn up and pylons are everywhere. We 
walked with a total of 7 children aging from 4 - 10 (two younger siblings), and picked up another one on the 
way. We walked as cars and buses zoomed by, I could not help but feel angry with the fact that there is no other 
way for us to get to the bus stop but to deal with this until the sidewalks are fixed. I am sending you pictures of 
what our walk looked like, and you can see a child walking alone on one of them. There are other children who 
walk alone, and the idea of one of them getting hit by a car on the way to school makes my skin crawl. I 
understand that it is difficult to deal with the construction challenges that came over this summer, but would 
also hope that somebody could take ownership of the issues that our children are experiencing and would come 
up with a solution. 
Is it not feasible to at least fix the sidewalks so that we have safe passage to the school? 
Something has to be done to get this resolved, as I am afraid that not every driver is conscious of the road 
conditions, and this morning Lake Lansing was extremely busy despite being closed to through traffic.  
Please do something! I am begging you to step in and help us find a solution that will secure the safety of our 
children. 
I am happy to speak with you about this further, if you wish. My number is 517-381-2242. 
I greatly appreciate your help! 
 

 IMG_0296.MOV 

 IMG_2130.JPG 

 IMG_2954.JPG 

 IMG_3719.JPG 

 IMG_3924.JPG 

 IMG_5789.JPG 

 IMG_6862.JPG 
 
 
 
--  
Daria S. LaFave, PhD 
darialafave@gmail.com 





9B 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

PROPOSED DRAFT MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 
8, 2019 as submitted. 

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the August 8, 2019 Regular 
Meeting with the following amendment(s):  
[insert amendments] 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Township Hall Room
THURSDAY, August 8, 2019   6:00 pm.

PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, 
Sundland, Wisinski 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Director of Public Works Perry, Fire Chief Hamel, 
Police Chief Plaga, Community Planning Director Kieselbach, Information 
Technology Director Gebes, Principal Planner Menser, Economic Development 
Director Buck. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS

Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL

The Recording Secretary called the roll of the Board.

Supervisor Styka called for observing a moment of silence in recognition of the tragedies of
violence in Dayton, Ohio and El Paso, Texas.

4. PRESENTATIONS  – NONE

5. CITIZENS ADDDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Supervisor Styka opened public remarks at 6:02 pm.

Leonard Provencher, 5824 Buena Pwky., Haslett; addressed the Road Bond Millage (Non-Agenda 
Item). 

Ann Alchin, 5972 Cypress St., Haslett; addressed the Road Bond Millage and concerns about 
campaign materials that had been circulated.  

JK Mir, 4289 Shadow Ridge, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Rezoning #19060 (Bennett Road 
Holdings LLC) (Agenda Item 13A). 

Joy Wahawisan, 4155 Benham Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 

Larry McCurdy, 2710 Sophiea Pkwy., Haslett; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 2   

 

Ashleigh New, 4129 Benca, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A and cited potential 
impacts on traffic and existing housing availability. 
 
Jim Galligan, 4367 Aztec Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Jane Casey, 2677 LaForet Cir., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Craig Patterson, 518 Lakeside Dr., Mackinaw City; (Woda Cooper, Project Developer) spoke in 
support of Woodward Way Payment In Lieu Of Taxes Proposal (Agenda Item 13B). 
 
Mauricio Pincheira, 4228 Rainforest Cir., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Steve Casey, 2677 LaForet Cir., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Jill Stephenson-McCole, 4107 W. Benham Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A 
and noted inconsistent surrounding zoning. 
 
Dan McCole, 4107 W. Benham Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Ting Shen, 2601 Sophiea Pkwy., Haslett; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Patrick Murphy, 2589 Sophiea Pkwy., Haslett; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Lynne Page, 3912 Raleigh Dr., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Angela Susarca, 4239 Rain Forest Cir., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Deborah Gift, 2563 Sundance Ln., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Chuck Maniaci, 2553 Sundance Ln., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Jason Inman 4146 Benca Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 

Supervisor Styka closed public remarks at 7:01 pm.  
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
 
Manager Walsh reported: Medical marihuana application process, Okemos Road Boardwalk, 
Township Budget Public Hearing on Sep 3, Marketplace on the Green construction, Road Bond 
Millage, National Night Out. 
 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Election Report – Clerk Dreyfus 
 Street Bond proposal passed: 60% (4250) to 40% (2866). 
 Redi Ride Millage proposal passed: 63% (4487) to 37% (2622). 
 23% (7134 ) total voter turnout. 
 58% (4167) of all votes were made via absentee ballot. 
 Election certified by Board of Canvassers by Aug 8; fastest certification to date. 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Page 3  

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Trustee Jackson moved to approve the Agenda.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 

VOICE VOTE:   Motion carried  7-0 

9. CONSENT AGENDA

Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda.

Treasurer Deschaine moved to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded by Trustee 
Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Opsommer, Wisinski, 
Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 

NAYS: 

Motion carried 7-0
A. Communications

Treasurer Deschaine moved that the communications be received and placed on file and any 
communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the Township Manager or 
Supervisor for follow-up.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Opsommer, Wisinski, 
Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 

NAYS: 

Motion carried 7-0

B. Approval of Minutes – July 23 2019 Regular Meeting

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 
23, 2019 as submitted. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Opsommer, Wisinski, 
Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 

NAYS: 

Motion carried 7-0

C. Bills

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills 
as follows, seconded by Trustee Wisinski: 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Page 4  

Common Cash  $       365,199.32 
Public Works  $       171,107.24 
Trust & Agency $   1,209,461.52 

Total Checks $   1,745,768.08 
Credit Card Transactions $        10,223.04 
July 18 to Aug 1  

Total Purchases $          1,755,991.12 
ACH Payments $  805,245.21 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Sundland, Opsommer, Wisinski, 
Clerk Dreyfus, Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 

NAYS: 

Motion carried 7-0

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY – NONE

11. HEARINGS  – NONE

12. ACTION ITEMS

A. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #19014 (Eyde)

Trustee Opsommer moved to adopt the resolution approving Mixed Use Planned Unit 
Development #19014 with conditions. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine. 

Board discussion: in-fill development, preservation of greenspace, gazebo diagram provided by 
applicant. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, 
Trustees Opsommer, Sundland, Jackson, Wisinski. 

NAYS:  

Motion carried 7-0

B. Special Use Permit #19091 (Eyde)

Treasurer Deschaine moved to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #19091 
with conditions. Seconded by Trustee Sundland. 

Board discussion: required for building over 25,000 square feet. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Jackson, 
Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Dreyfus. 

NAYS:  

Motion carried 7-0



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Page 5  

C. Elevation Brownfield Plan Amendment

Trustee Opsommer moved to adopt the resolution approving the Elevation at Okemos Pointe 
Brownfield Plan Amendment in an amount not to exceed $5,898,251 over a maximum of 18 
years. Seconded by Trustee Sundland. 

Dave Vanherrin, TriTerra, requested amendments to the motion and resolution be made that would 
remove the “over a maximum of 18 years” wording and replace it with “over a period estimated at 
18 years.” 

Board discussion: tax appeal effects on plan duration, other brownfield plans cap dollar amounts 
but not time, brownfields automatically capped at 30 years, disadvantage to applicant as time goes 
on, 5% interest rate built into plan, possibility of being less than 18 years. 

VOICE VOTE ON 
ORIGINAL MOTION: Motion failed 2 (Dreyfus, Jackson) - 5 

Trustee Opsommer moved to amend the resolution to strike “not to exceed 18 years” within 
the first WHEARAS statement on Page 2 and insert “estimated at 18 years” and subsequently 
approve the resolution approving the Elevation at Okemos Pointe Brownfield Plan 
Amendment in an amount not to exceed $5,898,251 over an estimated 18 years. Seconded by 
Trustee Sundland. 

Board discussion: Concerns on financial impact on Township property tax revenues by extending 
Brownfield Plan to an estimated 18 years, question about using the word “estimated,” taxing 
jurisdictions get a 20% increase over current amounts and then 100% of new tax revenue when 
Plan ends, eliminating hard cap ensures developer gets investment their returned in changing 
market conditions. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, Jackson, Opsommer, 
Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka. 

NAYS:  

Motion carried 7-0

D. Special Use Permit #19041 (Williams Volkswagen, Inc)

Trustee Jackson moved to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #19041 with 
conditions. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine. 

Board discussion: Planning Commission recommendation of approval, addition of 15,000 sq. ft., 
increased imperviousness (not desirable), impervious percentage still under ordinance maximum. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, 
Trustees Wisinski, Opsommer, Jackson, Sundland 

NAYS: 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT*

Page 6  

Motion carried 7-0

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Rezoning #19060 (Bennett Road Holding LLC)

Bob Schroeder, President, Mayberry Homes, 1650 Kendale Blvd. Ste. 200, East Lansing; provided 
details on the proposed rezoning request and possible subsequent development. 

Jeff Kyes, President, KEBS Inc., 2116 Haslett Rd., Haslett; provided information on the proposed 
development. 

Board discussion: 132 units predicted in preliminary yield plan, wetland delineation and hold 
property plan, developer’s preference to use Planned Unit Development (PUD), previous mediation 
efforts, options for alleviating drainage issues, differences in proposal presented at Planning 
Commission, inflationary housing calculations, property has large wetlands, request should return 
to the Planning Commission with provided changes, yield plan lists potential number of units, need 
to change zoning as a PUD, potential buildout numbers, maximum of 143 units in traffic study, 92 
units under current zoning, Greenspace Plan identifies fragile corridor on property, critical 
floodplain/wetlands corresponds with Greenspace Plan, developer should dialog with surrounding 
neighborhoods, possibility of mediation to address neighbors’ concerns, yield plan won’t be as 
complex as PUD plan. 

Board consensus to have the Township Manager attempt mediation efforts between the 
developer and the neighborhood before the next Board meeting. 

B. Woodward Way PILOT Proposal

Director Keiselbach explained the Payment In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) proposal submitted by the 
Wooda Cooper Company. 

Board discussion: previous Grange Acres PILOT proposal denied by Township Board, no Township 
obligation to help developers compete, developer can afford to pay property taxes as required, 
small payment by developer of housing project - instead of property taxes - not fair to other 
property owners and developers who pay taxes,  company assertion development won’t go forward 
without a PILOT, $9,000 additional Municipal Services payment to Meridian Township, developer 
assertion that no recent developments succeeded without a PILOT, board member belief that 
payment instead of taxes results in net gain for the Township and provides public service, 
estimated $90,000 in annual property taxes would be lost if PILOT implemented, 15 years of 
compliance required, taxes return to normal after PILOT expires, belief that Township needs 
diverse housing, belief that Future Land Use Map indicates need for affordable housing, need to 
amend the Township PILOT Ordinance. 

Board consensus to place this item on for action at the next Board meeting. 

14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

Supervisor Styka Opened Public Remarks at 8:52 pm.

Karen Grannemann, 2628 Creekstone Trl., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 7   

 

 
Dan McCole, 4107 W. Benham Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Carla Galligan, 4367 Aztec Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Manoj Zutshi, 2559 Sophiea Pkwy., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Ashleigh New, 4129 Benca, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Deborah Gift, 2563 Sundance Ln., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Lynne Page, 3912 Raleigh Dr., Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 
Jim Galligan, 4367 Aztec Way, Okemos; spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 13A. 
 

Supervisor Styka Closed Public Remarks at 9:08 pm. 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
Treasurer Deschaine reported: 

 Success of National Night Out and community participation. 
 Thanks to resident’s support of the Road Bond Proposal. 
 Redi Ride Millage approval will help continue providing transportation support. 

 
Supervisor Styka reported: 

 Benefits of the passing of the Road Bond Proposal and Redi Ride Millage. 
 
Clerk Dreyfus reported: 

 Thanks to election staff and election inspectors for hard work, long hours, and helping make 
democracy function. 

 
16. CLOSED SESSION – Review Confidential Written Legal Opinion 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to take the meeting into closed session under Section 8 of the 
Open Meetings Act to consider confidential legal advice concerning pending litigation. 
Seconded by Trustee Jackson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, Jackson, Opsommer,  
     Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Dreyfus 
 

NAYS:  
     

Motion carried  7-0 
 

Supervisor Styka moved the meeting into closed session at 9:18 pm. 

Treasurer Deschaine moved to return the meeting to open session. Seconded by Trustee 

Wisinski 

VOICE VOTE:   Motion carried  7-0 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, AUGUST 8, 2019 REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 8   

 

Supervisor Styka moved the meeting back into open session at 9:57pm. 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Sundland moved to adjourn.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski . 
 
VOICE VOTE:    Motion carried  7-0    
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at 9:58 pm. 
 
 

 
 

___________                 _____________ 
                    RONALD J. STYKA, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
____________               ________________ 

BRETT DREYFUS, 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9.C

To: Board Members 

From: Miriam Mattison, Finance Director 

Date: September 3, 2019  

Re: Board Bills  

MOVED THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE MANAGER'S 

BILLS AS FOLLOWS:

COMMON CASH 1,072,187.83 

PUBLIC WORKS 1,132,625.40 

TRUST & AGENCY 2,911,683.10 

TOTAL CHECKS: 5,116,496.33$    

CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS 21,789.46$    

Aug 2 to Aug 28

TOTAL PURCHASES: 5,138,285.79$    

ACH PAYMENTS 4,094,805.20$    



































Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9.D

TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

September 3, 2019 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

Collections  

Distributions 

Investments 















Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable,, prime community 

11. A & 13. B

To: Township Board  

From: Frank L. Walsh, Township Manager 

Date: August 30, 2019 

Re: 2020 Recommended Budget Public Hearing and Discussion 

On Tuesday, August 27, 2019, the Draft 2020 Budget was delivered to the Township Board members 

and at the same time was made publicly available on our website and at the Haslett and Okemos 

Libraries. 

The overarching goals of the 2020 Budget mirror the 2019 Action Plan adopted by the Board in 
January 2019. The 2020 Budget focuses on fulfilling our promises that we made to our residents in 
2017 and 2019.  We are focused on fixing our roads, eliminating our legacy costs, relocating our 
Farmers’ Market and eliminating two decades of blight in downtown Okemos and the Haslett Village 
Square. 

Most importantly, this budget fulfills 100% of the promises we made regarding funding local roads 
and eliminating pension debt.  Our creditability is our mission. 

It would be helpful if you bring your copy of the Draft 2020 Budget to the Board meeting. 

Finance Director Miriam Mattison and I look forward to presenting the budget to you on Tuesday, 
September 3rd.  In the meantime, please do not hesitate to contact me if should you have any 
questions. 



Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, MI 48864 
517.853.4000

meridian.mi.us

2020
Budget
Charter Township of Meridian































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development 
  
Date:  August 29, 2019 
 
Re: Amendment to Chapter 66 Tax Exemption (PILOT) 
 
 
The Township Board discussed amending the Township’s ordinance that allows a Payment in Lieu 
of Taxes (PILOT) for federally aided or Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) 
aided housing projects at its meeting on August 8, 2019.  The tax exemption in the current 
ordinance applies to housing projects for elderly persons of low to moderate income.  The 
proposed amendment would allow the tax exemption to apply to housing projects for all persons 
and families of low to moderate income.  In addition to the Township attorney’s review the 
ordinance was also reviewed by MSHDA to ensure compliance with the Michigan State Housing 
Development Authority Act of 1966.   
 
A resolution to approve the amendment for introduction is attached.  The following motion has 
been provided for the Board’s consideration: 
 
 Move to approve the resolution for introduction of the amendment to Chapter 66, 

Article II to allow for a tax exemption and Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) for persons 
and families of low to moderate income. 

 
Attachments 
1.  Resolution for Introduction 
2.  Proposed Amendment – Redline Copy 
3.  Proposed Amendment – Clean Copy 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ORDINANCES\PILOT ordinance amendment 2019\amendment to Chapter 66 
(PILOT).tb1.doc 
 
 
 
 

 

12.A 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE                Amendment to Chapter 66 – Taxation 
(Township Board) 

INTRODUCTION 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 
Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 3rd day of September, 
2019, at 6:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:   _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
ABSENT:   _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The following resolution was offered by ________________________________ and supported by 
______________________. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board in 1995 enacted an ordinance pursuant to Section 15a of 
the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL 125.1415a, which limited the 
class of housing projects that qualify to pay the Township an annual service charge for public 
services in lieu of taxes (PILOT); and 

 
WHEREAS, the class of housing project that qualifies for a PILOT is for elderly low income 

or moderate income persons; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Township Board to amend the ordinance to allow housing 
projects for low or moderate income families and persons to be eligible for a PILOT; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
Township to encourage low or moderate income housing projects for families and persons. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby INTRODUCES FOR PUBLICATION AND SUBSEQUENT 
ADOPTION Ordinance No.               , entitled “Ordinance Amending the Code of the Charter 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, by amending Chapter 66, Article II, Tax 
Exemption for Federally Aided or Michigan State Housing Authority Aided Housing Projects, Section 
66-28 and Section 66-30.” 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian is directed 
to publish the Ordinance in the form in which it is introduced at least once prior to the next regular 
meeting of the Township Board. 
 
ADOPTED:   YEAS:  ________________________________________________________________________________  

 
   _______________________________________________________________________________  

 
  NAYS:  ________________________________________________________________________________  
 



Resolution to Approve (Introduction) 
Township Board (September 3, 2019) 
Page 2 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  )  
    )ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 
resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 3rd day of September, 2019. 
 
 
       ___________________________________  
       Brett Dreyfus, Clerk 
                                                                                   Charter Township of Meridian             
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ORDINANCES\PILOT ordinance amendment 2019\resolution to approve PILOT 
ordinance amendment INTRO 8-20-19.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2019-                     

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM 

COUNTY, MICHIGAN, CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE II BY AMENDING SECTION 66-28 AND SECTION 

66-30. 

 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 66, Article II, Section 66-28.  Section 66-28 entitled Class 

of Housing Developments Exempt of the Code of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 

Michigan is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Section 66-28 Class of housing developments exempt. 

The tax exemption shall apply to, and a service charge shall be paid in lieu of taxes, by a housing 

project financed with a federally-aided or authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the 

authority for elderly low income or moderate income persons or other low income or moderate 

income persons when: 

 

(1) The housing project is owned by a nonprofit housing corporation or limited dividend housing 

corporation; and 
 

(2) The housing development is, prior to initial occupancy, subject to covenants running with the 

land which require that it be maintained as housing for elderly low or moderate income persons or 

other low income or moderate income persons the remainder of its economic life. 

 

Section 2.  Amendment to Chapter 66, Article II, Section 66-30.  Section 66-30 entitled 

Resolution of the Code of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

 

Section 66-30 Resolution. 

A resolution of the Township Board granting tax exempt status, as provided in this article, shall be 

adopted for a housing project qualified under the terms and provisions of this article.  Payment of a 

service charge in lieu of tax exemption will be effectuated by adoption of a resolution by the 

Township Board. 

 

Section 3. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or effectiveness 

of the remainder of the Ordinance. 

 

Section 4.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 

hereby replaced only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

 

Section 5.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 

 



 
 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

publication. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                           

Ronald J. Styka, Township Supervisor    Brett Dreyfus, Township Clerk 

 

 



1 
 

Chapter 66 

TAXATION 

 

Article I 

In General 

 

Section 66-1 through Section 66-25. (Reserved) 

 

Article II 

Tax Exemption for Federally Aided or Michigan State Housing Authority Aided Housing 

Projects 

 

Section 66-26 Definitions. 

 

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 

to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 

ANNUAL SHELTER RENTS 

The total collections during an agreed annual period from all occupants of a housing project 

representing rent or occupancy charges exclusive of charges for gas, electricity, heat or other utilities 
furnished to the occupants. 

 

AUTHORITY-AIDED MORTGAGE 

A mortgage made, held, purchased, or assisted by the authority. 

 

AUTHORITY 

The state housing development authority. 

 

ELDERLY 

A single person whose age is within the limits as specified in Section 11 of the Michigan State Housing 

Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1411. 

 

ELDERLY PERSONS OF LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 

Elderly persons who meet the eligibility criteria set by the Authority and/or the federal government. 

 

FEDERALLY AIDED MORTGAGE 

A below-market-interest-rate mortgage insured, purchased, or held by the secretary of the 

department of housing and urban development; a market interest rate mortgage insured by the 

secretary of the department of housing and urban development and augmented by a program of rent 

supplements; a mortgage receiving interest reduction payments provided by the secretary of the 

department of housing and urban development; a mortgage on a housing project to which the 

authority allocates low income housing tax credits under Section 22b of Public Act No. 346 of 1966 

(MCL Section 125.1422b); or a mortgage receiving special benefits under other federal law 

designated specifically to develop low and moderate income housing, consistent with Public Act No. 

346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.). 

 



2 
 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

A development that contains a significant element of housing for persons of low or moderate income 

and elements of other housing, commercial, recreational, industrial, communal, and educational 

facilities that the authority determines improve the quality of the development as it relates to housing 

for persons of low or moderate income. 

 

HOUSING PROJECT 

Any of the following: 

 

(1) Residential real property developed or to be developed or receiving benefits under Public Act No. 

346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.). 

 

(2) A specific work or improvement either for rental or for subsequent sale to an individual purchaser 

undertaken by a nonprofit housing corporation, consumer housing cooperative, limited dividend 

housing corporation, mobile home park corporation, or mobile home park association pursuant to or 

receiving benefits under Public Act No. 346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.) to provide 

dwelling accommodations, including the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of lands, 

buildings, and improvements. 

 

(3) Social, recreational, commercial, and communal facilities that the authority finds necessary to 
serve and improve a residential area in which housing pursuant to subsection (1) or (2) of this section 

is located or is planned to be located, thereby enhancing the viability of the housing. 

 

HUD 

The Department of Housing and Urban Development of the United States Government. 

 

LIMITED DIVIDEND HOUSING CORPORATION 

A corporation incorporated or qualified pursuant to the corporation laws of this state and Chapter 6 

of the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1481 through 

125.1486 and a limited dividend housing association organized and qualified pursuant to Chapter 7 

of the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1491 through 

125.1496, and any future amendments or replacements. 

 

LOW INCOME OR MODERATE INCOME PERSONS 

Families and persons who meet the eligibility criteria defined in Section 11 of the State Housing 

Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1411 or as defined by the authority on 

the basis of specific conditions in Meridian Township. 

 

MORTGAGE LOAN 

A loan to be made by the authority or farmers home administration or the United States Department 

of Housing and Urban Development to the sponsor for the construction and permanent financing of 

the housing development or a mortgage loan insured by HUD. 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

NONPROFIT HOUSING CORPORATION 

A nonprofit corporation incorporated under the corporation laws of this state and Chapter 4 of the 

State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1461 through 125.1465, 

and any future amendments or replacements. 

 

SPONSOR 

Persons or entities which have applied to either the authority for a mortgage loan to finance a housing 

development or to another governmental entity for a federally aided loan, as defined by Public Act 

No. 346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.). 

 

UTILITIES 

Fuel, water, sanitary sewer services, and/or electrical services which are paid by the housing 

development. 

 

The above terms and any other terms used in this article shall be as defined, amended, or established 

from time to time by Section 11 of Public Act No. 346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411). 

 

Section 66-27 Nonapplicability of tax exemption. 

The tax exemption provided to an owner of a housing project financed with a federally-aided or 

authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the authority, pursuant to the terms of 
Subsection 15a(1) of the Michigan State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL 

Section 125.1415a(1), shall not apply to any housing project, or portion thereof, located within the 

boundaries of the Township, which is owned by a consumer housing cooperative, mobile home park 

corporation, or mobile home park association, as defined in Section 11 of the Michigan State Housing 

Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1411. 

 

Section 66-28 Class of housing developments exempt. 

The tax exemption shall apply to, and a service charge shall be paid in lieu of taxes, by a housing 

project financed with a federally-aided or authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the 

authority for elderly low income or moderate income persons or other low income or moderate 

income persons when: 

 

(1) The housing project is owned by a nonprofit housing corporation or limited dividend housing 

corporation; and 

 

(2) The housing development is, prior to initial occupancy, subject to covenants running with the 

land which require that it be maintained as housing for elderly low or moderate income persons or 

other low income or moderate income persons the remainder of its economic life. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

Section 66-29 Establishment of annual service charge. 

The class of housing projects described in Section 66-28 and the property on which they will be 

constructed shall be exempt from all ad valorem property taxes from and after the commencement 

of construction.  In lieu of such taxes the owner of the housing project shall pay to the Charter 

Township of Meridian an annual service charge for public services.  Except as provided herein, the 

annual service charge shall be equal to 5% of the annual shelter rents obtained from the project.  The 

service charge shall not exceed the ad valorem taxes that would have been paid on the property on 

which the project is located for the tax year before the date when construction or rehabilitation of 

the project was commenced. 

 

Section 66-30 Resolution. 

A resolution of the Township Board granting tax exempt status, as provided in this article, shall be 

adopted for a housing project qualified under the terms and provisions of this article.  Payment of a 

service charge in lieu of tax exemption will be effectuated by enactment adoption of a resolution by 

the Township Board. 

 

Section 66-31 Payment of service charge. 

The service charge in lieu of taxes as determined under this article shall be payable in the same 

manner as general property taxes are payable to the Township except that the annual payment shall 

be paid on or before July 1 of each year. 
 

Section 66-32 Duration. 

Tax exempt status granted by the Township Board shall be forfeited unless construction of the 

housing project to which such status is granted is commenced within one year from the effective date 

of the Township Board resolution approving that status.  The tax exempt status of a housing project 

approved by resolution of the Township Board shall remain in effect and shall not terminate while 

the federally-aided or authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the authority is 

outstanding. 



1 
 

Chapter 66 

TAXATION 

 

Article I 

In General 

 

Section 66-1 through Section 66-25. (Reserved) 

 

Article II 

Tax Exemption for Federally Aided or Michigan State Housing Authority Aided Housing 

Projects 

 

Section 66-26 Definitions. 

 

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 

to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 

ANNUAL SHELTER RENTS 

The total collections during an agreed annual period from all occupants of a housing project 

representing rent or occupancy charges exclusive of charges for gas, electricity, heat or other utilities 
furnished to the occupants. 

 

AUTHORITY-AIDED MORTGAGE 

A mortgage made, held, purchased, or assisted by the authority. 

 

AUTHORITY 

The state housing development authority. 

 

ELDERLY 

A single person whose age is within the limits as specified in Section 11 of the Michigan State Housing 

Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1411. 

 

ELDERLY PERSONS OF LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 

Elderly persons who meet the eligibility criteria set by the Authority and/or the federal government. 

 

FEDERALLY AIDED MORTGAGE 

A below-market-interest-rate mortgage insured, purchased, or held by the secretary of the 

department of housing and urban development; a market interest rate mortgage insured by the 

secretary of the department of housing and urban development and augmented by a program of rent 

supplements; a mortgage receiving interest reduction payments provided by the secretary of the 

department of housing and urban development; a mortgage on a housing project to which the 

authority allocates low income housing tax credits under Section 22b of Public Act No. 346 of 1966 

(MCL Section 125.1422b); or a mortgage receiving special benefits under other federal law 

designated specifically to develop low and moderate income housing, consistent with Public Act No. 

346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.). 

 



2 
 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

A development that contains a significant element of housing for persons of low or moderate income 

and elements of other housing, commercial, recreational, industrial, communal, and educational 

facilities that the authority determines improve the quality of the development as it relates to housing 

for persons of low or moderate income. 

 

HOUSING PROJECT 

Any of the following: 

 

(1) Residential real property developed or to be developed or receiving benefits under Public Act No. 

346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.). 

 

(2) A specific work or improvement either for rental or for subsequent sale to an individual purchaser 

undertaken by a nonprofit housing corporation, consumer housing cooperative, limited dividend 

housing corporation, mobile home park corporation, or mobile home park association pursuant to or 

receiving benefits under Public Act No. 346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.) to provide 

dwelling accommodations, including the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of lands, 

buildings, and improvements. 

 

(3) Social, recreational, commercial, and communal facilities that the authority finds necessary to 
serve and improve a residential area in which housing pursuant to subsection (1) or (2) of this section 

is located or is planned to be located, thereby enhancing the viability of the housing. 

 

HUD 

The Department of Housing and Urban Development of the United States Government. 

 

LIMITED DIVIDEND HOUSING CORPORATION 

A corporation incorporated or qualified pursuant to the corporation laws of this state and Chapter 6 

of the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1481 through 

125.1486 and a limited dividend housing association organized and qualified pursuant to Chapter 7 

of the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1491 through 

125.1496, and any future amendments or replacements. 

 

LOW INCOME OR MODERATE INCOME PERSONS 

Families and persons who meet the eligibility criteria defined in Section 11 of the State Housing 

Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1411 or as defined by the authority on 

the basis of specific conditions in Meridian Township. 

 

MORTGAGE LOAN 

A loan to be made by the authority or farmers home administration or the United States Department 

of Housing and Urban Development to the sponsor for the construction and permanent financing of 

the housing development or a mortgage loan insured by HUD. 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

NONPROFIT HOUSING CORPORATION 

A nonprofit corporation incorporated under the corporation laws of this state and Chapter 4 of the 

State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1461 through 125.1465, 

and any future amendments or replacements. 

 

SPONSOR 

Persons or entities which have applied to either the authority for a mortgage loan to finance a housing 

development or to another governmental entity for a federally aided loan, as defined by Public Act 

No. 346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411 et seq.). 

 

UTILITIES 

Fuel, water, sanitary sewer services, and/or electrical services which are paid by the housing 

development. 

 

The above terms and any other terms used in this article shall be as defined, amended, or established 

from time to time by Section 11 of Public Act No. 346 of 1966 (MCL Section 125.1411). 

 

Section 66-27 Nonapplicability of tax exemption. 

The tax exemption provided to an owner of a housing project financed with a federally-aided or 

authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the authority, pursuant to the terms of 
Subsection 15a(1) of the Michigan State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL 

Section 125.1415a(1), shall not apply to any housing project, or portion thereof, located within the 

boundaries of the Township, which is owned by a consumer housing cooperative, mobile home park 

corporation, or mobile home park association, as defined in Section 11 of the Michigan State Housing 

Development Authority Act of 1966, being MCL Section 125.1411. 

 

Section 66-28 Class of housing developments exempt. 

The tax exemption shall apply to, and a service charge shall be paid in lieu of taxes, by a housing 

project financed with a federally-aided or authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the 

authority for elderly low income or moderate income persons or other low income or moderate 

income persons when: 

 

(1) The housing project is owned by a nonprofit housing corporation or limited dividend housing 

corporation; and 

 

(2) The housing development is, prior to initial occupancy, subject to covenants running with the 

land which require that it be maintained as housing for elderly low or moderate income persons or 

other low income or moderate income persons the remainder of its economic life. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

Section 66-29 Establishment of annual service charge. 

The class of housing projects described in Section 66-28 and the property on which they will be 

constructed shall be exempt from all ad valorem property taxes from and after the commencement 

of construction.  In lieu of such taxes the owner of the housing project shall pay to the Charter 

Township of Meridian an annual service charge for public services.  Except as provided herein, the 

annual service charge shall be equal to 5% of the annual shelter rents obtained from the project.  The 

service charge shall not exceed the ad valorem taxes that would have been paid on the property on 

which the project is located for the tax year before the date when construction or rehabilitation of 

the project was commenced. 

 

Section 66-30 Resolution. 

A resolution of the Township Board granting tax exempt status, as provided in this article, shall be 

adopted for a housing project qualified under the terms and provisions of this article.  Payment of a 

service charge in lieu of tax exemption will be effectuated by adoption of a resolution by the 

Township Board. 

 

Section 66-31 Payment of service charge. 

The service charge in lieu of taxes as determined under this article shall be payable in the same 

manner as general property taxes are payable to the Township except that the annual payment shall 

be paid on or before July 1 of each year. 
 

Section 66-32 Duration. 

Tax exempt status granted by the Township Board shall be forfeited unless construction of the 

housing project to which such status is granted is commenced within one year from the effective date 

of the Township Board resolution approving that status.  The tax exempt status of a housing project 

approved by resolution of the Township Board shall remain in effect and shall not terminate while 

the federally-aided or authority-aided mortgage or advance or grant from the authority is 

outstanding. 























































 

 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  August 30, 2019 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #19121 Woodward Way 
 
 
Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association has requested a special use permit (SUP) to 
construct a group of buildings totaling 52,861 square feet in size on the north 4.37 acres of Parcel 
Number 17-377-031.  The RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 dwelling units per acre) zoned 
subject site is located east of Sirhal Drive, north of Whole Foods, and west of Greencliff Drive. 
 
The applicant received SUP approval (SUP #19111) from the Planning Commission on August 26, 
2019 to construct a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of four buildings.  The 
Planning Commission held the public hearing on SUP #19121 at its July 22, 2019 meeting and voted 
to recommend approval at the August 26, 2019 meeting, citing the following reasons for its decision: 
 
 The subject site is appropriately zoned RC (Multiple Family), which permits the construction of 

a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in floor area by special use permit. 
 

 The proposed housing project is consistent with the conditions established in Rezoning #19010. 
 
 The proposed housing project meets the design standards of the RC (Multiple Family) zoning 

district listed in Section 86-376(g) of the Code of Ordinances. 
 

 The proposed project is consistent with the general standards for granting a special use permit 
found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 

 Public water and sanitary sewer services serve the subject site. 
 
Staff memorandums outlining the special use permit and minutes from the Planning Commission 
meetings at which the special use permit was discussed are attached for the Board’s review.  The staff 
reports for Special Use Permit #19111 are attached for a more complete overview of the project. 
 
Township Board Options 
 
The Township Board may approve or deny the special use permit.  If the Board amends the proposal, 
the request may be referred back to the Planning Commission for a recommendation.  A resolution 
will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
 
 

13.A 



 
Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Township Board (September 3, 2019) 
Page 2 

 

  
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Attachments 
1. Staff memorandums dated July 19, 2019, August 8, 2019, and August 23, 2019 with attachments. 
2. Special Use Permit #19111 staff memorandums dated July 19, 2019 and August 23, 2019 with 

attachments. 
3. Resolution recommending approval of Special Use Permit #19121 dated August 26, 2019. 
4. Planning Commission minutes dated July 22, 2019 (public hearing), August 12, 2019 

(discussion), and August 26, 2019 (decision). 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 
Association)\SUP 19121.tb1.doc 
 
 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  July 19, 2019 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 

Association), construct a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet 
in size on an undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 17-377-031. 

 
 
Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association has requested a special use permit to construct 
a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on the north 4.37 acres of Parcel 
Number 17-377-031.  The subject site is zoned RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 units per acre) 
and located east of Sirhal Drive, north of Whole Foods, and west of Greencliff Drive.  The proposed 
project is a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of four buildings totaling 53,353 
square feet in size. 
 
In addition to the special use permit request to construct the multiple family housing development 
(SUP #19111), a special use permit is required for constructing a building totaling more than 25,000 
square feet in gross floor area (SUP #19121).  The special use permits are being processed 
concurrently.  This staff report focuses on the special use permit for construction of a group of 
buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area.  The staff report for SUP #19111 
should be referenced for a more complete overview of the project. 
 
The construction of any building or group of buildings with a combined gross floor area greater than 
25,000 square feet requires a special use permit due to the significant impact such development may 
have upon adjacent property owners, neighborhoods, and public infrastructure.  The Code of 
Ordinances requires the special use permit to ensure public utilities, roads, and other infrastructure 
systems are or will be adequate to support the proposed development. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
The special use permit review criteria found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances should be 
used when evaluating the proposed special use permit.  The Planning Commission makes a 
recommendation on the SUP request and the Township Board has final approval.  
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the 
proposed special use permit.   A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachment 
1. Special use permit application. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us ----



/R)@rt:;@ O'Mi, 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN W@rry 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT JUN 2 5 ,, ':dJ 
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864 1.0 J 9 

PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-409§ __ _ ---....... ___ __ 
-... -......... 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION ---

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community 
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a 
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the 
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then 
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal 
application. 

Part I 

A. Applicant .J.LL<'-U(J....r;.L...aLnLa.._1=.fLLJ...L..LC.:.c..J_~tLJ..L=t2--f-K,,.=U!fc-(_L..,."--"--'~-i-'"--------::.L.f-'"'-'-':~-+-''..+-;l-= ""------­

Address of Applicant _,&~ ~.L-J::.=...'------~"'"""":.(____L_J,~L..J.'--L.J.~ ------'..&.L.,:..ld.L.c._y_~----t,:...LLL'--'-'-------''---'--"::::,:....,,,.__ __ 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

Telephone - Work vi½ 39/4, -Po tt Email - c. f-

Interest in property (circle one) : Owner Tenant ~ 
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.) 

Other /Joel, ✓·/ovr- , ~Od'l 

Site addres~ /_location/ parcel n~mber bs r O / ~C{D 5~h/J I~£,, J,fo v;,, l;&/2 3 
Legal descnpt1on.J.please attach ~ ecessary) ' /.1-mt.diJE:.!L 1:u_;:,2 ~Q-17: U7-P 3/ 
Current zoning KC.· ru. .... 1 ~. ~ -\ 
Use for which permit is requested/ project name __ __:_· _______________ _ 
Corresponding ordinance number _______________________ _ 

Architect ngineer anner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant: 
Name -L-----'-:,.__.- -=::..r;;.,..,ou+~- ---=-----=-- - '---;1- -,-- ~ ----=----------
A d dress __._-""'-""'t>---"~ .r::;,,::.,~r::..---~ ..L..L.-_L._....L.::.~___L,d;,l._!.= "D.J:,_"-"--t,,.L-'--....L...,'-"'=L..L------

Telephone - Work 6,,/¥394, , 52<,£ Home _________ Fax _______ _ 

;1-c,1,..s 
Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross ~ Net __ 

Explain the project and development phases: 

Total number of: 
Existing: structures__Q_ bedrooms-=- offices~ parking spaces_~_ carports ~ garages_-_ 
Proposed: structures~ bedrooms_fz_ offices--,L._ parking spaces~ carports _Q___ garages_Q__ 

Square footage: 
Usable Floor area: 

existing buildings_L_ proposed buildings-2_ 
existing buildings_Q_ proposed buildings~37 / 

If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift 
and hours of operation: 2 F"... I/ h ti> i: erY1p s~,!> wh~/1 Co,1 (!:, rrac~KJ 6 · '). ffJ- r 
Existing Recreation: 
Proposed Recreation: 
Existing Open Space: 

Type ----+/J~a- O~ tZ-----~~------ Acreage ___ _ 
Type ::,.;c&2 j :U-c , I -Int /or /f'•"''- 1,;bv Acreage--'----
Type 0J 1/. ' Acreage "I ~ /4a,.-. 

Proposed Open Space: Type 4a o/,', - w en ~/h'U/1 J pkcd Acreage :1 . D +-1- ~ 7 7 --, 

Page 1 



K. 

L. 

If Multiple Housing: 
Total acres of property _3/.~-3 _ __ _ 
Acres in floodplain o Percent of total _____(,,)___ 
Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) _ t,__ Percent of total ____Q__ 

Total dwelling units __ '.'/~'1 ____ _ 
Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached: 

Number of duplexes: 
Number of townhouses: 
Number of garden style apartments: 
Number of other dwellings: 

for Rent - Condo ...:::::__ 
for Rent ~ Condo ___ _ 
for Rent _!f!j_ Condo ~ 
for Rent ____!'.'.:__ Condo ____:::::__ 
for Rent --=:...._ Condo 

The following support materials must be submitted with the application: - ;1.,-r c/2b-r.:, 

1. Nonrefundable Fee. - C'l,t,J # /07 S 

2. Legal Description of the property. 

3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property. 

4. Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application. 

5. Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures, 
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be 
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and 
colors. 

6. A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of 
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities, 
published by the State Department of Transportation. 

a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following: 
1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use 

where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips 
during a peak hour of traffic. 

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2. 

b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following : 
1) New special uses which would , or expansion or change of an existing special use 

where increase in intensity would, generate over 1 00 directional trips or more 
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day. 

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2. 

7. Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the 
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following: 

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural 
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or 
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways , floodplains, waterbodies, identified 
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative 
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife. 

b. Description of the impacts on natural features. 

c. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts. 

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and 
Development in certain circumstances. 

Page 2 



Part II SUP REQUEST STANDARDS 
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126 

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that 
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the 
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your 
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application. 

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter. 

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of 
current adoption. 

(3) The project is designed, constructed , operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and 
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a 
use will not change the essential character of the same area. 

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 

(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community. 

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities , such as existing roads , schools, stormwater 
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation , or that the persons or agencies 
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service. 

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation 
facilities for sewage disposal , potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be 
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project. 

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of 
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors . 

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of 
the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils , water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, 
streams, major forests , wetlands, and wildlife areas. 

Part Ill 
I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian's Boards and/or Commissions, 
Township staff member(s) and the Township's representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above 
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering 
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. 

0 No (Please check one) 

By the signature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and 
~ c~ g-documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate 

-1,~~ l, zz_. U\o,~ 
~ eApJJlicant Date 

+~ ~~s~:1:: J<, 
Type/Print Name\ 

Fee: $540 Received by/Date: / ~ 
/ 

Page 4 



L Support Materials and Part II 

1) Provided 
2) 
3) 
4) 
5) 
6) 

Provided 
Provided 
Provided 
Provided 
Traffic Study dated April, from: Monument Engineering 

............ __ ___ 

a) Traffic Assessment required for 50 to 99 peak directional trips 
Attached memo only shows 26 AM and 34 PM trips 

b) A traffic impact study will be required 
1) 100 directional trips or over 750 per day 

...... ____ _ 
------ ---

Note: Traffic Site Generation shows 53 units shows a lower peak trips than single family. 

7) Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on 
the natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following: 

a) Provided is an Inventory of natural features to be retained, removed or modified. 

This is the redevelopment of a closed trailer park, containing the existing roads/ curbs 
trailer pads, underground utilities and other construction materials from the Whole Food 
development will be removed. Along the 3 current residential prope1iy lines the existing 
trees over 12 inches in the 25-foot set back will be maintained as long as they are quality 
healthy trees as detennined by a professional. It appears a lot of these trees have been 
compromised and are lesser desirable species as urban trees. Along the southern prope1iy 
line are very few trees. Again, any trees detennined desirable not in the way of 
construction will be preserved. Some species recognized on the property include 
mulberry, locust, maple, cottonwood, spruce, green ash, walnut and Siberian Elm. 
Generally, the trees are in poor condition and mostly located in the 25 foot set back. 
There are a few pockets of trees in the center of the property. Two maps provided one 
winter one summer. 

The site has no floodways , flood plains, wetlands, water bodies identified groundwater 
vulnerable areas no slopes, ravines and vegetative cover to sustain significant or 
endangered wildlife. The site is basically flat with a low grade from North to south. 

Being a LEED Green developer, attention will be paid to recycling the existing material 
protecting the trees and design/ build energy efficient buildings. The landscaping will 
utilizing native species for them to be sustained naturally. Calculations from the architect 
measuring hard surfaces show 49.8% of the prope1iy will be soft surface/ green space. 

b) Currently the site has concrete roads, trailer pads, curbs, sidewalks and construction 
debris along with the underground utilities. The site has few natural features that will be 



impacted. The benefit will be removing all the waste, concrete, dead trees and repurpose 
waste material. 

c) To mitigate any negative impacts, Woda Construction will be on site to supervisor 
contractors and will have identified natural features, and create a grading plan, marking 
desirable trees to protect them. 

M) Specific infonnation asked by the Director. 

N) In addition, for zoning district RC the following is required: 

1) USGS contours are provided, since the site is so flat the proposed contours will be 
similar. USGS map attached. 

2) The adopted township water and sewer standards will be met. Included is a letter from 
township Engineer stating there is both adequate sewer and water capacity to the site. 

3) Ten copies of a repmt defining the scope of the project: 

4) Attached seven copies of the project plan 24 X 36. 

0) Not applicable 

P) Not applicable 

Q) Not applicable 

R) In addition to the above requirements the Townships of Ordinances, Article VI should be 
reviewed since the total development buildings are over 25,000 square feet. The Planning 
cmmnission will review the development and will make recommendations to the Township 
Board for their consideration. The developments total building square footage is 53,294 square 
foot including stairs and storage areas. The square footage of the living area is 47,371 square 
feet. 



Part II 

ffio ...... ~@,=, ::::::i; r.'"-

LJ \ - £@ m'\'J' ./i(c":J rg; 
\ .. _, I \y \..S:; I 0 

JI l ~j 

U/v 2 1
, 2r11n 

V lJ I ::J 

-- .... _ -----------------
Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standard stated below: 

1. Project is consistent with the intent and purpose of this chapter: 
The use of this development creates a special use in that it is over 25,000 sq . feet the 

development is 53,294 square feet. Because of zoning conditions set forth : height will be 

only two stories with a single entrance from Sirhal and conditioned to 49 units. The 

design will not have negative on adjacent land, affect the health, safety and general 

welfare of the community. The development is below the allowable 14 units per acre and 

the traffic will be minimally impacted . 

2. Project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Townships Master 
Plan. 

The general architectural standards that are encouraged in the master plan we will 

incorporated many of these and others in our designs. Exterior finishes include brick, stone 

cementitious siding and other natural materials. Our architects will use primary natural 

colors with accent colors and roof slope and shingle color to meet the plan. 

The master plan has seven goals as we outlined in the rezoning and this development will meet 

these criteria being a LEED Green Development 

a. Preserve and Strengthen residential neighborhoods: Creating a cluster development, 
removing blight, in a walkable area creating housing diversity with a middle range of 
density. 

b. Preserve Open Space: The design is to cluster the units towards the front allowing a natural 
buffer/ greenspace and distance to the existing homes. 

c. Enhance The viability of Township Business: The resident make-up of work force housing 
to create employee for the local's businesses while being a public transportation and a 
walkable alternative along the Grand River business corridor. 

d. Maintain and Expand a Diverse Park System: Our development will provide outdoor space 
gazebo grilling areas tot lot and residential community garden and encourage the residents 
by our manager to utilize parks and other amenities such as the farmers market. 

e. Maintain Essential Public Services: Attract families with school age students to benefit the 
closed school . Be walkable/ utilize the public transportation and as an energy efficient 
development not tax the public As a LEED green developer all appliances are Energy 
Efficient/ design to silver or higher. 

f. Provide and support an Efficient safe Environmental Multi-modal Transportation: Provide a 
covered bike rack, promote public transportation, and wal kability (Note this site has a high 
walkability score) 



g. Promote Efficient Sustainable Growth Practices: This will be a LEED Green Development, is 
an Ideal infill redevelopment recycling existing material located on the site. (Concrete and 
trees) Discuss tax incentives for LEED certified or equivalent developments. 

h. Community Profile; Demographics: Walkable Communities, suited for growing families, 
housing diversity and moving forward the Township is aware of a need for Work force 
housing. 

3. Project is designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be hannonious and 
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity 
and that such use will change the essential character of the same area. 

As we have moved through the process in the last year, our town home design with one, 

two- and three-bedroom units, conditioned at 2 story will be a harmonious transition 

from the multi-story apartment building first proposed with the existing 3 story senior 

development to the west and the existing commercial properties along Grand River Blvd. 

again over 49 % of the site will be soft surface or greenspace will create a harmonious 

appearance. Two story town home design along the southern border the density will be 

away from the existing residential more towards the commercial uses ( Wholefoods). 

4. Project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 

The development will not adversely affect the area. In our meetings with the neighbors the 

main concern has been traffic and we have addressed this by reducing the number of units to 

49, being a townhome design not exceeding two stories, allowing one entrance on Sirhal. 

5. Project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of sunounding properties or the 
community. 

The development will provide needed work force diversity and a benefit to local business. 

The property is within 1/10 of a mile to a bus stop and is walkable to many businesses along 

Grand River Blvd . The development is a proposed 12.5 million investment replacing an 

abandoned trailer park with concrete waste, dead trees misc. construction waste. As a LEED 

green development, will have less impact on public services. 

6. Project is adequately served by public facilities such as existing roads, schools, stonn 
water drainage, public safety, public transportation and public recreation or that persons 
or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide 
any such service. Attached is a review letter from the city utilities department. The property has 



an eight-inch sewer line and a 8 inch water line. At the rear of the property is the Proctor storm 

sewer. 

7. Project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities is so designed. There will be no 
on-site water or sewage system. 

The area is served by local water and sewer to the property. 

8. Project will not involve uses activities processes materials and equipment and conditions 
of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare\by 
reason of excessive production of traffic noise smoke or fumes, glare or odors. 
The development will not create any detrimental or adverse conditions. A major concern is 

traffic, to the Warwick residential neighborhood. Conditions will allow one entrance on to Sirhal, 

with no through traffic to Greenclifff. Traffic memo shows low traffic at peak times are less than 

single family homes. This area has a high walk score, 1/10 mile to public transportation, expensive 

public parking rates close to campus and being close to commercial amenities has the potential 

to reduce congestion . 

9. Project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural 
resources of the Township, including but not limited t o prime agricultural soils water 
recharge areas lakes, rivers, streams, major forests wetlands and wildlife areas 

Part III 

The development is not impacting any of the above-mentioned features and isn't in a flood plain 

or have any wetlands. Development of the site will clean up concrete, construction debris, 

underground utilities and dead trees left over from the trailer park and construction of Whole 

foods. 

Signature line 

Special Use Pennit Application Attachment 

A) Site Plan 
a. thorough n. provided on 24 X 36 drawings. 



N-3 Report on the Intent and Scope of the Woodward 

@.::,/'= 
t::'I J - {Sj '\ - • I\ 3 \~.) ~~ llw7~ fg) 
.ILJ~' 2 5 ""·'g V . ~ L.Ui'· 

------------- --·--

The Woodward is located east of 2840 East Grand River Avenue in Meridian Twp. The 
development will be a 49-unit new construction town home design. The Woodward will be a 12.5 
million redevelopment investment of an underutilized and under-taxed blighted fo1mer trailer park. 
We are proposing safe, secure, new construction, energy efficient workforce residential living 
meaning residents will be less likely to leave the area and enjoy the many conveniences of this 
walkable area. Woodward will be a general occupancy development for singles, seniors and 
families with children and it is obvious the community' s concern for the future of their children. 
Providing newly constructed, safe, housing for the city's children in the near-tenn underscores 
leadership's commitment to the families/children of Meridian Twp. Workforce families need 
quality housing that elevates their esteem, stabilizes their families plus stimulates a more 
comfortable and productive lifestyle. Woda Management & Real Estate will manage the 
Woodward. Woda Management & Real Estate manages over 12,000 units, across 300 properties 
with a 97% occupancy rate. Woda Management & Real Estate oversite is three levels: District, 
Regional, and Local Management along with the same for prope1iy maintenance. The Woodward 
will generate 2 full time employees for management. Property reserves of $203,000 and will 
assure quality maintenance with replacement reserves of $15,900 per annum to sustain the property 
long-tenn. Woda will hire locally from the community, utilize apprentice programs, and will hire 
both local skilled and unskilled workers. In a 2016 construction development in NW Michigan 
(72-unit, new construction), 32 out of 3 7 suppliers and sub-contractors were sourced locally or 
regionally. 

The Woodward will be four ( 4) building community that will feature a total of fo1iy-nine ( 49) 

units and ninety-seven (97) bedrooms. 

Dimensions of the structures 

Building A-1: 182 feet by 58 feet 

Building B-2: 237 feet by 29 feet 

Building B-3: 23 7 feet by 29 feet 

Building C: 205 feet by 26 feet 



The property has three unique building plans. Building A-1 is along the south property line has 

8- 2bedroom units and 8- 1 bedroom units with a community space an office for all residents to 

utilize. The space will also contain a laundry facility and outside tot lot. Building plan B-2 and 

B-3 . Will have 10-2-bedroom units and 2- 3-bedroom units each. The last building type C-4 

will have 6- 2bedroom units and 3- 3 bedroom units . 

The property has a total of 104 parking spaces, slightly exceeding the required amount of spaces. 

included will be 16 handicap accessible parking spaces designed for car and van accessible 

design. The typical parking space is 10 x 20, the typical HDC parking space is 15 x 20 and the 

van accessible spaces are 18 x 20. 

In total there is 52,538 SF of parking and drive area. 

The buildings will be constructed using the slab on grade technique with wood framing. The 

exterior will be faced with a modem, yet timeless facade with a brick veneer base and mix of 

fiber cement siding. Energy star rated windows and fiberglass insulated doors will provide 

sustainable benefits to the units. 30-year architectural style anti-fungal shingles will be placed 

on all the roofs. Overall, these buildings will provide a healthy, quality living for the residents 

providing a long-tenn sense of community. 



 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

  

Date:  August 8, 2019 

 

Re: Special Use Permit #19111 & 19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 

Association)  

 

 

The Planning Commission held the public hearings for Special Use Permit #19111 and #19121 at 

its meeting on July 22, 2019.  Since the meeting the applicant has submitted a revised site plan that 

includes several changes to the layout of the project.  The revised site plan was received late in the 

week and therefore staff has not had time to review it in detail.  Additional comments will be 

provided at the meeting on August 12, 2019 and in a future memorandum. 

 

Planning Commission Options 

 

The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  

A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 

 

Attachment 

1. Revised site plan prepared by Monument Engineering Group Associates, Inc. dated August 7, 

2019 and received by the Township on August 8, 2019. 

  

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend 

Housing Association)\SUP 19111.pc2.doc 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ENGINEERS · SURVEYORS
CONSULTANTS · LAND PLANNERS

298 VETERAN
S DRIVE

FO
W

LERVILLE,
M

ICHIGAN
 48836

(O
FFICE) 517-223-3512

M
O

N
U

M
EN

TEN
GIN

EERIN
G.CO

M

SERVICE DISABLED VETERAN OW
NED

SM
ALL BUSINESS (SDVOSB)

Mo
nument  Eng i nee r i ng  Group Associates,In

c.

w
w

w
.m

issdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:
Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  M
ISS DIG

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

W
O

D
A

 C
O

O
PER

C
O

M
PA

N
IES, IN

C
.

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 W
A

Y

SITE PLA
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY:  AP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT :

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:P:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PMP:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PM 	DATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PMDATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PM8/6/2019 3:23 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF HE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF E LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF  LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF OCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF CATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF TIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF IONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ONS AND ELEVATIONS OF NS AND ELEVATIONS OF S AND ELEVATIONS OF  AND ELEVATIONS OF AND ELEVATIONS OF ND ELEVATIONS OF D ELEVATIONS OF  ELEVATIONS OF ELEVATIONS OF LEVATIONS OF EVATIONS OF VATIONS OF ATIONS OF TIONS OF IONS OF ONS OF NS OF S OF  OF OF F EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN XISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN STING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN TING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NG UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN G UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN DERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN RGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN GROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN OUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ND UTILITIES AS SHOWN D UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UTILITIES AS SHOWN UTILITIES AS SHOWN TILITIES AS SHOWN ILITIES AS SHOWN LITIES AS SHOWN ITIES AS SHOWN TIES AS SHOWN IES AS SHOWN ES AS SHOWN S AS SHOWN  AS SHOWN AS SHOWN S SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HOWN OWN WN N ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  N THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  HIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  IS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  S DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  AWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  WING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NG ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  G ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  E ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NLY APPROXIMATE.  LY APPROXIMATE.  Y APPROXIMATE.   APPROXIMATE.  APPROXIMATE.  PPROXIMATE.  PROXIMATE.  ROXIMATE.  OXIMATE.  XIMATE.  IMATE.  MATE.  ATE.  TE.  E.  .  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR O GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR UARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR RANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR NTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR TEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR EE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR E IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR S EITHER EXPRESSED OR  EITHER EXPRESSED OR EITHER EXPRESSED OR ITHER EXPRESSED OR THER EXPRESSED OR HER EXPRESSED OR ER EXPRESSED OR R EXPRESSED OR  EXPRESSED OR EXPRESSED OR XPRESSED OR PRESSED OR RESSED OR ESSED OR SSED OR SED OR ED OR D OR  OR OR R IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR MPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR PLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR LIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR IED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR D AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR S TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  TO THE COMPLETENESS OR TO THE COMPLETENESS OR O THE COMPLETENESS OR  THE COMPLETENESS OR THE COMPLETENESS OR HE COMPLETENESS OR E COMPLETENESS OR  COMPLETENESS OR COMPLETENESS OR OMPLETENESS OR MPLETENESS OR PLETENESS OR LETENESS OR ETENESS OR TENESS OR ENESS OR NESS OR ESS OR SS OR S OR  OR OR R ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR URACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR RACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR ACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR Y THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR  THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR HEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR EREOF. THE CONTRACTOR REOF. THE CONTRACTOR EOF. THE CONTRACTOR OF. THE CONTRACTOR F. THE CONTRACTOR . THE CONTRACTOR  THE CONTRACTOR THE CONTRACTOR HE CONTRACTOR E CONTRACTOR  CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR ONTRACTOR NTRACTOR TRACTOR RACTOR ACTOR CTOR TOR OR R SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR HALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR L BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR E EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR XCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR CLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR USIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR SIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR IVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR VELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LY RESPONSIBLE FOR Y RESPONSIBLE FOR  RESPONSIBLE FOR RESPONSIBLE FOR ESPONSIBLE FOR SPONSIBLE FOR PONSIBLE FOR ONSIBLE FOR NSIBLE FOR SIBLE FOR IBLE FOR BLE FOR LE FOR E FOR  FOR FOR OR R DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS TERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS RMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS MINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS INING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NG THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS G THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS HE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS E EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS XACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ACT UTILITY LOCATIONS CT UTILITY LOCATIONS T UTILITY LOCATIONS  UTILITY LOCATIONS UTILITY LOCATIONS TILITY LOCATIONS ILITY LOCATIONS LITY LOCATIONS ITY LOCATIONS TY LOCATIONS Y LOCATIONS  LOCATIONS LOCATIONS OCATIONS CATIONS ATIONS TIONS IONS ONS NS S AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF D ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF  ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF LEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF EVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF VATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF TIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF IONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ONS PRIOR TO THE START OF NS PRIOR TO THE START OF S PRIOR TO THE START OF  PRIOR TO THE START OF PRIOR TO THE START OF RIOR TO THE START OF IOR TO THE START OF OR TO THE START OF R TO THE START OF  TO THE START OF TO THE START OF O THE START OF  THE START OF THE START OF HE START OF E START OF  START OF START OF TART OF ART OF RT OF T OF  OF OF F CONSTRUCTION.ONSTRUCTION.NSTRUCTION.STRUCTION.TRUCTION.RUCTION.UCTION.CTION.TION.ION.ON.N..

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 S FRONT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 975

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMBUS, OH 43215

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODWARD WAY - SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL & GREENCLIFF DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, MI

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-2 12 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C-4 8 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY APT UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY COMMUNITY BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A-1 16 - 2 STORY APT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-3 12 - 2 STORY  TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PATIO AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' TALL LANDSCAPE BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' TALL LANDSCAPE BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE  & PAD (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PICNIC AREA WITH GRILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED BICYCLE RACK WITH 8 BICYCLE CAPACITY (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PLAYGROUND WITH BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION CAPACITY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION CAPACITY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL 50' SIRHAL DRIVE R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PAVING TO EXTEND AND MATCH INTO EXISTING PAVEMENT OF GREENCLIFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVABLE BOLLARDS FOR EMERGENCY EGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENCLIFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



ENGINEERS · SURVEYORS
CONSULTANTS · LAND PLANNERS

298 VETERAN
S DRIVE

FO
W

LERVILLE,
M

ICHIGAN
 48836

(O
FFICE) 517-223-3512

M
O

N
U

M
EN

TEN
GIN

EERIN
G.CO

M

SERVICE DISABLED VETERAN OW
NED

SM
ALL BUSINESS (SDVOSB)

Mo
nument  Eng i nee r i ng  Group Associates,In

c.

w
w

w
.m

issdig.org
1-800-482-7171

3 full working days before  you  dig:
Michigan's
One-Call

Utility
Notification
Organization

Call  M
ISS DIG

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

W
O

D
A

 C
O

O
PER

C
O

M
PA

N
IES, IN

C
.

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 W
A

Y

SITE PLA
N

PAVEM
EN

T LEG
EN

D

ZO
N

IN
G

 IN
FO

R
M

ATIO
N

PR
O

PO
SED

 PAR
KIN

G

2/U
N

IT PLU
S

25%
 EXPAN

SIO
N

 CAPACITY FO
R PRO

PO
SED U

N
ITS PLU

S
1/200 SF CO

M
M

U
N

ITY/O
FFICE SPACE M

IN
U

S
1/2 BICYCLE PARKIN

G SPACES

49 U
N

ITS X 2 = 98 SPACES PLU
S

98 X 25%
 = 25 EXPAN

SIO
N

 CAPACITY SPACES PLU
S

1,418 SF CO
M

M
U

N
ITY SPACE/200 = 7 SPACES M

IN
U

S
16 BICYCLE PARKIN

G SPACES/2 = 8

TO
TAL PARKIN

G REQ
U

IRED:
98 + 25 + 7 - 8 = 122 PARKIN

G SPACES
(97 SPACES AN

D 25 EXPAN
SIO

N
 CAPACITY SPACES)

PARKIN
G SPACES:

98
BARRIER FREE PARKIN

G SPACES:
16

EXPAN
SIO

N
 PARKIN

G SPACES:
24

EXPAN
SIO

N
 BARRIER FREE SPACES:

2
TO

TAL PARKIN
G PRO

VIDED:
124

(98 SPACES AN
D 26 EXPAN

SIO
N

 SPACES)

N
O

TES

1.
SIGN

 TO
 BE LO

CATED AN
D M

EET ALL TO
W

N
SHIP

STAN
DARDS

2.
SCREEN

IN
G SHALL BE PRO

VIDED FO
R ALL M

ECHAN
ICAL

EQ
U

IPM
EN

T.

3.
PARKIN

G LO
T ISLAN

DS SHALL BE FIN
ISHED IN

 GRASS,
GRO

U
N

D CO
VER O

R M
U

LCH.

4.
STO

RM
 W

ATER M
AN

AGEM
EN

T TO
 M

EET ALL TO
W

N
SHIP

&
 STATE STO

RM
 W

ATER M
AN

AGEM
EN

T REQ
U

IREM
EN

TS

THIS ZO
N

IN
G IN

FO
RM

ATIO
N

 IS TAKEN
 FRO

M
  M

ERIDIAN
TO

W
N

SHIP ZO
N

IN
G O

RDIN
AN

CE
DATED: JAN

U
ARY 25, 2019

SU
BJECT PARCEL ZO

N
IN

G CLASSIFICATIO
N

:
RCBU

ILDIN
G SETBACKS: 

REQ
U

IRED
 PRO

VIDED
FRO

N
T (W

EST):
        25'

         25'
SIDE (N

O
RTH):

        50'
         50'

SIDE (SO
U

TH):
        25'

         25'
REAR (EAST):

        50'
         50'

SU
BJECT PARCEL AREA:

        4.37 ACRES

PRO
PO

SED BU
ILDIN

G:
BU

ILDIN
G A-1:

        9,014 SF
BU

ILDIN
G B-2:

        7,109 SF
BU

ILDIN
G B-3:

        7,109 SF
BU

ILDIN
G C-4:

        6,047 SF
M

AIN
TEN

AN
CE BLDG:

        120 SF

LO
T CO

VERAGE:

U
N

IT DEN
SITY: 49 U

N
ITS/4.37 ACRES = 11.21 U

N
ITS/ACRE

BU
ILDIN

G CO
VERAGE:

29,399 SF BU
ILDIN

GS/190,297 SF PARCEL = 15.45%

IM
PERVIO

U
S SU

RFACE CO
VERAGE:

29,399 SF PR BU
ILDIN

GS + 2,363 SF PATIO
 AREA + 9.959 SF

SIDEW
ALK + 765 SF CO

N
CRETE PAD + 2,678 SF CU

RB AN
D

GU
TTER = 91.201 SF TO

TAL IM
PERVIO

U
S SU

RFACE
91,201 SF IM

PERVIO
U

S/190,297 SF PARCEL = 47.93%

ADJACEN
T ZO

N
IN

G:
N

O
RTH:

RA
SO

U
TH:

C-2
EAST:

RX
W

EST:
RC

LAN
D

SC
APE LEG

EN
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY:  AP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT :

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:P:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PMP:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PM 	DATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PMDATE:8/6/2019 3:23 PM8/6/2019 3:23 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF HE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF E LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF  LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF OCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF CATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF TIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF IONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ONS AND ELEVATIONS OF NS AND ELEVATIONS OF S AND ELEVATIONS OF  AND ELEVATIONS OF AND ELEVATIONS OF ND ELEVATIONS OF D ELEVATIONS OF  ELEVATIONS OF ELEVATIONS OF LEVATIONS OF EVATIONS OF VATIONS OF ATIONS OF TIONS OF IONS OF ONS OF NS OF S OF  OF OF F EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN XISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN STING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN TING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NG UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN G UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN DERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN RGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN GROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN OUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ND UTILITIES AS SHOWN D UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UTILITIES AS SHOWN UTILITIES AS SHOWN TILITIES AS SHOWN ILITIES AS SHOWN LITIES AS SHOWN ITIES AS SHOWN TIES AS SHOWN IES AS SHOWN ES AS SHOWN S AS SHOWN  AS SHOWN AS SHOWN S SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HOWN OWN WN N ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  N THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  HIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  IS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  S DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  AWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  WING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NG ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  G ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  E ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NLY APPROXIMATE.  LY APPROXIMATE.  Y APPROXIMATE.   APPROXIMATE.  APPROXIMATE.  PPROXIMATE.  PROXIMATE.  ROXIMATE.  OXIMATE.  XIMATE.  IMATE.  MATE.  ATE.  TE.  E.  .  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR O GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR UARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR RANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR NTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR TEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR EE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR E IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR S EITHER EXPRESSED OR  EITHER EXPRESSED OR EITHER EXPRESSED OR ITHER EXPRESSED OR THER EXPRESSED OR HER EXPRESSED OR ER EXPRESSED OR R EXPRESSED OR  EXPRESSED OR EXPRESSED OR XPRESSED OR PRESSED OR RESSED OR ESSED OR SSED OR SED OR ED OR D OR  OR OR R IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR MPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR PLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR LIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR IED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR D AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR S TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  TO THE COMPLETENESS OR TO THE COMPLETENESS OR O THE COMPLETENESS OR  THE COMPLETENESS OR THE COMPLETENESS OR HE COMPLETENESS OR E COMPLETENESS OR  COMPLETENESS OR COMPLETENESS OR OMPLETENESS OR MPLETENESS OR PLETENESS OR LETENESS OR ETENESS OR TENESS OR ENESS OR NESS OR ESS OR SS OR S OR  OR OR R ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR URACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR RACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR ACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR Y THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR  THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR HEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR EREOF. THE CONTRACTOR REOF. THE CONTRACTOR EOF. THE CONTRACTOR OF. THE CONTRACTOR F. THE CONTRACTOR . THE CONTRACTOR  THE CONTRACTOR THE CONTRACTOR HE CONTRACTOR E CONTRACTOR  CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR ONTRACTOR NTRACTOR TRACTOR RACTOR ACTOR CTOR TOR OR R SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR HALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR L BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR E EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR XCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR CLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR USIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR SIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR IVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR VELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LY RESPONSIBLE FOR Y RESPONSIBLE FOR  RESPONSIBLE FOR RESPONSIBLE FOR ESPONSIBLE FOR SPONSIBLE FOR PONSIBLE FOR ONSIBLE FOR NSIBLE FOR SIBLE FOR IBLE FOR BLE FOR LE FOR E FOR  FOR FOR OR R DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS TERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS RMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS MINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS INING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NG THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS G THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS HE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS E EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS XACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ACT UTILITY LOCATIONS CT UTILITY LOCATIONS T UTILITY LOCATIONS  UTILITY LOCATIONS UTILITY LOCATIONS TILITY LOCATIONS ILITY LOCATIONS LITY LOCATIONS ITY LOCATIONS TY LOCATIONS Y LOCATIONS  LOCATIONS LOCATIONS OCATIONS CATIONS ATIONS TIONS IONS ONS NS S AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF D ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF  ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF LEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF EVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF VATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF TIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF IONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ONS PRIOR TO THE START OF NS PRIOR TO THE START OF S PRIOR TO THE START OF  PRIOR TO THE START OF PRIOR TO THE START OF RIOR TO THE START OF IOR TO THE START OF OR TO THE START OF R TO THE START OF  TO THE START OF TO THE START OF O THE START OF  THE START OF THE START OF HE START OF E START OF  START OF START OF TART OF ART OF RT OF T OF  OF OF F CONSTRUCTION.ONSTRUCTION.NSTRUCTION.STRUCTION.TRUCTION.RUCTION.UCTION.CTION.TION.ION.ON.N..

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 S FRONT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 975

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMBUS, OH 43215

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODWARD WAY - SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL & GREENCLIFF DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, MI

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-2 12 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C-4 8 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY COMMUNITY  BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A-1 16 - 2 STORY APT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-3 12 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' TALL LANDSCAPE BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' TALL LANDSCAPE BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENCLIFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY APT UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVERSE CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULAR SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER FREE SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RX ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RA ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RC ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONIFEROUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORNAMENTAL TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RC ZONING



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  August 23, 2019 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 

Association), construct a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet 
in size on an undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 17-377-031. 

 
 
The public hearing for Special Use Permit #19121 was held at the July 22, 2019 Planning 
Commission meeting.  Since the public hearing the applicant has submitted a revised site plan that 
includes several changes.  The proposed 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of 
four buildings decreased in size from 53,353 square feet to 52,861 square feet in size, a 492 square 
foot reduction.  The staff report for SUP #19111 should be referenced for a more complete 
overview of the revised site plan. 
 
At the last meeting the Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend approval 
of the special use permit at its next meeting. 
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the 
proposed special use permit.   A resolution to recommend approval of the special use permit to the 
Township Board is provided. 
 
 Motion to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Special Use Permit #19121. 
 
Attachment 
1. Resolution to recommend approval. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 
Association)\SUP 19121.pc3.doc 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL Special Use Permit #19121 
 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association)  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 
day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             
 
  _________________________________________________________________                                                            
 
ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              
 
 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 
_________________________. 
 

WHEREAS, Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association has submitted a request to 
construct a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on the north 4.37 acres of Parcel 
Number 17-377-031; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of 
four buildings totaling 52,861 square feet in size; and  
 

WHEREAS, a special use permit is required for constructing a group of buildings totaling more 
than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on July 22, 
2019 and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated July 19, 2019, 
August 8, 2019, and August 23, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned RC (Multiple Family), which permits the 
construction of a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in floor area by special use 
permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project is consistent with the conditions established in 

Rezoning #19010; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project meets the design standards of the RC (Multiple 

Family) zoning district listed in Section 86-376(g) of the Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the general standards for granting a 
special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 
WHEREAS, public water and sanitary sewer services serve the subject site. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Special Use Permit #19121, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 
SUP #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Page 2 
 

1. Approval is in accordance with the site plan prepared by prepared by Monument Engineering 
Group Associates, Inc. dated August 7, 2019 (revision date August 21, 2019) and received by the 
Township on August 22, 2019. 

 
2. Approval of the special use permit is subject to all conditions placed on Special Use Permit 

#19111 by the Planning Commission. 
 
3. Any future building additions will require an amendment to the special use permit. 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________                                   
 
   _______________________________________________________________________                                  
                                                                                             
  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                                                            
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 26th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       John Scott-Craig 
       Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 
Association)\SUP 19121 resolution PC approval.docx 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  July 19, 2019 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 

Association), construct a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex 
comprised of four buildings totaling 53,353 square feet on the north 4.37 
acres of  an undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 17-377-031. 

 
 
Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association has requested a special use permit to construct 
a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of four buildings totaling approximately 
53,353 square feet in size on the north 4.37 acres of Parcel Number 17-377-031.  The project site 
is zoned RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 units per acre) and located east of Sirhal Drive, north of 
Whole Foods, and west of Greencliff Drive.  In addition to the special use permit for the multiple 
family housing development, a special use permit is required to construct a group of buildings 
greater than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area (SUP #19121).  The special use permits are 
being processed concurrently. 
 
The following table summarizes the number and type of unit located within each building: 
 

 Building size 
(sq. ft.) 

No. of 
units 

1 bedroom/ 
1 bathroom 

2 bedroom/ 
1.5 bathroom 

3 bedroom/ 
2 bathroom 

Building A-1 16,230 16 8 (686 sq. ft./unit) 
8 (894 sq. 
ft./unit) 

0 

Building B-2 13,374 12 0 
10 (1,020 sq. 

ft./unit 
2 (1,176 sq. ft./unit) 

Building B-3 13,374 12 0 
10 (1,020 sq. 

ft./unit) 
2 (1,176 sq. ft./unit) 

Building C-4 10,255 9 0 
6 (1,020 sq. 

ft./unit) 

3 (2, 1,176 sq. ft. 
units & 1, 1,155 sq. 

ft. unit) 
 
Each building would be two-stories in height and not contain basements.  All townhouse units 
would have a patio in the rear.  A 120 square foot maintenance shed would be located north of 
Building C-4 at the northwest portion of the site. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

In June 2019 the project site was rezoned (Rezoning #19010) to RC with conditions voluntarily 
offered by the applicant, which included the following: 
 
 The property will only be developed as an affordable housing development using Michigan 

State Housing and Development Authority (MSHDA) programs and resources. 
 The development will not exceed two stories in height. 
 Sirhal Drive will be extended to create one hundred feet of public road frontage and be 

dedicated to the appropriate public utility. 
 The remainder parcel created by the land division will be combined with an adjacent parcel to 

the west so the division of the property does not create an island parcel. 
 The number of units will not exceed 49 allowing for one ingress and egress. 

 
LOCATION MAP 

 

 
 
Master Plan 
 
The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject site in the R2-
Residential 0.5 – 3.5 dwelling units per acre category.  The applicant is proposing 49 units; with 
density of 11.21 dwelling units per acre the project is consistent with the maximum permitted for 
the 4.37 acre site. 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 
Zoning 
 
The subject site is zoned RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 units per acre).  The applicant will be 
required to dedicate an additional 50 feet of right-of-way at the east end of Sirhal Drive to the 
Ingham County Road Department to meet the minimum lot width requirement of 100 feet.  There 
is not a minimum lot area requirement for multiple family residential developments containing 
three or more units in the RC district.  The following table illustrates the minimum lot width and 
lot area requirements for the RC zoning district. 
 

Zoning District Lot Width (feet) Lot Area (square feet) 

RC (Multiple Family) 100 
11,000 for two families, no 

minimum for multiple family 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 4 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

ZONING MAP 
 

 
 
Physical Features 
 
The site was formerly occupied by Mobile Home Manor and is currently undeveloped.  The 
topography is generally level, with elevations ranging from 842 feet above mean sea level near the 
northeastern corner of the property and gradually rising to 848 feet above mean sea level at the 
southern portion of the site.  Vegetation mainly consists of overgrown brush.  The applicant 
submitted a tree survey which depicts trees greater than 12 inches in diameter on the property. 
 
The Township Wetland Map and the Flood Insurance Rate Map indicate neither wetlands nor 
floodplain are present on or near the site.  The site has no special designation on the Township 
Greenspace Plan. 
 
Streets and Traffic 
 
The site fronts on Sirhal Drive and stubbed Greencliff Drive unimproved right-of-way.  Both streets 
are two-lane roads designated as Local Streets on the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in 
the zoning ordinance.  Sirhal Drive has curb and gutter east of Jo Don Drive.  Greencliff Drive was 
platted as part of the Eastwood Acres subdivision (1954).  The Ingham County Road Department 
(ICRD) does not have traffic count information for Sirhal Drive or Greencliff Drive. 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 5 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

The applicant submitted a trip generation analysis which estimates future vehicle trips that could 
be generated by the proposed development.  The Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) trip 
generation rates for Multifamily Housing Low-Rise (Land Use Code 220) were selected to 
represent the proposed development.  The following table summarizes findings from the 
submitted trip generation analysis. 
 

Description Size 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Weekday 
In Out Total In Out Total 

Multifamily Housing 
(Low-Rise), Code 220 

53 
Units 

6 20 26 21 13 34 360 

  
A traffic assessment is required for new special uses which could generate between 50 and 99 
directional trips during morning and afternoon peak hours of traffic.  A traffic impact study is 
required for new special uses which would generate over 100 directional trips during morning 
and afternoon peak hours of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.  An average day is the 
average 24-hour total of all vehicle trips counted to and from a study site from Monday through 
Friday.  Based on the projected traffic volumes neither a traffic assessment nor traffic impact study 
is required. 
 
CATA bus service is available approximately three-tenths mile south of the site, along Grand River 
Avenue west of Whole Foods.  Route 1 travels to Meridian Mall, Meijer, the Michigan State 
University campus, and Downtown Lansing. 
 
Public Utilities 
 
Municipal water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject site.  The location and 
capacity of utilities will be reviewed in detail during site plan review if the special use permit is 
approved. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
The applicant is requesting a special use permit to construct a 49-unit townhouse and apartment 
complex comprised of four buildings.  All multiple family housing projects with more than two 
units must receive special use permit approval from the Planning Commission.  Special use 
permits for multiple family housing are evaluated using the nine general special use permit criteria 
listed in Section 86-126 of the zoning ordinance and specific standards for multiple family projects 
found in Section 86-376. 
 
The RC zoning district allows a maximum density of 14 dwelling units per acre.  The applicant is 
proposing 49 units; with density of 11.21 dwelling units per acre, the project is consistent with the 
maximum permitted for the 4.37 acre site.  Compliance with design standards listed in Section 86-
376(g) of the zoning ordinance are shown on the following chart. 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 6 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Design Objective Standard Proposed 

   

Minimum lot width 100 feet 
100 feet (with 50 foot Sirhal Drive 
right-of-way extension) 

Maximum building coverage 35% 15.72% 
Minimum open space 35% 50.31% 
Front yard setback 25 feet  25 feet 
Side yard setback 25 feet 80 feet (east) & 25 feet (west) 
Rear yard setback 40 feet 110 feet 
Distance from a single-family zoning district 
boundary 

50 feet 110 feet (north) & 80 feet (east) 

Minimum distance between buildings (when 
widest dimensions face each other) 

60 feet 
Bldgs. B-2 & B-3: 55 feet 
Bldgs. B-3 & C-4: 90 feet 

Minimum distance between buildings (when 
narrowest dimensions face widest dimension) 

40 feet Bldg. A-1 & Bldgs. B-2/B-3: 105 feet 

Maximum building height 35 feet 26 feet 

Maximum building dimension 200 feet 

Bldg. A-1: 182 feet in length 
Bldg. B-2: 237 feet in length 
Bldg. B-3: 237 feet in length 
Bldg. C-4: 205 feet in length  

 
Variances 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-376(f)(1) states the minimum distance between two-story buildings 
whose widest dimensions face each other is 60 feet.  The submitted site plan shows Buildings B-2 
and B-3 separated by 55 feet, therefore a five foot variance is required from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals. 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-376(4)(f)(7)(i) states no entrance to a multiple-family structure 
containing three or more units shall be located closer to any street, access road, driveway, or 
parking area than 25 feet.  The submitted site plan depicts entrances of Building A-1 located 20 
feet from the parking area, entrances of Buildings B-2 and B-3 located 12 feet from the parking 
area, and entrances of Building C-4 located 10 feet from the parking area, therefore a five foot 
variance for Building A-1, a 13 foot variance for Buildings B-2 and B-3, and a 15 foot variance for 
Building C-4 is required from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-376(4)(f)(7)(ii) states no multiple-family structure containing three 
or more units shall be located closer to any street, access road, driveway, or parking area than 20 
feet.  The submitted site plan depicts the wall of Building C-4 located 15 feet from the parking area 
and the walls of Buildings B-2 and B-3 located 17 feet from the parking area, therefore a three foot 
variance for Buildings B-2 and B-3 and a five foot variance for Building C-4 is required from the 
Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 7 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Section 86-376(4)(f)(7)(iii) states no single building or connected building may 
exceed 200 feet in any one dimension, and that all buildings shall be arranged to permit 
emergency vehicle access, by some practical means, to all sides.  The submitted site plan indicates 
Buildings B-2 and B-3 are 237 feet in length and Building C-4 is 205 feet in length, therefore a 37 
foot variance for Buildings B-2 and B-3 and a five foot variance for Building C-4 is required from 
the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Parking 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-755 states two parking spaces must be provided for each dwelling 
unit, plus expansion capacity of 25 percent.  With 49 units proposed and 1,418 square feet of 
community/office space 130 parking spaces are required (98 parking spaces for the residential 
units, seven parking spaces for the community/office space, and 25 parking spaces for the 25 
percent expansion capacity).  The expansion capacity parking is not required to be built at this 
time.  The applicant must demonstrate the ability to construct the additional parking, in 
conformance with the zoning ordinance, should the need for more parking arise in the future. 
 
One bicycle parking space must be provided for every ten motor vehicle parking spaces required.  
With 105 parking spaces required to serve the development (not including expansion capacity 
parking), 11 bicycle parking spaces are required (six bike racks).  The submitted site plan indicates 
16 bicycle parking spaces are proposed.  The ordinance allows the number of required motor 
vehicle parking spaces on the site to be reduced by one motor vehicle parking space for every two 
bicycle parking spaces installed on a site, up to a maximum of 10 percent of the total number of 
required motor vehicle parking spaces.  Using this formula the required number of motor vehicle 
parking spaces can be reduced by eight spaces.  With the allowed reduction granted for bicycle 
parking, the total required motor vehicle parking is reduced to 97 spaces and 99 are provided. 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-756(10) states where a parking area with a capacity of 50 or more 
vehicles, or its associated internal access or service drives, adjoins a residential district, a 
landscaped buffer, at least 40 feet wide, must be provided between the parking area and the 
adjoining property and a vertical screen must be erected consisting of a masonry wall, plant 
materials, a landscaped earth berm, or a combination thereof, as appropriate for the site, no less 
than four feet in height.  The parking area along the east property line and the expansion parking 
area is located 20 feet from the RX (One and Two Family Residential) zoning district, therefore a 
20 foot variance is required from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-756(14) states where a parking area or its associated internal access 
or service drives adjoins any nonresidential district, a landscaped buffer, at least 15 feet wide, 
must be provided between the parking area and the property line and a vertical screen must be 
erected consisting of a masonry wall, plant material, a landscaped earth berm, or a combination 
thereof, as appropriate for the site, no less than three feet in height.  The submitted site plan shows 
the parking area along the south property line is located five feet from the C-2 (Commercial) 
zoning district, therefore a five foot variance is required from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (July 22, 2019) 
Page 8 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

The following list summarizes the required variances: 
 
 Five foot variance for the setback between Buildings B-2 and B-3 
 Five foot variance for the setback between entrances to Building A-1 and the parking area 
 13 foot variance for the setback between entrances to Buildings B-2 and B-3 and the parking 

area 
 15 foot variance for the setback between entrances to Building C-4 and the parking area 
 Three foot variance for the setback between the wall of Buildings B-2 and B-3 and the parking 

area 
 Five foot variance for the setback between the wall of Building C-4 and the parking area 
 37 foot variance for the maximum dimension of Buildings B-2 and B-3 
 Five foot variance for the maximum dimension of Building C-4 
 20 foot variance for the parking setback from an adjacent residential zoning district 
 Five foot variance for the parking setback from an adjacent nonresidential zoning district 
 
The submitted building elevations indicate fiber cement siding is the primary building material 
with accents of brick veneer surrounding entrance doors.  Asphalt shingles would cover the roof. 
 
If the project is approved by the Planning Commission, the applicant will be required to submit for 
Site Plan Review before work on the project can begin.  Site Plan Review is a detailed staff-level 
analysis of the project which includes reviews of storm water, utilities, landscaping, grading, and 
other issues to ensure compliance with all applicable ordinances as well as confirmation of approvals 
from local agencies such as the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office and Road Department. 
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  
A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachments 
1. Special use permit application dated June 22, 2019 and received by the Township on June 25, 

2019. 
2. Trip generation analysis prepared by Bergmann Associates dated April 1, 2019 and received by 

the Township on June 25, 2019. 
3. Square footage calculations dated June 12, 2019 and received by the Township on July 18, 2019. 
4. Site plans prepared by PCI Design Group, Inc. dated July 15, 2019 and received by the Township 

on July 18, 2019. 
5. Building elevations and and floor plans prepared by PCI Design Group, Inc. dated June 25, 2019 

and received by the Township on July 11, 2019. 
6. Topographic and tree survey prepared by Monument Engineering Group Associates, Inc. dated 

July 15, 2019 and received by the Township on July 15, 2019. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend 
Housing Association)\SUP 19111.pc1.doc 





























PR
O

JE
C

T:
Th

e 
W

oo
dw

ar
d

LO
C

AT
IO

N
:M

er
id

ia
n 

Tw
p.

D
AT

E:
7/

12
/2

01
9

U
N

IT
 A

R
EA

 C
A

LC
U

LA
TI

O
N

S

U
N

IT
 T

YP
E

ST
O

R
AG

E
D

EC
K/

BA
LC

O
N

Y
C

O
VE

R
 P

O
R

C
H

G
AR

AG
E

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 U
N

IT
 L

IV
IN

G
 

AR
EA

TO
TA

L 
U

N
IT

 L
IV

IN
G

 
AR

EA
 A

LL
 F

LO
O

R
S

U
N

IT
 A

R
EA

 
IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 S

TO
R

AG
E 

& 
PO

R
C

H
1 

BR
  U

N
IT

 
11

68
6

69
7.

00
1 

BR
 H

C
 U

N
IT

11
68

6
69

7.
00

2 
BR

 U
N

IT
 

11
89

4
90

5.
00

2 
BR

H
C

 U
N

IT
 

11
89

4
90

5.
00

2B
R

TH
 U

IT
12

10
20

1,
03

2.
00

3B
R

TH
 U

N
IT

12
11

76
1,

18
8.

00
3B

R
 H

C
 U

N
IT

12
11

55
1,

16
7.

00
0.

00
0.

00
* N

O
TE

:  
AR

EA
S 

AB
O

VE
 D

O
 N

O
T 

IN
C

LU
D

E 
AN

Y 
FA

C
E 

BR
IC

K

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

/C
O

M
M

O
N

 A
R

EA
 C

A
LC

U
LA

TI
O

N
S 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

SP
AC

E 
& 

ST
AI

R
 A

R
EA

EX
ER

C
IS

E,
 

LI
BR

AR
Y,

 L
AU

N
D

R
Y

EN
TR

Y
O

FF
IC

E 
& 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
AR

EA
S

R
ES

TR
O

O
M

S
PO

R
C

H
M

EC
H

AN
IC

AL
 &

 
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
AR

EA
14

18
14

18
42

8
40

42
8

G
R

O
SS

 A
R

EA
 O

F 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 =

 
1,

62
2.

00
G

R
O

SS
 A

R
EA

 O
F 

EA
C

H
 S

TA
IR

 &
 B

R
EE

ZW
A

Y 
FL

O
O

R
 =

 
46

8

IN
D

IV
ID

U
A

L 
A

PA
R

TM
EN

T 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 T

YP
E

# 
O

F 
BL

D
G

S 
IN

 
PR

O
JE

C
T

1B
R

-U
N

IT
1B

R
H

C
 

U
N

IT
 

2B
R

-U
N

IT
2B

R
H

C
 

U
N

IT
2B

R
TH

 
U

N
IT

 
3B

R
TH

  
U

N
IT

3B
R

H
C

 
U

N
IT

ST
AI

R
 

AR
EA

C
O

M
M

. 
BL

D
G

TO
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

LI
VI

BL
E 

AR
EA

TO
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

BL
D

G
 A

R
EA

 
TE

N
AN

T 
ST

O
R

AG
E

C
O

VE
R

 
PO

R
C

H
BL

D
G

 A
-1

 
1

6
2

5
3

0
0

0
4

1
12

,6
40

.0
0

16
,2

30
.0

0
17

6.
00

28
4.

00
BL

D
G

 B
2

0
0

0
0

10
2

0
25

,1
04

.0
0

26
,7

48
.0

0
28

8.
00

1,
35

6.
00

BL
D

G
 C

1
0

0
0

0
6

2
1

9,
62

7.
00

10
,2

55
.0

0
10

8.
00

52
0.

00
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E 
BL

D
G

0.
00

12
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
TO

TA
L

4
6

2
5

3
26

6
1

4
1

57
2.

00
2,

16
0.

00
TO

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

ET
 R

EN
TA

B
LE

 - 
ST

O
R

A
G

E 
- P

O
R

C
H

 A
R

EA
 =

47
,3

71
.0

0
57

2.
00

2,
16

0.
00

TO
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

G
R

O
SS

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

EA
 =

53
,3

53
.0

0
TO

TA
L 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L 

A
R

EA
=

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 60 39
0 00 0 0 0 0

82

SQ
U

AR
E 

FO
O

TA
G

E 
C

AL
C

U
LA

TI
O

N
S

20
4

51
0

69
0

11
5568

6
68

6

0

89
4

89
4



O
W

N
ER

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

W
O

D
A

 C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
D

EX

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P.

, M
IC

H
IG

A
N

PR
O

JE
C

T 
D

A
TA

LI
M

IT
ED

 D
IV

ID
EN

D
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
LI

M
IT

ED
 P

A
R

TN
ER

SH
IP

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

C
.1

SI
TE

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS BUILDING SITE COVERAGE:  29,912 SF :  29,912 SF 29,912 SF TOTAL SITE AREA:   190,296 SF = 4.368 ACRES :   190,296 SF = 4.368 ACRES SITE DENSITY:    11.22 UNITS/ACRE 11.22 UNITS/ACRE PERCENT OF BUILDING COVERAGE: 15.72%15.72%

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SITE COVERAGE SQUARE FOOTAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING  TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQ'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
# OF UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDINGS - RESIDENTIAL UNIT DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,014 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,234 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,912 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEHICLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
105 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
99 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BICYCLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
99 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
99 CARS + 18 BICYCLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SITE SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
190,296 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,912 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE CALCULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1BR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2BRHC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2BR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1BRHC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3BRHC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3BR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,014 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,234 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,419 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
51,232 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
94,563 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.69%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALKS & PATIOS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING & DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERCENT OF IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE GROUP: RESIDENTIAL R2 & R3 APT & TH  BLDGS. CONSTRUCT. TYPE: VB - SLAB ON GRADE,             WOOD FRAME  

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINT. BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE & IMPERVIOUS AREA PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORED SITE PLAN OVERLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A COLORED FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B COLORED FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C COLORED FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2b

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4b

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6b



1
.

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 B

IC
Y

C
L
E

 R
A

C
K

 -
 8

 B
IC

Y
C

L
E

C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 P

E
R

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
, 

T
W

O
S

T
A

T
IO

N
S

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 T

O
T

A
L
 C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

 1
6
.E

2
. 
  

T
R

A
S

H
 D

U
M

P
S

T
E

R
3
.

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L
E

 P
L
A

Y
G

R
O

U
N

D
 W

IT
H

 B
E

N
C

H
4
.

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L
E

 P
IC

N
IC

 A
R

E
A

 W
IT

H
 G

R
IL

L
5
.

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L
E

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

L
E

R
O

U
T

E
 T

O
 F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

T
R

A
N

C
E

S
6
.

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 T
O

 M
E

E
T

 A
L
L

T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

.
7
.

N
E

W
 S

ID
E

W
A

L
K

 -
 4

' T
Y

P
IC

A
L
 -

 6
' A

T
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
8
.

S
IG

N
 T

O
 B

E
 L

O
C

A
T

E
D

 A
N

D
 M

E
E

T
 A

L
L

T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
  

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
.

9
.

S
T

O
R

M
 W

A
T

E
R

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 T
O

 M
E

E
T

 A
L
L

T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
 &

 S
T

A
T

E
 S

T
O

R
M

 W
A

T
E

R
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

. 
  

  
  

  
 

S
IT

E
 A

M
E

N
IT

IE
S

 K
E

Y

UN-IMPROVED
GREENCLIFF DRIVE

SIRHAL

DRIVE EXT.

328.27'  N83°55'29"E

5
1
7
.8

7
'  

N
0
0
°0

0
'3

4
"W

325.56'  N89°33'08"E
18.59'
N89°44'12"E

3
3
2
.6

9
'  

S
0
0
°1

5
'5

4
"E

1
4
1
.0

0
'  

S
0
0
°1

3
'2

3
"E

19.98'
S89°47'43"W

22.30'
S89°47'43"E

6
6
.0

0
'

S
0
0
°1

3
'4

7
"E

BUILDING A-1

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B
-2

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B
-3

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
-4

1
 S

T
O

R
Y

C
O

M
M

.
B

L
D

G
.

1
7

1
0

1

3

5

6
6

7

7

7

8

9

9
2

5
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

50' BUILDING SETBACK

25' BUILDING SETBACK

6

7

1
0

6
7

1
01
0

1
2

1
2

6

1
3

1

2

2

5

5

5

5

5

5

8

AD
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 5
0'

SI
R

H
AL

 D
R

IV
E

R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

2
5

' B
L

D
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25' BLDG SETBACK

R
E

M
O

V
A

B
L

E
 B

O
L

L
A

R
D

S
F

O
R

 E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 E

G
R

E
S

S

5
0

' B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

16 UNIT - 2STORY APT BUILDING

1
2

 -
 2

 S
T

O
R

Y
 T

O
W

N
H

O
U

S
E

 A
P

T
S

.

1
2

 -
 2

 S
T

O
R

Y
 T

O
W

N
H

O
U

S
E

 A
P

T
S

.

8
 -

 2
 S

T
O

R
Y

 T
O

W
N

H
O

U
S

E
 A

P
T

S
.

1
  

S
T

O
R

Y
A

P
T

 U
N

IT

EXISTING TREES  TO REMAIN

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

E
E

S
  

T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

E
E

S
  

T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IN

G
L

E
 F

A
M

IL
Y

 H
O

U
S

E
S

EXISTING SINGLE FAMILY HOUSES

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 P
O

N
D

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER MAIN

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
EXISTING 8" SANITARY SEWER STB
INTO SITE

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

O
W

E
R

P
O

L
E

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 F

IR
E

 H
Y

D
R

A
N

T
,

A
S

S
U

M
E

D
 8

" 
W

A
T

E
R

 M
A

IN
 T

O
T

H
IS

 P
O

IN
T

.

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

O
W

E
R

P
O

L
E

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

A
P

 O
N

 8
" 

W
A

T
E

R
M

A
IN

 I
N

 2
0

' E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

2

M
A

IN
T

B
L

D
G

R
X

 Z
O

N
IN

G

RA ZONING

R
C

 Z
O

N
IN

G

C-2 ZONING

R
C

 Z
O

N
IN

G

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

P
A

T
IO

EXPANSION PARKING

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

FA
M

IL
Y

H
O

U
SI

N
G

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

09
-0

6-
20

18

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19
07

-0
2-

19
07

-1
5-

19

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 BR HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG. TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.368 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1&2 STORY BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 BR HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCCUPANCY:  FAMILY  I.B.C. OCCUPANCY:  R-2 & R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIAN TWP., MI

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.21 U/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,883.6 S.F./UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQ PER UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND VINYL SIDING. I.B.C. CONSTRUCTION TYPE:  5-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACES REQ.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL UNITS =

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION TYPE:  SLAB ON GRADE, WOOD FRAME W/ BRICK VENEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 STORY BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
190,296 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BLDG. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/5

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 BR HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1&2 STORY BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO EXISTING STRUCTURES ON SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO NATURAL WATER FEATURES ON SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL BUILDING COVERAGE 29,912 S.F = 15.72 %%% SEE SHEET S2 FOR DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREES TO BE SAVE ARE SHOWN ON PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOTOR VEHICLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/1000 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
49U/1418 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BICYCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/10 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
# OF UNITS/SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQ. PER S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.02 SPACES/UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
25%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
99 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS SURFACE INCLUDING BUILDINGS = 94,563 SF = 49.69 %%% SEE SHEET S2 FOR DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET S2 FOR OPEN SPACE CALCULATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING "RC"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1" = 40'-0"



B
U

IL
D

IN
G

A
R

E
A

P
A

R
K

IN
G

A
R

E
A

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 &

P
A

T
IO

 A
R

E
A

7,
27

2 
S.

F.

7,
27

2 
S.

F.
9,

01
4 

S.
F.

6,
23

4 
S.

F.
12

0 
S.

F.

SI
D

EW
AL

KS
 &

 P
AT

IO
S 

= 
13

,4
19

 S
.F

.

PA
R

KI
N

G
 5

1,
23

2 
S.

F.

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

FA
M

IL
Y

H
O

U
SI

N
G

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

09
-0

6-
20

18

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19
07

-0
2-

19
07

-1
5-

19

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E 

&
 O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E 

A
RE

A
 P

LA
N

S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1" = 30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
# OF UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,014 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,234 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,912 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SITE SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
190,296 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
29,912 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE CALCULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9,014 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,272 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,234 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,419 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
51,232 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
94,563 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.69%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALKS & PATIOS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING & DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERCENT OF IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINT. BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERCENTAGE OF BUILDING COVERAGE = 15.72%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. IMPERVIOUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
% REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
% PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
70%

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.69%

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.31%

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING AREA CALCULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLOWABLE BUILDING COVERAGE = 35%%%





U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 "
A

"P
LA

N
S

A
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACRYLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREEWILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-12102-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACRYLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREEWILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-12102-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E 

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

C
O

D
ED

 N
O

TE
S

1.
30

 Y
EA

R
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 S
TY

LE
AN

TI
-F

U
N

G
AL

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S.

2.
FI

BE
R

G
LA

SS
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

 E
N

TR
Y

D
O

O
R

S.
3.

EN
ER

G
Y 

ST
AR

 R
AT

ED
 W

IN
D

O
W

S.
4.

VE
N

TE
D

 S
O

FF
IT

S 
AN

D
 R

ID
G

E
VE

N
TS

.
5.

AL
U

M
. G

U
TT

ER
S 

& 
D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
.

6.
PR

E-
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 F
AS

C
IA

  &
 S

O
FF

IT
S.

7.
FI

BE
R

 C
EM

EN
T 

SI
D

IN
G

.
8.

4"
 F

AC
E 

BR
IC

K 
VE

N
EE

R
.

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

4

1

2
3

5

6

7
8

7

1

2
3

4
5 6

7
8

1

4
5 6

7
8

4

1

3

5

6

7
8

7

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A
2

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'





BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

 P
LA

N
S

A
3

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



4

1

2
3

5

6 7

8

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0C

O
D

ED
 N

O
TE

S
1.

30
 Y

EA
R

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 S

TY
LE

AN
TI

-F
U

N
G

AL
 S

H
IN

G
LE

S.
2.

FI
BE

R
G

LA
SS

 IN
SU

LA
TE

D
 E

N
TR

Y
D

O
O

R
S.

3.
EN

ER
G

Y 
ST

AR
 R

AT
ED

 W
IN

D
O

W
S.

4.
VE

N
TE

D
 S

O
FF

IT
S 

AN
D

 R
ID

G
E

VE
N

TS
.

5.
AL

U
M

. G
U

TT
ER

S 
& 

D
O

W
N

SP
O

U
TS

.
6.

PR
E-

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

AS
C

IA
  &

 S
O

FF
IT

S.
7.

FI
BE

R
 C

EM
EN

T 
SI

D
IN

G
.

8.
4"

 F
AC

E 
BR

IC
K 

VE
N

EE
R

.

R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E 

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

6

2

7 8

5

8

4
1

5

3

6

8

7

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A
4

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'





BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

 P
LA

N
S

A
5

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



C
O

D
ED

 N
O

TE
S

1.
30

 Y
EA

R
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 S
TY

LE
AN

TI
-F

U
N

G
AL

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S.

2.
FI

BE
R

G
LA

SS
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

 E
N

TR
Y

D
O

O
R

S.
3.

EN
ER

G
Y 

ST
AR

 R
AT

ED
 W

IN
D

O
W

S.
4.

VE
N

TE
D

 S
O

FF
IT

S 
AN

D
 R

ID
G

E
VE

N
TS

.
5.

AL
U

M
. G

U
TT

ER
S 

& 
D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
.

6.
PR

E-
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 F
AS

C
IA

  &
 S

O
FF

IT
S.

7.
FI

BE
R

 C
EM

EN
T 

SI
D

IN
G

.
8.

4"
 F

AC
E 

BR
IC

K 
VE

N
EE

R
.

1

24

5

7 8

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E 

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0

4

1

2
3

5

6 7

8

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

1

24

5

7

8

1

2

34 56

7
8

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A
6

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
06

-2
5-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'







 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
   

Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  August 23, 2019 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 

Association), construct a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex 
comprised of four buildings totaling 52,861 square feet on the north 4.37 
acres of an undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 17-377-031.  

 
 
The Planning Commission last discussed Special Use Permit #19111 at its meeting on August 12, 
2019.  At the public hearing on July 22, 2019 the Planning Commission indicated support for the 
project, but expressed concern for the number of variances that would have been required to 
facilitate the development.  At the last meeting a revised site plan that included changes to the site 
layout was reviewed by the Planning Commission.  The number of variances required was reduced 
from 10 to three.  Since the last meeting the applicant has submitted a revised site plan that 
reduced the number of required variances from three to two.  Following is a summary of the 
changes the applicant has made to the project since the originally submitted site plan. 
 
Setback between Buildings B-2 and B-3 
 
Based on the initial site plan a variance was required for the setback between Buildings B-2 and B-
3.  With the revised site plan the location and orientation of buildings have shifted to meet all 
setbacks between buildings, so a variance is not necessary.   
 
Maximum building dimension 
 
No single building or connected building may exceed 200 feet in any one dimension.  The revised 
site plan shows Building C-4 was reduced in length from 205 feet to 200 feet, so the previously 
identified five foot variance is no longer required.  The length of Buildings A-1, B-2, and B-3 
remained the same.  At 237 feet in length, Buildings B-2 and B-3 require a 37 foot variance for the 
maximum building dimension.  Based on the reduced size of Building C-4 the total size for all 
buildings in the development decreased from 53,353 square feet to 52,861 square feet in size, a 
492 square foot reduction. 
 
Building setbacks from parking areas 
 
Based on the building layout shown on the previous site plans variances would have been required 
from the 25 foot setback from the entrance of a multiple family structure to a parking area and the 
20 foot setback from the wall of a multiple family structure to a parking area.  Based on the revised 
site plan all buildings in the development meet both setbacks, therefore the previously identified 
variances are no longer required. 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (August 26, 2019) 
Page 2 

  
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Size of parking spaces 
 
The size of the parking spaces were reduced from 200 square feet (10 feet by 20 feet) in size to 
180 square feet (9 feet by 20 feet) in size.  The multiple family zoning district and parking 
ordinance (Section 86-756(3)) state a minimum of 200 square feet must be provided for each 
vehicle parking space located within a multiple family residential development.  A 20 square foot 
variance for the size of each parking space is required. 
 
Parking setback from a nonresidential zoning district 
 
The expansion capacity parking area east of Building A-1 was moved north to meet the 15 foot 
parking setback from the south property line, which is also the C-2 (Commercial) zoning district 
boundary.  By relocating the parking area the applicant eliminated the previously necessary 
variance for the parking setback.  The number of parking spaces provided in the project was 
reduced from 99 to 98.  A minimum of 97 parking spaces are required to serve the site. 
 
With the revised site layout a 20 foot variance from the 40 foot parking setback from the 
residential zoning district to the east is no longer required. 
 
Buffering along the north and east property lines 
 
The original site plan proposed no screening along the north and east property lines.  The previous 
site plan showed a four foot tall landscape earth berm along the north and east property lines.  
Discussion at the last meeting included challenges of maintaining landscaping planted on a berm.  
The revised site plan shows a double row of conifer trees along the north and east property lines 
for screening. 
 
With the revised site plan building coverage is at 15.45 percent and 51.95 percent of the site is 
open space.  The maximum building coverage allowed in the RC (Multiple Family) zoning district is 
35 percent and the minimum open space required is 35 percent.   
 
The following list summarizes the required variances based on the revised site plan: 
 
 20 square foot variance for the size of each parking space 
 37 foot variance for the maximum dimension of Buildings B-2 and B-3 
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  
A resolution to approve the special use permit with conditions is provided. 
 
 Motion to adopt the resolution to approve Special Use Permit #19111 with conditions. 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Planning Commission (August 26, 2019) 
Page 3 

  
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Attachments 
1. Revised site plan prepared by Monument Engineering Group Associates, Inc. dated August 7, 

2019 (revision date August 21, 2019) and received by the Township on August 21, 2019. 
2. Revised building elevations and floor plans prepared by PCI Design Group, Inc. dated August 

21, 2019 and received by the Township on August 22, 2019. 
3. Resolution to approve. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend 
Housing Association)\SUP 19111.pc3.doc    



EN
GI

NE
ER

S ·
 SU

RV
EY

OR
S

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S ·

 LA
ND

 PL
AN

NE
RS

29
8 

VE
TE

RA
N

S 
DR

IV
E

FO
W

LE
RV

IL
LE

,
M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
88

36
(O

FF
IC

E)
 5

17
-2

23
-3

51
2

M
O

N
U

M
EN

TE
N

GI
N

EE
RI

N
G.

CO
M

SE
RV

IC
E 

DI
SA

BL
ED

 V
ET

ER
AN

 O
W

NE
D

SM
AL

L B
US

IN
ES

S (
SD

VO
SB

)

Monument Engineeri
ng

 G
r o

up
 As s oc i a t es , I nc .

w
w

w
.m

iss
di

g.
or

g
1-

80
0-

48
2-

71
71

3 f
ull

 w
ork

ing
 da

ys 
be

for
e  

yo
u  

dig
:

Mi
ch

iga
n's

On
e-C

all
Ut

ilit
y

No
tifi

cat
ion

Or
ga

niz
ati

on

Ca
ll 

 M
IS

S 
DI

G

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

W
O

D
A

 C
O

O
PE

R
C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 W
A

Y

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 O

VE
R

VI
EW

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
LE

G
EN

D

ZO
N

IN
G

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N

N
O

TE
S

1.
SI

GN
 T

O
 B

E 
LO

CA
TE

D 
AN

D 
M

EE
T 

AL
L 

TO
W

N
SH

IP
ST

AN
DA

RD
S

2.
SC

RE
EN

IN
G 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
FO

R 
AL

L 
M

EC
HA

N
IC

AL
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T.

3.
PA

RK
IN

G 
LO

T 
IS

LA
N

DS
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

FI
N

IS
HE

D 
IN

 G
RA

SS
,

GR
O

U
N

D 
CO

VE
R 

O
R 

M
U

LC
H.

4.
ST

O
RM

 W
AT

ER
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
TO

 M
EE

T 
AL

L 
TO

W
N

SH
IP

&
 S

TA
TE

 S
TO

RM
 W

AT
ER

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
Q

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

5.
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 T
YP

E 
TO

 B
E 

SL
AB

 O
N

 G
RA

DE
, W

O
O

D
FR

AM
E 

W
IT

H 
BR

IC
K 

VE
N

EE
R 

AN
D 

VI
N

YL
 S

ID
IN

G.
 I.

B.
C.

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 T

YP
E:

 5
-B

.

6.
N

O
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

ST
RU

CT
U

RE
S 

O
N

 S
IT

E

7.
N

O
 N

AT
U

RA
L 

W
AT

ER
 F

EA
TU

RE
S 

O
N

 S
IT

E

TH
IS

 Z
O

N
IN

G 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 IS

 T
AK

EN
 F

RO
M

  M
ER

ID
IA

N
TO

W
N

SH
IP

 Z
O

N
IN

G 
O

RD
IN

AN
CE

DA
TE

D:
 JA

N
U

AR
Y 

25
, 2

01
9

SU
BJ

EC
T 

PA
RC

EL
 Z

O
N

IN
G 

CL
AS

SI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

:
RC BU

IL
DI

N
G 

SE
TB

AC
KS

: 
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

 P
RO

VI
DE

D
FR

O
N

T 
(W

ES
T)

:
   

   
  2

5'
   

   
   

25
'

SI
DE

 (N
O

RT
H)

:
   

   
  5

0'
   

   
   

50
'

SI
DE

 (S
O

U
TH

):
   

   
  2

5'
   

   
   

25
'

RE
AR

 (E
AS

T)
:

   
   

  5
0'

   
   

   
50

'

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
ZO

N
IN

G:
N

O
RT

H:
RA

SO
U

TH
:

C-
2

EA
ST

:
RX

W
ES

T:
RC

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LE
G

EN
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY:  AP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT :

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:P:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PMP:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PM 	DATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PMDATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PM8/15/2019 3:03 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF HE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF E LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF  LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF OCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF CATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF TIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF IONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ONS AND ELEVATIONS OF NS AND ELEVATIONS OF S AND ELEVATIONS OF  AND ELEVATIONS OF AND ELEVATIONS OF ND ELEVATIONS OF D ELEVATIONS OF  ELEVATIONS OF ELEVATIONS OF LEVATIONS OF EVATIONS OF VATIONS OF ATIONS OF TIONS OF IONS OF ONS OF NS OF S OF  OF OF F EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN XISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN STING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN TING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NG UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN G UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN DERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN RGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN GROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN OUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ND UTILITIES AS SHOWN D UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UTILITIES AS SHOWN UTILITIES AS SHOWN TILITIES AS SHOWN ILITIES AS SHOWN LITIES AS SHOWN ITIES AS SHOWN TIES AS SHOWN IES AS SHOWN ES AS SHOWN S AS SHOWN  AS SHOWN AS SHOWN S SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HOWN OWN WN N ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  N THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  HIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  IS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  S DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  AWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  WING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NG ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  G ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  E ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NLY APPROXIMATE.  LY APPROXIMATE.  Y APPROXIMATE.   APPROXIMATE.  APPROXIMATE.  PPROXIMATE.  PROXIMATE.  ROXIMATE.  OXIMATE.  XIMATE.  IMATE.  MATE.  ATE.  TE.  E.  .  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR O GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR UARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR RANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR NTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR TEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR EE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR E IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR S EITHER EXPRESSED OR  EITHER EXPRESSED OR EITHER EXPRESSED OR ITHER EXPRESSED OR THER EXPRESSED OR HER EXPRESSED OR ER EXPRESSED OR R EXPRESSED OR  EXPRESSED OR EXPRESSED OR XPRESSED OR PRESSED OR RESSED OR ESSED OR SSED OR SED OR ED OR D OR  OR OR R IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR MPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR PLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR LIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR IED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR D AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR S TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  TO THE COMPLETENESS OR TO THE COMPLETENESS OR O THE COMPLETENESS OR  THE COMPLETENESS OR THE COMPLETENESS OR HE COMPLETENESS OR E COMPLETENESS OR  COMPLETENESS OR COMPLETENESS OR OMPLETENESS OR MPLETENESS OR PLETENESS OR LETENESS OR ETENESS OR TENESS OR ENESS OR NESS OR ESS OR SS OR S OR  OR OR R ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR URACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR RACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR ACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR Y THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR  THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR HEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR EREOF. THE CONTRACTOR REOF. THE CONTRACTOR EOF. THE CONTRACTOR OF. THE CONTRACTOR F. THE CONTRACTOR . THE CONTRACTOR  THE CONTRACTOR THE CONTRACTOR HE CONTRACTOR E CONTRACTOR  CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR ONTRACTOR NTRACTOR TRACTOR RACTOR ACTOR CTOR TOR OR R SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR HALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR L BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR E EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR XCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR CLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR USIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR SIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR IVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR VELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LY RESPONSIBLE FOR Y RESPONSIBLE FOR  RESPONSIBLE FOR RESPONSIBLE FOR ESPONSIBLE FOR SPONSIBLE FOR PONSIBLE FOR ONSIBLE FOR NSIBLE FOR SIBLE FOR IBLE FOR BLE FOR LE FOR E FOR  FOR FOR OR R DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS TERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS RMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS MINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS INING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NG THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS G THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS HE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS E EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS XACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ACT UTILITY LOCATIONS CT UTILITY LOCATIONS T UTILITY LOCATIONS  UTILITY LOCATIONS UTILITY LOCATIONS TILITY LOCATIONS ILITY LOCATIONS LITY LOCATIONS ITY LOCATIONS TY LOCATIONS Y LOCATIONS  LOCATIONS LOCATIONS OCATIONS CATIONS ATIONS TIONS IONS ONS NS S AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF D ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF  ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF LEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF EVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF VATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF TIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF IONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ONS PRIOR TO THE START OF NS PRIOR TO THE START OF S PRIOR TO THE START OF  PRIOR TO THE START OF PRIOR TO THE START OF RIOR TO THE START OF IOR TO THE START OF OR TO THE START OF R TO THE START OF  TO THE START OF TO THE START OF O THE START OF  THE START OF THE START OF HE START OF E START OF  START OF START OF TART OF ART OF RT OF T OF  OF OF F CONSTRUCTION.ONSTRUCTION.NSTRUCTION.STRUCTION.TRUCTION.RUCTION.UCTION.CTION.TION.ION.ON.N..

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 S FRONT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 975

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMBUS, OH 43215

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN OVERVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODWARD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL & GREENCLIFF DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, MI

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/21/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PRELIM SITE PLAN LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-2 12 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C-4 8 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY COMMUNITY  BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A-1 16 - 2 STORY APT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-3 12 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENCLIFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY APT UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVERSE CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RX ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RA ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RC ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONIFEROUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORNAMENTAL TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RC ZONING



EN
GI

NE
ER

S ·
 SU

RV
EY

OR
S

CO
NS

UL
TA

NT
S ·

 LA
ND

 PL
AN

NE
RS

29
8 

VE
TE

RA
N

S 
DR

IV
E

FO
W

LE
RV

IL
LE

,
M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
88

36
(O

FF
IC

E)
 5

17
-2

23
-3

51
2

M
O

N
U

M
EN

TE
N

GI
N

EE
RI

N
G.

CO
M

SE
RV

IC
E 

DI
SA

BL
ED

 V
ET

ER
AN

 O
W

NE
D

SM
AL

L B
US

IN
ES

S (
SD

VO
SB

)

Monument Engineeri
ng

 G
r o

up
 As s oc i a t es , I nc .

w
w

w
.m

iss
di

g.
or

g
1-

80
0-

48
2-

71
71

3 f
ull

 w
ork

ing
 da

ys 
be

for
e  

yo
u  

dig
:

Mi
ch

iga
n's

On
e-C

all
Ut

ilit
y

No
tifi

cat
ion

Or
ga

niz
ati

on

Ca
ll 

 M
IS

S 
DI

G

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

W
O

D
A

 C
O

O
PE

R
C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 W
A

Y

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY:  AP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT :

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:P:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PMP:\Projects\2019\19-022 The Woodward\Dwg\Base\PrBase.dwg 	DATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PM 	DATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PMDATE:8/15/2019 3:03 PM8/15/2019 3:03 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF HE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF E LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF  LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF OCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF CATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF TIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF IONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ONS AND ELEVATIONS OF NS AND ELEVATIONS OF S AND ELEVATIONS OF  AND ELEVATIONS OF AND ELEVATIONS OF ND ELEVATIONS OF D ELEVATIONS OF  ELEVATIONS OF ELEVATIONS OF LEVATIONS OF EVATIONS OF VATIONS OF ATIONS OF TIONS OF IONS OF ONS OF NS OF S OF  OF OF F EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN XISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN STING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN TING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NG UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN G UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN NDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN DERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN RGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN GROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN OUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN UND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ND UTILITIES AS SHOWN D UTILITIES AS SHOWN  UTILITIES AS SHOWN UTILITIES AS SHOWN TILITIES AS SHOWN ILITIES AS SHOWN LITIES AS SHOWN ITIES AS SHOWN TIES AS SHOWN IES AS SHOWN ES AS SHOWN S AS SHOWN  AS SHOWN AS SHOWN S SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HOWN OWN WN N ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  N THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  HIS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  IS DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  S DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  AWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  WING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NG ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  G ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  RE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  E ONLY APPROXIMATE.   ONLY APPROXIMATE.  ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NLY APPROXIMATE.  LY APPROXIMATE.  Y APPROXIMATE.   APPROXIMATE.  APPROXIMATE.  PPROXIMATE.  PROXIMATE.  ROXIMATE.  OXIMATE.  XIMATE.  IMATE.  MATE.  ATE.  TE.  E.  .  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR O GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR UARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR RANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR ANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR NTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR TEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR EE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR E IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR  IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR S EITHER EXPRESSED OR  EITHER EXPRESSED OR EITHER EXPRESSED OR ITHER EXPRESSED OR THER EXPRESSED OR HER EXPRESSED OR ER EXPRESSED OR R EXPRESSED OR  EXPRESSED OR EXPRESSED OR XPRESSED OR PRESSED OR RESSED OR ESSED OR SSED OR SED OR ED OR D OR  OR OR R IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR MPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR PLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR LIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR IED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR D AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR S TO THE COMPLETENESS OR  TO THE COMPLETENESS OR TO THE COMPLETENESS OR O THE COMPLETENESS OR  THE COMPLETENESS OR THE COMPLETENESS OR HE COMPLETENESS OR E COMPLETENESS OR  COMPLETENESS OR COMPLETENESS OR OMPLETENESS OR MPLETENESS OR PLETENESS OR LETENESS OR ETENESS OR TENESS OR ENESS OR NESS OR ESS OR SS OR S OR  OR OR R ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR URACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR RACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR ACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR CY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR Y THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR  THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR HEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR EREOF. THE CONTRACTOR REOF. THE CONTRACTOR EOF. THE CONTRACTOR OF. THE CONTRACTOR F. THE CONTRACTOR . THE CONTRACTOR  THE CONTRACTOR THE CONTRACTOR HE CONTRACTOR E CONTRACTOR  CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR ONTRACTOR NTRACTOR TRACTOR RACTOR ACTOR CTOR TOR OR R SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR HALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR L BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR E EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR  EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR XCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR CLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR USIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR SIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR IVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR VELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ELY RESPONSIBLE FOR LY RESPONSIBLE FOR Y RESPONSIBLE FOR  RESPONSIBLE FOR RESPONSIBLE FOR ESPONSIBLE FOR SPONSIBLE FOR PONSIBLE FOR ONSIBLE FOR NSIBLE FOR SIBLE FOR IBLE FOR BLE FOR LE FOR E FOR  FOR FOR OR R DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS TERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS RMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS MINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS INING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS NG THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS G THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS HE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS E EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS  EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS XACT UTILITY LOCATIONS ACT UTILITY LOCATIONS CT UTILITY LOCATIONS T UTILITY LOCATIONS  UTILITY LOCATIONS UTILITY LOCATIONS TILITY LOCATIONS ILITY LOCATIONS LITY LOCATIONS ITY LOCATIONS TY LOCATIONS Y LOCATIONS  LOCATIONS LOCATIONS OCATIONS CATIONS ATIONS TIONS IONS ONS NS S AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF D ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF  ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF LEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF EVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF VATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF TIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF IONS PRIOR TO THE START OF ONS PRIOR TO THE START OF NS PRIOR TO THE START OF S PRIOR TO THE START OF  PRIOR TO THE START OF PRIOR TO THE START OF RIOR TO THE START OF IOR TO THE START OF OR TO THE START OF R TO THE START OF  TO THE START OF TO THE START OF O THE START OF  THE START OF THE START OF HE START OF E START OF  START OF START OF TART OF ART OF RT OF T OF  OF OF F CONSTRUCTION.ONSTRUCTION.NSTRUCTION.STRUCTION.TRUCTION.RUCTION.UCTION.CTION.TION.ION.ON.N..

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 S FRONT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 975

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMBUS, OH 43215

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODWARD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL & GREENCLIFF DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, MI

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/21/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PRELIM SITE PLAN LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/07/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-2 12 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING C-4 8 - 2 STORY TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY APT UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY COMMUNITY BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING A-1 16 - 2 STORY APT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING B-3 12 - 2 STORY  TOWNHOUSE APTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PATIO AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE  & PAD (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PICNIC AREA WITH GRILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED BICYCLE RACK WITH 8 BICYCLE CAPACITY (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PLAYGROUND WITH BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION CAPACITY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION CAPACITY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL 50' SIRHAL DRIVE R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PAVING TO EXTEND AND MATCH INTO EXISTING PAVEMENT OF GREENCLIFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVABLE BOLLARDS FOR EMERGENCY EGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENCLIFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRHAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE ROW OF CONIFERS ALONG NORTH AND EAST PROPERTY LINES FOR SCREENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PATIO AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PATIO AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PATIO AREA (TYP)



U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

SE
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

2B
R

H
C

1B
R

H
C

1B
R

H
C

2B
R

H
C

2B
R

1B
R

1B
R

2B
R

H
C

2B
R

1B
R

1B
R

2B
R

2B
R

1B
R

1B
R

2B
R

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

BU
IL

D
IN

G

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
07

-1
5-

19
07

-2
9-

19
08

-0
6-

19
08

-2
1-

19

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 "

A
"P

LA
N

S
A

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACRYLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREEWILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-12102-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACRYLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREEWILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-12102-C

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E 

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

C
O

D
ED

 N
O

TE
S

1.
30

 Y
EA

R
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 S
TY

LE
AN

TI
-F

U
N

G
AL

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S.

2.
FI

BE
R

G
LA

SS
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

 E
N

TR
Y

D
O

O
R

S.
3.

EN
ER

G
Y 

ST
AR

 R
AT

ED
 W

IN
D

O
W

S.
4.

VE
N

TE
D

 S
O

FF
IT

S 
AN

D
 R

ID
G

E
VE

N
TS

.
5.

AL
U

M
. G

U
TT

ER
S 

& 
D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
.

6.
PR

E-
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 F
AS

C
IA

  &
 S

O
FF

IT
S.

7.
FI

BE
R

 C
EM

EN
T 

SI
D

IN
G

.
8.

4"
 F

AC
E 

BR
IC

K 
VE

N
EE

R
.

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

4

1

2
3

5

6

7
8

7

1

2
3

4
5 6

7
8

1

4
5 6

7
8

4

1

3

5

6

7
8

7

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A
2

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
07

-1
5-

19
07

-2
9-

19
08

-0
6-

19
08

-2
1-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

16
" =

 1
'-0

SE
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

16
" =

 1
'-0

3B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
3B

R
TH

3B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
3B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

 P
LA

N
S

A
3

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
07

-1
5-

19
07

-2
9-

19
08

-0
6-

19
08

-2
1-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



4

1

2
3

5

6 7

8

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0C

O
D

ED
 N

O
TE

S
1.

30
 Y

EA
R

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 S

TY
LE

AN
TI

-F
U

N
G

AL
 S

H
IN

G
LE

S.
2.

FI
BE

R
G

LA
SS

 IN
SU

LA
TE

D
 E

N
TR

Y
D

O
O

R
S.

3.
EN

ER
G

Y 
ST

AR
 R

AT
ED

 W
IN

D
O

W
S.

4.
VE

N
TE

D
 S

O
FF

IT
S 

AN
D

 R
ID

G
E

VE
N

TS
.

5.
AL

U
M

. G
U

TT
ER

S 
& 

D
O

W
N

SP
O

U
TS

.
6.

PR
E-

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

AS
C

IA
  &

 S
O

FF
IT

S.
7.

FI
BE

R
 C

EM
EN

T 
SI

D
IN

G
.

8.
4"

 F
AC

E 
BR

IC
K 

VE
N

EE
R

.

R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E 

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

4
1

5

3

6

8

7

1

4

5

7

8

1

4

5

7

8

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A
4

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
07

-1
5-

19
07

-2
9-

19
08

-0
6-

19
08

-2
1-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



FI
R

ST
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

16
" =

 1
'-0

SE
C

O
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

16
" =

 1
'-0

3B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH

3B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH
2B

R
TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH

2B
R

TH

3B
R

H
C

3B
R

TH

3B
R

TH

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

 P
LA

N
S

A
5

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
07

-1
5-

19
07

-2
9-

19
08

-0
6-

19
08

-2
1-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



C
O

D
ED

 N
O

TE
S

1.
30

 Y
EA

R
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
AL

 S
TY

LE
AN

TI
-F

U
N

G
AL

 S
H

IN
G

LE
S.

2.
FI

BE
R

G
LA

SS
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

 E
N

TR
Y

D
O

O
R

S.
3.

EN
ER

G
Y 

ST
AR

 R
AT

ED
 W

IN
D

O
W

S.
4.

VE
N

TE
D

 S
O

FF
IT

S 
AN

D
 R

ID
G

E
VE

N
TS

.
5.

AL
U

M
. G

U
TT

ER
S 

& 
D

O
W

N
SP

O
U

TS
.

6.
PR

E-
FI

N
IS

H
ED

 F
AS

C
IA

  &
 S

O
FF

IT
S.

7.
FI

BE
R

 C
EM

EN
T 

SI
D

IN
G

.
8.

4"
 F

AC
E 

BR
IC

K 
VE

N
EE

R
.

1

4

5

7 8

LE
FT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

R
EA

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
SC

AL
E 

1/
8"

 =
 1

'-0

4

1

2
3

5

6 7

8

R
IG

H
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
AL

E 
1/

8"
 =

 1
'-0

1

4

5

7

8

1

2

34 56

7
8

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A
6

TH
E 

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
SI

R
H

AL
 &

 G
R

EE
N

C
LI

FF
 D

R
IV

ES
M

ER
ID

IA
N

 T
W

P.
, M

I
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9 
PC

I D
es

ig
n 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
. A

ll 
R

ig
ht

s 
R

es
er

ve
d

SH
EE

T:
D

AT
E:

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TY

PE
:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

SU
BM

IT
TA

L:
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
AM

E:

PC
I D

ES
IG

N
 G

R
O

U
P,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

W
P

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

 P
ER

M
IT

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

:

W
O

D
A 

C
O

O
PE

R
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S,

 IN
C

.
50

0 
SO

U
TH

 F
R

O
N

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
SU

IT
E 

97
5

C
O

LU
M

BU
S,

 O
H

IO
 4

32
15

A 
FA

M
IL

Y 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
07

-1
5-

19
07

-2
9-

19
08

-0
6-

19
08

-2
1-

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Special Use Permit #19111 
 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 
day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             
 
  _________________________________________________________________                                                            
 
ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              
 
 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 
_________________________. 
 

WHEREAS, Woodward Way Limited Dividend Housing Association requested a special use 
permit to construct a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of four buildings totaling 
52,861 square feet on the north 4.37 acres of an undeveloped parcel identified as Parcel Number 17-
377-031; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on July 22, 
2019 and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated July 19, 2019, 
August 8, 2019, and August 23, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 units 
per acre), which allows multiple family housing projects with three or more units by special use 
permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project is consistent with the conditions established in 

Rezoning #19010; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project meets the design standards of the RC (Multiple 

Family) zoning district listed in Section 86-376(g) of the Code of Ordinances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project provides adequate setbacks and screening from 

surrounding uses; and 
 

WHEREAS, municipal water and sanitary sewer is available to serve the subject site; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed housing project is consistent with Objective B of Goal 1 of the 2017 
Master Plan to ensure new residential developments meet high standards of visual attractiveness, 
health and safety, and environmental sensitivity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed housing project is consistent with Goal J of the 2019 Township 
Board Action Plan to explore housing options and alternatives to encourage diverse populations 
and targeted groups to live in the Township; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed housing project is consistent with the general standards for 
granting a special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 



Resolution to Approve 
SUP #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Page 2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves Special Use Permit #19111 to construct a 49-unit 
townhouse and apartment complex on the north 4.37 acres of an undeveloped parcel identified by 
Parcel Number 17-377-031, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval is in accordance with the site plan prepared by Monument Engineering Group 

Associates, Inc. dated August 7, 2019 (Revision Date August 21, 2019) and received by the 
Township on August 22, 2019. 
 

2. Approval is in accordance with the building elevations and floor plans prepared by PCI Design 
Group, Inc. dated August 21, 2019 and received by the Township on August 22, 2019. 
 

3. Approval of Special Use Permit #19111 is contingent on the approval of Special Use Permit 
#19121 by the Township Board. 
 

4. Approval of the special use permit is subject to all voluntary conditions placed on Rezoning 
#19010 by the applicant. 
 

5. The applicant shall apply for a land division to split the project site from the parent parcel prior 
to submitting for site plan review. 
 

6. The applicant shall construct a five-foot wide concrete sidewalk to connect to the existing 
sidewalk along the north side of Sirhal Drive. 

 
7. Site plan review approval is required to construct the housing project.  The final site plan, 

building elevations, and landscape plan shall be subject to the approval of the Director of 
Community Planning and Development. 

 
8. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals from the Ingham 

County Road Department, Ingham County Drain Commissioner, Michigan Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy, and the Township, as applicable.  Copies of all permits, 
licenses, and approval letters shall be submitted to the Department of Community Planning and 
Development. 
 

9. Utility, grading, and storm drainage plans for the site are subject to the approval of the Director 
of Public Works and Engineering and Ingham County Drain Commissioner and shall be 
completed in accordance with the Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards. 
 

10. No grading or land clearing shall take place on the site until the site plan has been approved by 
the Director of Community Planning and Development and grading and soil erosion and 
sedimentation control (SESC) permits have been issued for the project. 
 

11. All utility service distribution lines shall be installed underground. 
 

12. Any future building additions or revisions to the site layout will require amendments to Special 
Use Permit #19111. 
 

13. The final design of the trash and recycling facilities and related enclosures shall be subject to 
the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 



Resolution to Approve 
SUP #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Page 3 
 

14. Site accessories such as railings, benches, exterior lighting fixtures, and bicycle racks shall be of 
commercial quality and complement the building design.  The final design and location of such 
accessories shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and 
Development. 

 
15. All mechanical, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, and similar systems shall be screened from 

view by an opaque structure or landscape materials (if at street level) selected to complement 
the building.  Such screening is subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning 
and Development. 

 
ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________                                   
 
   _______________________________________________________________________                                  
                                                                                             
  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                                                            
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 26th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       John Scott-Craig 
       Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend 
Housing Association)\SUP 19111 resolution to approve.doc 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL Special Use Permit #19121 
 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association)  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 
day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: Commissioners Lane, Scott-Craig, Hendrickson, Trezise, Shrewsbury, Cordill, Richards 
 
ABSENT: Commissioner Premoe   
 
 The following resolution was offered by Commissioner Hendrickson and supported by 
Commissioner Cordill. 
 

WHEREAS, Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association has submitted a request to 
construct a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on the north 4.37 acres of Parcel 
Number 17-377-031; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is a 49-unit townhouse and apartment complex comprised of 
four buildings totaling 52,861 square feet in size; and  
 

WHEREAS, a special use permit is required for constructing a group of buildings totaling more 
than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on July 22, 
2019 and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated July 19, 2019, 
August 8, 2019, and August 23, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned RC (Multiple Family), which permits the 
construction of a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in floor area by special use 
permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project is consistent with the conditions established in 

Rezoning #19010; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed housing project meets the design standards of the RC (Multiple 

Family) zoning district listed in Section 86-376(g) of the Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the general standards for granting a 
special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 
WHEREAS, public water and sanitary sewer services serve the subject site. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Special Use Permit #19121, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval is in accordance with the site plan prepared by prepared by Monument Engineering 

Group Associates, Inc. dated August 7, 2019 (revision date August 21, 2019) and received by the 
Township on August 22, 2019. 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 
SUP #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association) 
Page 2 
 

2. Approval of the special use permit is subject to all conditions placed on Special Use Permit 
#19111 by the Planning Commission. 

 
3. Any future building additions will require an amendment to the special use permit. 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: Chair Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair Lane, Commissioners Richards, Hendrickson,  
  Shrewsbury, Cordill, Trezise 
                                                                                             
  NAYS: None                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 26th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       John Scott-Craig 
       Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2019\SUP 19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing 
Association)\SUP 19121 resolution PC approval.docx 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes  

July 22, 2019 

Page 2 
 

B. Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), construct 

group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on north side of Sirhal Drive, west 

of Greencliff Drive. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 7:13 P.M. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided an overview of the proposals and noted the public hearing 

would cover both items. 

 

Applicant Frank Fugate, 500 South Front Street Columbus, Ohio, with Woda Cooper Company 

provided additional information on the requests and said he was available to answer questions. 

 

Public Comments:  

 

A. Lynne Page, 3912 Raleigh Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #19111 and 

Special Use Permit #19121. 

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

• The Planning Commission should determine if the proposals fits the area, meets the design 

standards of multi-family zoning districts, and if the proposals meet the special use criteria. 

• The numbers of variances are not consistent with the purpose and intent of the ordinance by 

having too much building in a small area. 

• Appreciation for the conditions offered by the developer after listening to concerned residents 

during the rezoning process. 

• The ordinance for this type of development has very strict guidelines and as a result has 

generated a list of ten requested variances. 

• The Greencliff access will be an emergency-only and will also serve as a pedestrian connection. 

• Proper screening should be added on the north and east side of the proposed development to 

provide a natural barrier for light pollution from vehicles. 

• The developer has agreed to review the ten variances and meet with staff to see if the number 

can be reduced and come back to a future meeting with revised plans. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 7:53 p.m. 

 

7.  Unfinished Business  

 

A. Rezoning #19060 (Bennett Road Holding LLC), rezone approximately 83 acres from RR 

(Rural Residential) and RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) to RAA (Single Family-Low 

Density). 

 

Motion by Commissioner Lane to adopt the resolution recommending denial of Rezoning #19060. 

Supported by Commissioner Hendrickson. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

YEAS: Commissioners Lane, Hendrickson, Shrewsbury, Cordill, Trezise, and Scott-Craig. 

NAYS: Commissioner Richards, Premoe  

MOTION CARRIED: 6-2 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes  

August 12, 2019 

Page 4 
 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

• Focus on the approval of the minor amendment and not a reconsideration of the original Special 

Use Permit and if it is complying with its terms and conditions brought up by the appellant 

during his presentation to the Planning Commission. 

• The Special Use Permit goes with the land and the use is open space as proposed at this time is 

to remain green grass area. 

• Adding property is a minor amendment under the ordinance and anything else would be 

another amendment. 

 

A straw poll indicated the Planning Commission would be in favor of affirming the decision of the 

Director of Community Planning and Development without modifications its next meeting. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 9:28 p.m. 

 

The Planning Commission took a 5 minute recess. 

 

D. Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes), proposed seven lot subdivision titled Sanctuary 

3 located on the north side of Robins Way, east of Hulett Road. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 8:34 P.M. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a review of the proposal. 

 

The applicant, Jim Giguere, 6253 Fenwick Court, said he was available to answer questions. 

 

The Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend approval of the plat at its 

next meeting. 

 

Public Comment:  None 

 

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 9:39 p.m. 

 

7.  Unfinished Business  

 

A. Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), develop 49 

unit apartment complex with four buildings on north side of Sirhal Drive, west of Greencliff 

Drive. 

 

B. Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), construct 

group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on north side of Sirhal Drive, west 

of Greencliff Drive. 

 

Principal Planner Menser stated both items would run concurrently and provided an update.  He 

also noted a revised site plan was received late in the week so additional comments will be 

available at the next Planning Commission meeting on August 26, 2019. 

 

Applicant Frank Fugate, 500 South Front Street Columbus, Ohio, with Woda Cooper Company 

provided additional information on the updated site plan prepared by Monument Engineering 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes  

August 12, 2019 

Page 5 
 

Group Associates and said he was available to answer questions. 

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

• The Planning Commissioners noted appreciation with the updated engineering plan design and 

thanked the applicant for all of the work involved. 

• The list of 10 variances has been narrowed down to 2 variances since the developer met on July 

22, 2019.   

 

A straw poll indicated the Planning Commission would recommend approval for Special Use Permit 

#19111 and Special Use Permit #19121 at its next meeting. 

 

8. Other Business - None 

 

9. Reports and Announcements 

 

A. Township Board updates. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig noted there was no Economic Development Corporation meeting scheduled for 

August 2019.  

 

Principal Planner Menser provided an update from the Township Board’s recent agenda. 

 

10.  Project Updates 

 

A. New Applications - None 

B. Site Plans Received - None 

C. Site Plans Approved 

1. Site Plan Review #19-08 (Haslett Road Holding LLC), construct 88 lot Copper Creek 

development on north side of Haslett Road, east of Creekwood Lane.  

     

11.  Public Remarks  

 

A. Irina Jamison, 2745 Mount Hope Road, with Michigan Montessori International School made 

additional comments regarding Special Use Permit #19-74011.   

B. Appellant Sergey Baryshev, 2767 Mount Hope Road, expressed concern with Special Use 

Permit #19-74011. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

Chair Scott-Craig moved to adjourn the meeting. 

Supported by all. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.   

 

Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the regular meeting at 10:07 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes  

August 26, 2019 

Page 2 
 

5.  Communications  

 

Chair Scott-Craig noted the communications listed in the meeting packet and said hard copies of the 

communications received after the meeting packet was sent out were assembled and distributed to 

the Planning Commission at their places on the dais prior to the meeting.  
 

6.  Public Hearings - None 

 

7.  Unfinished Business  

 

A. Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), develop 49 

unit apartment complex with four buildings on north side of Sirhal Drive, west of Greencliff 

Drive. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Lane to approve Special Use Permit #19111 with conditions. 

Supported by Commissioner Hendrickson. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

YEAS: Commissioners Lane, Richards, Hendrickson, Shrewsbury, Cordill, Trezise and Scott-Craig. 

NAYS: None 

MOTION CARRIED:  7-0 

 

B. Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), construct 

group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on north side of Sirhal Drive, west 

of Greencliff Drive. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Hendrickson to recommend approval of Special Use Permit #19121 to the 

Township Board. 

Supported by Commissioner Cordill. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

YEAS: Commissioners Hendrickson, Cordill, Trezise, Lane, Shrewsbury, Richards and Scott-Craig. 

NAYS: None 

MOTION CARRIED:  7-0 

 

C. Special Use Permit #19101 (LaFontaine Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep, & Ram of Okemos), construct 

24,902 square foot new car dealership at 1510 Grand River Avenue. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Lane to approve Special Use Permit #19101 with conditions. 

Supported by Commissioner Trezise. 

 

Planning Commission Comments: 

• The applicant has proposed motion sensor lighting on the north side of the property during 

non-business hours as a courtesy for residents in that area but residents to the south who 

reside across Grand River Avenue have also expressed concern about lighting during non-

business hours.   

• The applicant, Gary Laundroche, noted lights are shielded and will aim north. 

• Subtle lighting would be safer for drivers and pedestrians to the south, east and west side of the 

business during non-business hours. 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

13. C 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Frank L. Walsh, Township Manager 

Date:  August 30, 2019 

Re:  Franchise and PEG Fees 

 

Back in 2003, the Township Board adopted an Ordinance regarding Cable Television. The most 

critical piece of the legislation is Section 70-28 (c7).  I’ve attached the 2003 language as a starting 

point of your discussion.  

We are requesting that the Board adopt the attached amendment to 70-28 (c7). If approved, the 

amendment eradicates the requirement that a minimum of 80 percent of franchise fees be 

allocated to the Cable Commission. Rather, 100% of the Franchise and PEG Fees will be deposited 

in the general fund. The change is part of the complete reorganization of our Communications 

Department.  

I want to reiterate that although we are budgeting to reduce our communication expenses by 50%, 

we remain focused on our core services. We will continue to provide an extraordinary level of 

communications to our 43,000 residents. Our principal services will continue to be HOMTV, social 

media, web site enhancements, marketing, weekly newsletter and televising township meetings. 

We are committed to continuing our record of excellence. 

 
Attachments: 

1. 2003 Cable Ordinance  
2. 2003 Cable Ordinance Proposed Amendment 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  2003-12 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE II OF CHAPTER 70  

OF THE MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING CABLE TELEVISION  

 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS:  
 

Sec. 1. Article II of Chapter 70 of the Meridian Charter Township Code of 
Ordinances is amended to read as follows:  

ARTICLE II CABLE COMMUNICATIONS 

     

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

Sec.  70-26. Definitions.  

 
For purposes of this article, terms, phrases, words and abbreviations shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984, as 
amended from time to time, 47 U.S.C. 521 et seq., unless otherwise defined in this 
article.  

Sec.  70-27.  Declaration of Purpose.  
 

The purpose of this article is to provide fair regulation of cable service in the township in 
the interest of the public; to promote and encourage adequate, economical and efficient 
cable service to the residents of the township; to promote and to encourage harmony 
between cable television companies and their subscribers; and to provide for the 
furnishing of cable television system service to the residents of the township without 
unjust discrimination, undue preferences or advantages. 

Sec.  70-28 Cable Communications Commission. 
 

(a) The township shall establish a commission to be known as the Meridian Township 
cable communications commission. The township board shall solicit from the public and 
from the franchise names of persons interested in serving on the Commission, but is not 
limited to names submitted. 
 
(b) The commission consists of five residents of the township appointed by the township 
board. Each member shall serve a term of three years. Any vacancy in the office shall 
be filled by the township board for the remainder of the term. No employee or person 
with an ownership interest in a cable television franchise granted pursuant to this article 
shall be eligible for membership on the commission. Members of the commission may 



 2 

be compensated at a rate to be determined by the township. Such rate of 
compensation, if any, be established and may be revised, from time to time, by 
resolution of the township board. 
 
(c) Subject to federal law, the commission, in addition to the functions and 
responsibilities that the township board may delegate to it from time to time by 
resolution, shall have the following functions: 
 

(1)  Discuss this article and franchises with prospective franchise applications. 
 
(2)  Advise the township board on applications for franchises. 
 
(3)  Advise the township board on matters that might constitute grounds for 

revocation of a franchise under this article. 
 
(4)  Recommend to the township board, after hearing, resolutions of disputes 

between franchisees, between franchisee(s) and subscribers, between 
franchisee(s) and access users, and between access users. 

 
(5)  Advise the township board on the regulation of rates under this article   and 

make recommendations on requested changes in rates, services or 
classifications. 

 
(6) Recommend to the township board general policy relating to access channels 

with a view to maximizing the diversity of programs and services to 
subscribers. 

 
(7) Encourage the use of access channels by institutions, groups and individuals 

within the township.  The township board shall budget a minimum of 80 
percent of franchise fees for use by the commission to operate a government 
access channel and administer this ordinance and cable television franchises.  
Such budgeted funds shall be kept by or under the control of the township 
treasurer. The township treasurer shall draw checks on said account only 
when a majority of the members of the township board has authorized such 
expenditure.  

 
(8) Encourage and supervise interconnection of systems. 
 
(9) Review and report to the township board concerning records and reports that 

the franchisee is required to submit under this article. 
 
(10) The commission shall annually prepare a proposed budget and submit that 

proposed budget to the township board for its consideration and adoption. 
Prior to adopting a budget for the commission, the township board shall 
conduct a public hearing. The commission shall also prepare and submit to 
the township board an annual report  including an accounting of budgeted 



 3 

fees received and distributed by the commission and a report of the type and 
amount of use of access channels.  

(11) Conduct evaluations of the system at least every three years and make 
recommendations to the township board regarding amendments to this article   
or to the franchise agreement. 

Sec.  70-29. Non-Recourse for Losses.  
 

Any person granted a franchise pursuant to this article shall have no recourse 
whatsoever against the township, its officers, boards, commissions, agents or 
employees for any loss, cost, expense or damage arising out of any provision or 
requirement of this article or its enforcement except as allowed by 47 USC 555a, as 
amended. 

Section 70-30.  Priority of Use.  
 

Any right or privilege granted to any person under this article to use or occupy any 
street, alley, public right- of-way or public place shall be subordinate to any prior lawful 
occupancy of such property. Nothing in this article shall be construed as limiting in any 
way the township in the lawful exercise of the police power.  

 

Sec. 70-31 Condition for Grant of Special Use Permit.  
 
In order to achieve a uniform, comprehensive, township-wide standard of service, the 
grant of any special use permit pursuant to this code shall be conditioned upon 
satisfactory completion of all necessary easements, licenses and arrangements to 
permit a connection in each dwelling unit to a cable system, open video system or other 
multichannel video provider using or occupying the public right of way duly franchised 
by the township board.  
 

Section 70-32. Hearing and Determination of Complaints; Procedure; Local Office. 
 

(a) Subject to federal law, the township board, or any person or department designated 
by it, shall, upon its own motion or upon complaint of any person or subscriber of a 
Grantee, have authority to hear and determine all complaints concerning the rates, 
charges, rules, regulations, practices, quality of service rendered or refused to be 
rendered, equipment furnished or refused to be furnished, or any other matter relating to 
the service or operation of the cable system or any person franchised under the terms 
of this article. 
 
(b) Upon the filing of any complaint against any Grantee pursuant to the preceding 
subsection, the township board shall give such person at least 20 days notice of the 
time and place of a hearing to be given such person upon the matters alleged in the 
complaint. Subject to federal law, the township board shall have the power to order such 
changes in the rates, charges, rules, regulations, services, equipment or other matters 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2003-12 
 

Ordinance No.: ________ 

Effective Date: _______, 2019 
 
At a meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 
Michigan, held at the Township Hall, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 on September __, 
2019, at __ p.m., Board Member ____________ moved and Board Member ____________ 
supported to introduce the following Ordinance for posting and publication prior to subsequent 
final adoption: 
 

An Ordinance to amend Article II of Chapter 70 of the Meridian Charter Township 

Code of Ordinances, as amended, adopted by the Charter of the Township of 

Meridian to address the allocation of franchise fees. 
 
Section 1. Amendment of Article II, Chapter 70, Section 70-28 Cable Communications 

Commission: The Township Code of Ordinances, Article II, Chapter 70, Section 70-28 Cable 
Communications Commission, shall be amended to provide as follows: 
 
Sec. 70-28 Cable Communications Commission 
 
(a) The Township shall establish a commission to be known as the Meridian Township Cable 
Communications Commission. The Township Board shall solicit from the public and from the 
franchisee names of persons interested in serving on the Commission but is not limited to names 
submitted. 
 
(b) The commission consists of five residents of the Township appointed by the Township Board. 
Each member shall serve a term of three years. Any vacancy in the office shall be filled by the 
Township Board for the remainder of the term. No employee or person with an ownership interest 
in a cable television franchise granted pursuant to this article shall be eligible for membership on 
the commission. Members of the commission may be compensated at a rate to be determined by 
the Township. Such rate of compensation, if any, may be established and may be revised, from 
time to time, by resolution of the Township Board. 
 
(c) Subject to federal and state law, the commission, in addition to the functions and 
responsibilities that the Township Board may delegate to it from time to time by resolution, shall 
have the following functions: 
 

(1) Discuss this article and franchises with prospective franchise applicants. 
 

(2) Advise the Township Board on applications for franchises. 
 



2 
 

(3) Advise the Township Board on matters that might constitute grounds for revocation of a 
franchise under this article. 
 

(4) Recommend to the Township Board, after hearing, resolutions of disputes between 
franchisees, between franchisee(s) and subscribers, between franchisee(s) and access users, 
and between access users. 
 

(5) Advise the Township Board on the regulation of rates under this article and make 
recommendations on requested changes in rates, services or classifications. 
 

(6) Recommend to the Township Board general policy relating to access channels with a view 
to maximizing the diversity of programs and services to subscribers. 
 

(7) Encourage the use of access channels by institutions, groups and individuals within the 
Township. The commission shall operate a government access channel and use franchise 
fees to administer this ordinance. Such funds shall be allocated based on the Township’s 
approved budget and budget/appropriations resolution. 
 

(8) Encourage and supervise interconnection of systems. 
 

(9) Review and report to the Township Board concerning records and reports that the 
franchisee is required to submit under this article. 
 

(10) Annually prepare a proposed budget and submit that proposed budget to the Township 
Board for its consideration and adoption. Prior to adopting a budget for the commission, 
the Township Board shall conduct a public hearing. The commission shall also prepare 
and submit to the Township Board an annual report including an accounting of budgeted 
fees received and distributed by the commission and a report of the type and amount of 
use of access channels. 

 
(11) Conduct evaluations of the system at least every three years and make recommendations 

to the Township Board regarding amendments to this article or to the franchise agreement. 
 
Section 2. Severability: The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If 
any clause, sentence, word, section, or provision is hereafter declared void or unenforceable for 
any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect the remainder of such Ordinance 
which shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. Repeal: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its publication. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
YEAS:           
NAYS:          



3 
 

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:         
 
ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 
 
____________________________________________ 
Ronald Styka, Meridian Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 
) ss  

COUNTY OF INGHAM  ) 
 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk for Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain 
proceedings taken by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at a meeting held on the __ day of 
_____________, 2019, and further certify that the proposed Ordinance was introduced at said 
meeting for posting, publication, and subsequent final adoption. 

 
________________________________________ 
Brett Dreyfus, Charter Township of Meridian Clerk 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING AND PUBLICATION 

 
I hereby certify that: 
 
1.  The above is a true copy of an Ordinance introduced for first reading and subsequent final 

adoption by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at a duly scheduled and noticed 
meeting of that Township Board held on September __, 2019, pursuant to the required 
statutory procedures. 

 
2. The complete text of the proposed Ordinance was posted at the Township Clerk’s office 

and on the Township’s website on ________________, 2019.  
 
3. The attached Notice of Proposed Ordinance Adoption was duly published in the 

______________ newspaper, a newspaper that circulates within Charter Township of 
Meridian, on _________________, 2019, within not more than seven (7) days after the 
posting. 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 



4 
 

Brett Dreyfus 
Charter Township of Meridian Clerk 
 



 

To:  Township Board 

 

From:  Mark Kieselbach, Director of Community Planning and Development 

 

  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  August 27, 2019 

 

Re: Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes) 

 

 

Giguere Homes has requested tentative preliminary plat (TPP) approval for Sanctuary 3, a 

subdivision consisting of seven lots on 7.36 acres located on the north side of Robins Way, east of 

Hulett Road.  The property is zoned RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) and is bound by 11 

conditions stemming from the rezoning of the parcel (REZ #18160) from RR (Rural Residential), 

approved by the Township Board on March 19, 2019.  The conditions are as follows: 

 

1. Limit current development of the site to a maximum of seven lots. 

2. Limit future development of the site to a maximum of seven lots. 

3. Establishment of a 50 foot wide natural preservation area along the south side of the 

parcel to be deeded to the homeowners association. 

4. Establishment of a five foot wide tree buffer on the north side of the 50 foot wide natural 

preservation area on the south side of the parcel, including deed restrictions on Lots 6 & 7 

requiring preservation of any trees within the buffer that have a trunk diameter greater 

than or equal to 12 inches. 

5. Establishment of an 80 foot natural preservation area along the west side of the parcel to 

be deeded to the homeowners association.  

6. Establishment of a 20 foot wide preservation area along the north side of the parcel, 

including deed restrictions on Lots 3, 4, & 5 requiring the preservation area remain 

undisturbed.  

7. Establishment of a 10 foot wide tree buffer area on the south side of the 20 foot wide 

preservation area along the north side of the parcel, including deed restriction on Lots 3, 4, 

& 5 requiring preservation of any trees within the buffer that have a trunk diameter 

greater than or equal to 12 inches. 

8. Establishment of deed restrictions for the homes in any new development on the property 

that meet or exceed those of the existing Sanctuary development. 

9. Reservation of one seat on the architectural review board established in the deed 

restrictions for an elected representative from the existing Sanctuary Homeowners 

Association. 

10. Limitation imposed on Giguere Homes to not seek a variance to encroach into the required 

wetland buffer on Lots 4, 5, and 6. 

11. Restriction of construction hours to only between 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., Monday-Saturday.    

 

The Planning Commission held the public hearing for Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 at its 

meeting on August 12, 2019 and voted to recommend approval on August 26, 2019, citing the 

following reasons for its decision: 

13.D 



 

Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes) 

Township Board (September 3, 2019) 

Page 2 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

• The proposed tentative preliminary plat meets the conditions established in Rezoning #18160. 

 

• The proposed tentative preliminary plat complies with the Township‘s Land Division 

Ordinance and with the Land Division Act of the State of Michigan (MCL 560.101 et seq., as 

amended). 

 

• All lots in the proposed tentative preliminary plat meet or exceed the minimum lot width and 

minimum lot area requirements of the RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) zoning district. 

 

• The proposed tentative preliminary plat will be adequately served by public water and sewer 

utilities. 

 

Staff memorandums outlining the rezoning request and minutes from the Planning Commission 

meetings at which the request was discussed are provided for the Board’s review.   

 

Township Board Options 

 

The Township Board shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed tentative 

preliminary plat within 90 days of the plat being filed with the Township.  The application was 

deemed complete on July 26, 2019 therefore the Board must take action no later than the October 

15, 2019 regular meeting.  A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 

 

Attachment 

1. Staff memorandums dated August 8, 2019 and August 23, 2019, with attachments. 

2. Resolution recommending approval dated August 26, 2019. 

3. Planning Commission minutes dated August 12, 2019 (public hearing) and August 26, 2019 

(decision). 

4. Communications received by the Planning Commission. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\PLATS (PLAT)\2019\Plat #19012 (Giguere) Sanctuary 3\Tentative Preliminary 

Plat\Staff Reports\TPP 19012.tb1.docx 



 

 

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

To:	 	 Planning	Commission	
	
From:	 	 Peter	Menser,	Principal	Planner	
	 	 	
	 	 Mackenzie	Dean,	Assistant	Planner		
	
Date:	 	 August	8,	2019	
	
Re:	 Tentative	 Preliminary	 Plat	 #19012	 (Giguere	 Homes),	 proposed	 seven	 lot	

subdivision	titled	Sanctuary	3	located	on	the	north	side	of	Robins	Way,	east	of	
Hulett	Road.	

	
	
Giguere	 Homes	 has	 requested	 tentative	 preliminary	 plat	 (TPP)	 approval	 for	 Sanctuary	 3,	 a	
subdivision	consisting	of	seven	lots	on	7.36	acres	located	on	the	north	side	of	Robins	Way,	east	of	
Hulett	 Road.	 	 The	 property	 is	 zoned	 RAAA	 (Single	 Family‐Low	 Density)	 and	 is	 bound	 by	 11	
conditions	stemming	from	the	rezoning	of	the	parcel	(REZ	#18160)	from	RR	(Rural	Residential),	
which	 was	 approved	 by	 the	 Township	 Board	 on	 March	 19,	 2019.	 	 The	 Planning	 Commission	
discussed	the	conceptual	preprelimininary	plat	at	its	meeting	on	June	24,	2019.			
	
The	Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	process	includes	a	public	hearing	and	a	recommendation	from	the	
Planning	 Commission.	 	 The	 Township	 Board	 has	 the	 final	 authority	 to	 approve,	 approve	 with	
conditions,	or	deny	the	tentative	preliminary	plat.		After	the	TPP,	the	next	steps	in	the	plat	process	
are	 final	preliminary	plat,	 and	 final	plat.	 	The	 final	preliminary	plat	 and	 final	plat	 are	 subject	 to	
only	Township	Board	approval.	
	
Master	Plan	
	
The	Future	Land	Use	Map	 from	the	2017	Master	Plan	designates	 the	subject	property	 in	 the	R2	
Residential	0.5	–	3.5	dwelling	units	per	acre	category.		The	proposed	seven	lot	subdivision	on	7.36	
acres	results	in	a	0.95	dwelling	unit	per	acre	density,	which	meets	the	Master	Plan	designation	for	
the	property.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	



 
Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Planning	Commission	(August	12,	2019)	
Page	2	

   

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

FUTURE	LAND	USE	MAP	
	

	
	
Zoning	
	
The	subject	site	is	located	in	the	RAAA	(Single	Family‐Low	Density)	zoning	district,	which	requires	a	
minimum	of	100	feet	of	lot	width	and	20,000	square	feet	of	lot	area.	 	The	lots	in	the	TPP	meet	the	
minimum	lot	width	and	lot	area	standards	for	the	RAAA	zoning	district.		The	front	yard	setback	for	
houses	would	 be	 25	 feet.	 	 Side	 yard	 setbacks	 in	RAAA	 zoning	 is	 10	 feet.	 	 Rear	 yard	 setbacks	 are	
established	based	on	the	depth	of	the	lot,	with	30	foot	rear	yard	setbacks	required	for	lots	150	feet	or	
less	 in	 depth	 and	 40	 foot	 setbacks	 for	 those	 lots	 greater	 than	 150	 feet	 in	 depth.	 	 Maximum	 lot	
coverage,	which	includes	both	principal	buildings	and	accessory	buildings	(detached	garages,	sheds)	
in	RAAA,	is	30	percent.		The	maximum	building	height	permitted	is	35	feet	or	2.5	stories.	
	
Rezoning	#18160	was	approved	with	11	conditions	that	run	with	the	land	and	will	impact	future	
development	of	the	property.		The	conditions	are	as	follows:	
	
1. Limit	current	development	of	the	site	to	a	maximum	of	seven	lots.	
2. Limit	future	development	of	the	site	to	a	maximum	of	seven	lots.	
3. Establishment	of	a	50	foot	wide	natural	preservation	area	along	the	south	side	of	the	parcel	to	

be	deeded	to	the	homeowners	association.	
	



 
Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Planning	Commission	(August	12,	2019)	
Page	3	

   

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

4. Establishment	 of	 a	 five	 foot	wide	 tree	 buffer	 on	 the	 north	 side	 of	 the	 50	 foot	wide	 natural	
preservation	 area	 on	 the	 south	 side	 of	 the	 parcel,	 including	 deed	 restrictions	 on	 Lots	 6	&	 7	
requiring	preservation	of	any	trees	within	the	buffer	that	have	a	trunk	diameter	greater	than	
or	equal	to	12	inches.	

5. Establishment	of	an	80	foot	natural	preservation	area	along	the	west	side	of	the	parcel	to	be	
deeded	to	the	homeowners	association.		

6. Establishment	of	a	20	foot	wide	preservation	area	along	the	north	side	of	the	parcel,	including	
deed	restrictions	on	Lots	3,	4,	&	5	requiring	the	preservation	area	remain	undisturbed.		

7. Establishment	 of	 a	 10	 foot	 wide	 tree	 buffer	 area	 on	 the	 south	 side	 of	 the	 20	 foot	 wide	
preservation	area	along	the	north	side	of	the	parcel,	including	deed	restriction	on	Lots	3,	4,	&	5	
requiring	preservation	of	any	trees	within	the	buffer	that	have	a	trunk	diameter	greater	than	
or	equal	to	12	inches.	

8. Establishment	of	deed	restrictions	for	the	homes	in	any	new	development	on	the	property	that	
meet	or	exceed	those	of	the	existing	Sanctuary	development.	

9. Reservation	of	one	seat	on	the	architectural	review	board	established	in	the	deed	restrictions	
for	an	elected	representative	from	the	existing	Sanctuary	Homeowners	Association.	

10. Limitation	 imposed	 on	Giguere	Homes	 to	 not	 seek	 a	 variance	 to	 encroach	 into	 the	 required	
wetland	buffer	on	Lots	4,	5,	and	6.	

11. Restriction	of	construction	hours	to	only	between	8	a.m.	to	6	p.m.,	Monday‐Saturday.	
	

ZONING	MAP	
	

	
	
	
	



 
Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Planning	Commission	(August	12,	2019)	
Page	4	

   

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

Physical	Features		
	
The	7.36	acre	site	 is	undeveloped,	with	single	family	homes	surrounding	the	property	on	all	sides.		
The	topography	of	the	site	slopes	from	876	feet	above	mean	sea	level	in	the	center	of	the	parcel	to	a	
low	point	of	865	feet	above	mean	sea	level	near	the	western	edge	of	the	site.		The	Flood	Insurance	
Rate	Map	(FIRM)	for	Meridian	Township	indicates	the	property	is	not	located	in	a	floodplain.		
	
The	Turtle	Crossing	Drain	is	located	on	the	southeastern	corner	of	the	property,	running	through	Lot	
1	 of	 the	 plat.	 	 The	 Township’s	water	 features	 setback	 ordinance	 (Sec.	 86‐471)	 requires	 a	 50‐foot	
setback	measured	from	the	top	of	the	bank	on	the	side	of	the	drain	for	any	structure	or	grading.			
	
Wetlands	
	
A	 wetland	 delineation	 report	 was	 submitted	 for	 the	 property	 (WDV	 #19‐05)	 which	 shows	 two	
wetlands	 regulated	 by	 both	 the	 Michigan	 Department	 of	 Environment,	 Great	 Lakes,	 and	 Energy	
(EGLE)	 and	 Meridian	 Township	 are	 present.	 	 The	 Township	 wetland	 consultant	 has	 verified	 the	
wetland	delineation.	 	The	submitted	site	plan	depicts	 the	wetlands	as	 identified	 in	 the	delineation	
and	verified	by	the	Township.	
	
The	Township’s	water	features	setback	ordinance	calls	for	a	40‐foot	setback	from	the	boundary	of	a	
wetland,	within	which	no	grading	or	construction	may	occur.		Since	the	wetland	areas	within	the	site	
are	each	part	of	larger	wetlands	exceeding	two	acres	in	size,	the	plat	correctly	shows	a	40‐foot	water	
features	setback	around	each	wetland.		The	setback	encroaches	onto	portions	of	Lots	1,	2,	4,	5,	and	6	
near	 the	rear	of	each	 lot.	 	The	buildable	areas	of	 each	 lot	 are	depicted	on	 the	submitted	plans.	 	A	
wetland	 use	 permit	 will	 be	 required	 for	 any	 work	 proposed	 in	 the	 wetlands	 or	 storm	 drainage	
directed	to	the	wetlands,	neither	of	which	are	proposed.	
	
Greenspace	Plan	
	
The	Township	Greenspace	Plan	shows	a	Priority	Conservation	Corridor	(PCC)	on	the	property.		A	
PCC	is	a	network	of	ecologically	significant	open	spaces.		
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



 
Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Planning	Commission	(August	12,	2019)	
Page	5	

   

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

GREENSPACE	PLAN	
	

	
	
Streets	&	Traffic	
	
The	site	fronts	on	Robins	Way.		Robins	Way	is	a	two‐lane	road	designated	as	a	Local	Street.		Traffic	
counts	are	not	available	 for	Robins	Way.	 	The	most	recent	(2017)	traffic	count	 information	from	
the	 Ingham	 County	 Road	 Department	 (ICRD)	 for	 Hulett	 Road,	 between	 Jolly	 Road	 and	 Bennett	
Road,	showed	a	total	of	3,552	vehicles	in	a	24	hour	period.			
	
During	the	2018	rezoning	(REZ	#18160),	data	from	the	Institute	of	Transportation	Engineers	(ITE)	
Trip	Generation	Manual	(8th	Edition)	was	utilized	to	estimate	future	traffic	volumes,	shown	below:	
	

	 RAAA	zoning	(7	lots)	

	
Peak	Hour	trips	

	

6.16	(a.m.)	
8.16	(p.m.)	

Weekday	trips	 76.56	
	
	
	
	



 
Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Planning	Commission	(August	12,	2019)	
Page	6	

   

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

A	 traffic	assessment	or	study	 is	required	 for	a	 tentative	preliminary	plat	 if	 the	project	generates	
between	50	and	99	directional	trips	during	a	morning	or	afternoon	peak	hour	(assessment)	or	if	
the	project	generates	100	or	more	directional	trips	during	a	peak	hour	or	over	750	trips	per	day	
(study).		In	this	case	a	traffic	assessment	is	not	required.	
	
Utilities	
	
The	applicant	intends	to	extend	public	water	and	sewer	to	the	subdivision	and	will	work	with	the	
Township	 Engineering	 Department	 on	 the	 extension	 of	 public	 utilities	 to	 the	 site.	 	 Design	 and	
construction	 of	 public	water	 and	 sewer	 services	must	 be	 consistent	with	 Department	 of	 Public	
Works	and	Engineering	standards.	
	
While	a	preliminary	storm	sewer	plan	is	not	required	at	the	TPP	stage,	the	system	may	not	drain	
into	 regulated	wetlands	without	 the	 appropriate	 permits,	 and	 the	 runoff	 volumes	 from	 the	 site	
may	not	exceed	predevelopment	levels.		The	future	storm	drainage	system	must	be	reviewed	and	
approved	 by	 the	 Director	 of	 Public	 Works	 and	 Engineering	 and	 the	 Ingham	 County	 Drain	
Commissioner.	
	
Staff	Analysis	
	
The	requirements	of	the	RAAA	Zoning	District,	the	Land	Division	Ordinance,	and	other	Township	
regulations	 are	 the	 standards	 to	 consider	when	 reviewing	 the	 plat.	 	 The	 design	 standards	 from	
Chapter	62	(Land	Division)	found	in	Section	62‐60	of	the	Code	of	Ordinances	will	be	used	to	assess	
the	 proposed	 platted	 subdivision	 at	 every	 step	 of	 review	 in	 the	 platting	 process.	 	 The	 design	
standards	 provide	 detailed	 requirements	 related	 to	 lot	 dimensions,	 common	 areas,	 streets,	
sidewalks,	 landscaping,	 easements,	 and	 utilities.	 	 Review	 by	 staff	 indicates	 the	 lots	 in	 the	 plat	
generally	conform	to	the	size	and	arrangement	standards	identified	in	the	land	division	ordinance.		
Further,	 the	 plat	 appears	 to	meet	 the	 conditions	 established	 in	Rezoning	#18160	 related	 to	 the	
maximum	number	of	lots	and	areas	identified	for	preservation.			
	
The	TPP	stage	does	not	 grant	 the	developer	 any	 rights	or	assurances	 to	begin	work	on	 the	 site.		
TPP	 approval	 confers	 upon	 the	 applicant	 for	 a	 period	 of	 one	 year	 approval	 of	 lot	 sizes,	 lot	
orientation,	street	layout,	and	application	of	the	subdivision	regulations	which	are	in	effect	at	the	
time	of	the	approval.	 	Once	the	applicant	has	received	TPP	approval	from	the	Township,	the	plat	
will	 be	 submitted,	 as	 necessary,	 to	 other	 agencies,	 including	 the	 Ingham	 County	 Drain	
Commissioner,	 Ingham	 County	 Road	 Department,	 Ingham	 County	 Health	 Department,	 Michigan	
Department	of	Environment,	Great	Lakes,	and	Energy	(EGLE),	Ingham	County	Plat	Board,	and	Tri‐
County	 Regional	 Planning	 Commission	 for	 consideration.	 	 Once	 the	 applicant	 has	 received	
approval	from	these	agencies,	the	plat	will	be	submitted	to	the	Township	for	Final	Preliminary	Plat	
approval.	
	
	
	
	
	
	



 
Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Planning	Commission	(August	12,	2019)	
Page	7	

   

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

Planning	Commission	Options	
	
The	Planning	Commission	may	recommend	approval,	approval	with	conditions,	or	disapproval	of	
the	tentative	preliminary	plat	(TPP)	within	60‐days	of	the	plat	being	filed	with	the	Township.		The	
application	was	deemed	complete	on	July	26,	2019	therefore	the	Planning	Commission	must	make	
its	recommendation	no	 later	than	the	September	23,	2019	regular	meeting.	 	A	resolution	will	be	
provided	for	the	Commission’s	consideration	at	a	future	meeting.			
	
Attachments	
1. Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	Application.	
2. Letter	from	Derek	Lisabeth	dated	July	15,	2019.	
3. Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	prepared	by	Enger	Surveying	and	Engineering	dated	July	12,	2019.	
4. Wetland	verification	letter	report	prepared	by	FTC&H	dated	May	23,	2019.	
	
	
G:\Community	Planning	&	Development\Planning\PLATS	(PLAT)\2019\Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	(Giguere)	Sanctuary	3	











 
 
 

 

May 23, 2019 
Project No. 190708 
 
 
Mr. Peter Menser 
Charter Township of Meridian 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864-1198 
 
Re:  Wetland Boundary Verification – WDV 19-05 

3760 Hulett Road, Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
 
Dear Peter: 

On May 14, 2019, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTCH) staff conducted a field investigation and 
verified wetland boundaries on an approximately 7.36-acre site located at 3760 Hulett Road (the Site). The Site 
is in Section 32 of Meridian Township (Town 4 North, Range 1 West).  

Site wetlands were delineated by Marx Wetlands (Marx), as described in its October 6, 2017, report entitled 
Wetland Determination Report: Giguere Homes Site, Section 32, Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
(Report). Giguere Homes intends to construct seven single-family residences and Junco Drive at the Site.  

Site Investigation 

FTCH staff met Ms. Bryana Guevara of Marx at the site on May 14th to inspect the wetland boundary. Site 
conditions were generally consistent as described in the Report. Marx delineated two wetlands, which are 
discussed below. 

Wetland A: This emergent wetland is located along a drainageway at the southeast corner of the Site. The creek 
flows through a culvert under Robins Way Drive to the northeast. The creek appears to drain into wetland 
contiguous with the Smith Drain. Ms. Guevara indicated wetland boundary flags were originally placed on both 
sides of the creek, labelled A1 through A5 (with duplicate flags on each side of the creek). Flags labelled A4 were 
observed and were appropriately placed. The remaining flags were no longer present. We reflagged the wetland 
boundary with wetland flags labelled A2 and A3. 

Wetland B: Wetland B is a large wetland complex with its eastern edge at the western end of the Site. 
Wetland B corresponds to Township Wetland 32-36, an approximately 31.67-acre emergent, scrub/shrub, 
forested and open water wetland. Wetland boundary flags B1 through B25 were evaluated on the Site. Most of 
the wetland flags were observed. Some of the wetland flags were placed too high in the landscape, as verified by 
the presence of spring ephemeral wildflowers that confirmed the presence of mesic forest. The following 
adjustments to the wetland boundary were made:  

• Wetland flag B0 was placed near the northern property boundary. This is a new wetland flag. 
• Flag B1 was moved north, closer to open water. 
• Flags B2 through B5 were removed. 
• New flag B2 was placed to the north of the original flag B2 location. It connects to new flag B1 and existing 

flag B8. Flags B6 through B7 were not observed. 
• Flag B12 was moved approximately 10 feet northwest. 
• Flag B13 was removed. 
• Flag B14 was moved northwest (it connects to new flag B12 and original flag B15). 
• Flag B20 was moved closer to open water. 
• All other wetland flags were appropriately placed (i.e. flags B8 through B11, B15 through B19, and B21 

through B25). 



Mr. Peter Menser – Wetland Verification – WDV 19-05 
Page 2 
May 23, 2019 
 
 

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2019\190708\WORK\CORR\WETLAND VERIFICATION LETTER.DOCX 
 

Regulatory Review 

The regulatory review was based upon the Report and site observations. Section 22-116 of the Township’s 
Wetland Protection Ordinance defines “protected wetlands” as wetlands greater than two acres in size and 
wetlands, regardless of size, which are contiguous (i.e. within 500 feet of) to any inland lake, stream, river, or 
pond, whether partially or entirely within the project site. Wetland A is contiguous with a stream. Wetland B is 
greater than two-acres in size and is also contiguous with a pond. Therefore, both wetlands are regulated by the 
Township. 

A Wetland Use Permit (WUP) is required from the Township for any of the following activities: 

• Placing fill or permitting the placement of fill in regulated wetland. 
• Dredging, removing, or permitting the removal of soil or minerals from regulated wetland. 
• Constructing, operating, or maintaining any use or development in regulated wetland. 
• Draining surface water from regulated wetland. 

In addition, the Township requires that all structures and grading activities during site development shall be set 
back 40 feet from the delineated wetland boundary and a natural vegetation strip shall be maintained within 
20 feet of the wetland boundary.  

FTCH recommends the wetland boundaries and buffers on the Site survey be updated as described in this letter. 
If you have any questions regarding this letter or any other wetland-related issues, please contact me at 
616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com. 

Sincerely, 

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC. 
 
 
 
Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS 
 
pmb 
By email 
cc: Mr. Mark Kieselbach – Charter Township of Meridian 

mailto:ehtripp@ftch.com


 

 

Providing	a	safe	and	welcoming,	sustainable,	prime	community.	

To:	 	 Planning	Commission	
	
From:	 	 Peter	Menser,	Principal	Planner	
	
Date:	 	 August	23,	2019	
	
Re:	 Tentative	 Preliminary	 Plat	 #19012	 (Giguere	 Homes),	 proposed	 seven	 lot	

subdivision	titled	Sanctuary	3	located	on	the	north	side	of	Robins	Way,	east	of	
Hulett	Road.	

	
	
The	 Planning	 Commission	 held	 the	 public	 hearing	 for	 Tentative	 Preliminary	 Plat	 #19012	 at	 its	
meeting	 on	 August	 12,	 2019.	 	 At	 the	 meeting	 the	 Planning	 Commission	 agreed	 to	 consider	 a	
resolution	to	recommend	approval	of	the	tentative	preliminary	plat	at	its	next	meeting	on	August	
26,	2019.		The	next	step	in	the	review	process	is	consideration	by	the	Township	Board.		
	
Planning	Commission	Options	
	
The	Planning	Commission	may	recommend	approval,	approval	with	conditions,	or	disapproval	of	
the	 tentative	 preliminary	 plat	 within	 60	 days	 of	 the	 plat	 being	 filed	 with	 the	 Township.	 	 The	
application	was	deemed	complete	on	July	26,	2019	therefore	the	Planning	Commission	must	make	
its	 recommendation	 no	 later	 than	 the	 September	 23,	 2019	 regular	 meeting.	 	 A	 resolution	 to	
recommend	approval	of	the	tentative	preliminary	plat	with	conditions	is	provided.	
	
 Motion	 to	adopt	 the	 resolution	 recommending	approval	of	Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	

#19012	with	conditions.	
	
Attachment	
1. Resolution	to	recommend	approval.	
	
	
G:\Community	 Planning	 &	 Development\Planning\PLATS	 (PLAT)\2019\Plat	 #19012	 (Giguere)	 Sanctuary	 3\Tentative	 Preliminary	
Plat\Staff	Reports\TPP	19012.pc2.docx	



RESOLUTION	TO	APPROVE	 Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	#19012	
	 (Giguere	Homes)	
	
	
	 At	 a	 regular	 meeting	 of	 the	 Planning	 Commission	 of	 the	 Charter	 Township	 of	 Meridian,	
Ingham	County,	Michigan,	held	at	 the	Meridian	Municipal	Building,	 in	 said	Township	on	 the	26th	
day	of	August,	2019,	at	7:00	p.m.,	Local	Time.	
	
PRESENT:	 _________________________________________________________________																																																													
	
	 	 _________________________________________________________________																																																												
	
ABSENT:	 _________________________________________________________________																																																														
	
	 The	 following	 resolution	 was	 offered	 by	 _____________________	 and	 supported	 by	
_________________________.	
	

WHEREAS,	 Giguere	Homes	 has	 requested	 tentative	 preliminary	plat	 approval	 for	 a	 single	
family	 subdivision	 identified	as	Sanctuary	3	 consisting	of	 seven	 lots	on	7.36	acres	 located	on	 the	
north	side	of	Robins	Way,	east	of	Hulett	Road;	and	
	

WHEREAS,	the	Planning	Commission	held	the	public	hearing	for	Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	
#19012	at	its	meeting	on	August	12,	2019	and	has	reviewed	the	staff	material	forwarded	under	a	
cover	memorandum	dated	August	8,	2019;	and		
	
	 WHEREAS,	 the	 proposed	 tentative	 preliminary	 plat	 meets	 the	 conditions	 established	 in	
Rezoning	#18160;	and	
	

WHEREAS,	 the	 proposed	 tentative	 preliminary	 plat	 complies	 with	 the	 Township‘s	 Land	
Division	Ordinance	and	with	the	Land	Division	Act	of	the	State	of	Michigan	(MCL	560.101	et	seq.,	as	
amended);	and	
	

WHEREAS,	all	lots	in	the	proposed	tentative	preliminary	plat	meet	or	exceed	the	minimum	
lot	 width	 and	minimum	 lot	 area	 requirements	 of	 the	 RAAA	 (Single	 Family‐Low	 Density)	 zoning	
district;	and	
	

WHEREAS,	 the	 proposed	 tentative	 preliminary	 plat	 will	 be	 adequately	 served	 by	 public	
water	and	sewer	utilities;	and	
	

NOW	 THEREFORE,	 BE	 IT	 RESOLVED	 THE	 PLANNING	 COMMISSION	 OF	 THE	 CHARTER	
TOWNSHIP	 OF	 MERIDIAN	 hereby	 recommends	 approval	 of	 Tentative	 Preliminary	 Plat	 #19012,	
subject	to	the	following	conditions:	
	
1. Approval	is	recommended	based	on	the	revised	Tentative	Preliminary	Plat	prepared	by	Enger	

Surveying	and	Engineering	dated	July	12,	2019	and	received	by	the	Township	on	July	15,	2019.	
	

2. Approval	is	recommended	subject	to	the	11	conditions	established	in	Rezoning	#18160.	
	
3. The	applicant	shall	obtain	all	necessary	permits	and	approvals	from	the	Ingham	County	Drain	

Commissioner,	Ingham	County	Road	Department,	Michigan	Department	of	Environment,	Great	
Lakes,	and	Energy	(EGLE),	Ingham	County	Health	Department,	and	the	Township.		Copies	of	all	
permits	and	approval	letters	shall	be	submitted	to	the	Department	of	Community	Planning	and	
Development.	



Resolution	to	Recommend	Approval	
TPP	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Page	2	
 
4. Final	 utility	 plans	 shall	 be	 subject	 to	 the	 approval	 of	 the	 Director	 of	 Public	 Works	 and	

Engineering	 and	 shall	 be	 completed	 in	 accordance	 with	 Township	 Engineering	 Design	 and	
Construction	Standards.	
	

5. Storm	sewer	leads	shall	be	provided	to	each	lot	in	the	subdivision.	The	final	location	of	the	leads	
shall	be	subject	to	the	approval	of	the	Director	of	Public	Works	and	Engineering.		All	residences	
constructed	in	the	subdivision	shall	be	connected	to	the	leads.	
	

6. An	overall	grading	plan	 for	the	subdivision	shall	be	required	with	detailed	construction	plans	
prior	to	issuance	of	any	building	permits.	
	

7. No	 grading,	 tree	 removal,	 or	 subdivision	 improvements	 shall	 occur	 on	 the	 site	 until	 Final	
Preliminary	Plat	 approval	 is	 granted	by	 the	Township	Board,	 a	 pre‐construction	meeting	has	
been	held,	and	the	Engineering	Department	has	issued	authorization	to	proceed.	
	

8. Prior	 to	 any	 construction	 or	 grading	 on	 the	 site	 the	 applicant	 shall	 install	 silt	 fencing	 at	 the	
upland	 edge	 of	water	 feature	 setbacks.	 	 The	 silt	 fencing	 shall	 be	 removed	 after	 construction	
once	the	area	is	stabilized	and	vegetation	has	been	established.	

	
9. The	 property	 owner	 shall	 establish	 and	 record	 easements	 for	 the	 five	 foot	 and	 10	 foot	 tree	

buffer	areas	identified	on	the	tentative	preliminary	plat.	
	

10. Trees	 identified	 for	 protection	 during	 construction	 and	 the	 means	 of	 protection	 shall	 be	
identified	prior	to	approval	of	the	final	preliminary	plat.	
	

11. Natural	Preservation	Area	Park	Number	1	and	Number	2	shall	be	identified	as	private	parks.	
	

12. The	property	owner	shall	submit	evidence	that	the	20	foot	deed	restricted	preservation	area	on	
the	north	side	of	the	tentative	preliminary	plat	has	been	added	and	recorded	to	the	deeds	for	
Lots	3,	4,	and	5	prior	to	the	sale	of	lots.	
	

13. Five	foot	wide	concrete	sidewalks	shall	be	constructed	around	the	proposed	Junco	Drive	cul‐de‐
sac.	The	final	location	of	the	sidewalk	shall	be	subject	to	the	approval	of	the	Director	of	Public	
Works	 and	Engineering.	 	 The	design	 and	 construction	of	 the	 sidewalk	 shall	 be	 in	 accordance	
with	Township	Engineering	Design	and	Construction	Standards.	
	

14. The	natural	 vegetation	 strip	 associated	with	wetlands	and	open	 county	drain	 shall	 be	 clearly	
identified	 with	 permanent	 markers.	 	 The	 size,	 number,	 location,	 and	 the	 language	 on	 the	
markers	 shall	 be	 subject	 to	 the	 approval	 of	 the	 Director	 of	 Community	 Planning	 and	
Development.	
	

15. Interior	 street	 trees	 shall	 be	 required	 along	 the	 proposed	 Junco	 Drive	 cul‐de‐sac	 within	 the	
subdivision.		Species	and	location	of	the	trees	shall	be	subject	to	the	approval	of	the	Director	of	
Community	Planning	and	Development	and	the	Ingham	County	Road	Department.	
	

16. Any	 wellhead(s)	 located	 on	 the	 site	 shall	 be	 properly	 closed	 and	 abandoned	 per	 the	
requirements	of	the	Ingham	County	Health	Department	and	the	Township,	prior	to	the	issuance	
of	any	permit	for	construction	activity,	including	grading	permits.	

	
	
	



Resolution	to	Recommend	Approval	
TPP	#19012	(Giguere	Homes)	
Page	3	
 
17. If	a	development	entry	sign	is	planned	for	the	subdivision,	a	detailed	drawing	to	scale	shall	be	

provided	to	the	Department	of	Community	Planning	and	Development	for	review	and	approval	
prior	 to	 final	 plat	 submittal	 showing	 the	 location	 and	 dimensions	 of	 the	 sign,	 as	 well	 as	
depicting	the	easement	location	for	the	sign.	
	

18. The	proposed	Junco	Drive	cul‐de‐sac	shall	be	constructed	to	Ingham	County	Road	Department	
standards.	
	

ADOPTED:	 YEAS:	 _______________________________________________________________________		
	
	 	 	 _______________________________________________________________________	
	 	 	 																																																																																										
	 	 NAYS:	 _______________________________________________________________________																											
	
STATE	OF	MICHIGAN	 )	
	 	 	 	 )	ss	
COUNTY	OF	INGHAM	 )	
	
	
	 I,	 the	undersigned,	 the	duly	qualified	and	acting	Chair	of	 the	Planning	Commission	of	 the	
Charter	Township	Meridian,	Ingham	County,	Michigan,	DO	HEREBY	CERTIFY	that	the	foregoing	is	a	
true	and	a	complete	copy	of	a	resolution	adopted	at	a	regular	meeting	of	the	Planning	Commission	
on	the	26th	day	of	August,	2019.	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 ______________________________			
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 John	Scott‐Craig	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Planning	Commission	Chair	
	
	
G:\Community	 Planning	 &	 Development\Planning\PLATS	 (PLAT)\2019\Plat	 #19012	 (Giguere)	 Sanctuary	 3\Tentative	 Preliminary	
Plat\Staff	Reports\TPP	19012	PC	resolution	to	approve.docx	



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 

 (Giguere Homes) 

 

 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 

day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

 

PRESENT: Chair Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair Lane, Commissioners Trezise, Cordill, Shrewsbury, 

Hendrickson, and Richards 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Premoe 

 

 The following resolution was offered by Vice-Chair Lane and supported by Commissioner 

Shrewsbury. 

 

WHEREAS, Giguere Homes has requested tentative preliminary plat approval for a single 

family subdivision identified as Sanctuary 3 consisting of seven lots on 7.36 acres located on the 

north side of Robins Way, east of Hulett Road; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held the public hearing for Tentative Preliminary Plat 

#19012 at its meeting on August 12, 2019 and has reviewed the staff material forwarded under a 

cover memorandum dated August 8, 2019; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed tentative preliminary plat meets the conditions established in 

Rezoning #18160; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed tentative preliminary plat complies with the Township‘s Land 

Division Ordinance and with the Land Division Act of the State of Michigan (MCL 560.101 et seq., as 

amended); and 

 

WHEREAS, all lots in the proposed tentative preliminary plat meet or exceed the minimum 

lot width and minimum lot area requirements of the RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) zoning 

district; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed tentative preliminary plat will be adequately served by public 

water and sewer utilities; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012, 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Approval is recommended based on the revised Tentative Preliminary Plat prepared by Enger 

Surveying and Engineering dated July 12, 2019 and received by the Township on July 15, 2019. 

 

2. Approval is recommended subject to the 11 conditions established in Rezoning #18160. 

 

3. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and approvals from the Ingham County Drain 

Commissioner, Ingham County Road Department, Michigan Department of Environment, Great 

Lakes, and Energy (EGLE), Ingham County Health Department, and the Township.  Copies of all 

permits and approval letters shall be submitted to the Department of Community Planning and 

Development. 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 

TPP #19012 (Giguere Homes) 

Page 2 
 
4. Final utility plans shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and 

Engineering and shall be completed in accordance with Township Engineering Design and 

Construction Standards. 

 

5. Storm sewer leads shall be provided to each lot in the subdivision. The final location of the leads 

shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and Engineering.  All residences 

constructed in the subdivision shall be connected to the leads. 

 

6. An overall grading plan for the subdivision shall be required with detailed construction plans 

prior to issuance of any building permits. 

 

7. No grading, tree removal, or subdivision improvements shall occur on the site until Final 

Preliminary Plat approval is granted by the Township Board, a pre-construction meeting has 

been held, and the Engineering Department has issued authorization to proceed. 

 

8. Prior to any construction or grading on the site the applicant shall install silt fencing at the 

upland edge of water feature setbacks.  The silt fencing shall be removed after construction 

once the area is stabilized and vegetation has been established. 

 

9. The property owner shall establish and record easements for the five foot and 10 foot tree 

buffer areas identified on the tentative preliminary plat. 

 

10. Trees identified for protection during construction and the means of protection shall be 

identified prior to approval of the final preliminary plat. 

 

11. Natural Preservation Area Park Number 1 and Number 2 shall be identified as private parks. 

 

12. The property owner shall submit evidence that the 20 foot deed restricted preservation area on 

the north side of the tentative preliminary plat has been added and recorded to the deeds for 

Lots 3, 4, and 5 prior to the sale of lots. 

 

13. Five foot wide concrete sidewalks shall be constructed around the proposed Junco Drive cul-de-

sac. The final location of the sidewalk shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public 

Works and Engineering.  The design and construction of the sidewalk shall be in accordance 

with Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards. 

 

14. The natural vegetation strip associated with wetlands and open county drain shall be clearly 

identified with permanent markers.  The size, number, location, and the language on the 

markers shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and 

Development. 

 

15. Interior street trees shall be required along the proposed Junco Drive cul-de-sac within the 

subdivision.  Species and location of the trees shall be subject to the approval of the Director of 

Community Planning and Development and the Ingham County Road Department. 

 

16. Any wellhead(s) located on the site shall be properly closed and abandoned per the 

requirements of the Ingham County Health Department and the Township, prior to the issuance 

of any permit for construction activity, including grading permits. 

 

 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 

TPP #19012 (Giguere Homes) 

Page 3 
 
17. If a development entry sign is planned for the subdivision, a detailed drawing to scale shall be 

provided to the Department of Community Planning and Development for review and approval 

prior to final plat submittal showing the location and dimensions of the sign, as well as 

depicting the easement location for the sign. 

 

18. The proposed Junco Drive cul-de-sac shall be constructed to Ingham County Road Department 

standards. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS: Chair Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair Lane, Commissioners Trezise, Cordill,   

   Shrewsbury, Hendrickson, and Richards 

                                                                                             

  NAYS: None                           

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 

on the 26th day of August, 2019. 

 

 

       ______________________________   

       John Scott-Craig 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\PLATS (PLAT)\2019\Plat #19012 (Giguere) Sanctuary 3\Tentative Preliminary 

Plat\Staff Reports\TPP 19012 PC resolution to approve.docx 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes  

August 12, 2019 

Page 4 
 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

• Focus on the approval of the minor amendment and not a reconsideration of the original Special 

Use Permit and if it is complying with its terms and conditions brought up by the appellant 

during his presentation to the Planning Commission. 

• The Special Use Permit goes with the land and the use is open space as proposed at this time is 

to remain green grass area. 

• Adding property is a minor amendment under the ordinance and anything else would be 

another amendment. 

 

A straw poll indicated the Planning Commission would be in favor of affirming the decision of the 

Director of Community Planning and Development without modifications its next meeting. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 9:28 p.m. 

 

The Planning Commission took a 5 minute recess. 

 

D. Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes), proposed seven lot subdivision titled Sanctuary 

3 located on the north side of Robins Way, east of Hulett Road. 

 

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 8:34 P.M. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a review of the proposal. 

 

The applicant, Jim Giguere, 6253 Fenwick Court, said he was available to answer questions. 

 

The Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend approval of the plat at its 

next meeting. 

 

Public Comment:  None 

 

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 9:39 p.m. 

 

7.  Unfinished Business  

 

A. Special Use Permit #19111 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), develop 49 

unit apartment complex with four buildings on north side of Sirhal Drive, west of Greencliff 

Drive. 

 

B. Special Use Permit #19121 (Woodward Limited Dividend Housing Association), construct 

group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size on north side of Sirhal Drive, west 

of Greencliff Drive. 

 

Principal Planner Menser stated both items would run concurrently and provided an update.  He 

also noted a revised site plan was received late in the week so additional comments will be 

available at the next Planning Commission meeting on August 26, 2019. 

 

Applicant Frank Fugate, 500 South Front Street Columbus, Ohio, with Woda Cooper Company 

provided additional information on the updated site plan prepared by Monument Engineering 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes  

August 26, 2019 

Page 4 
 

F. Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes), proposed seven lot subdivision titled Sanctuary 

3 located on the north side of Robins Way, east of Hulett Road. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Lane to recommend approval of Tentative Preliminary Plat #19012 with 

conditions.  

Supported by Commissioner Shrewsbury. 

 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

YEAS: Commissioners Lane, Shrewsbury, Hendrickson, Richards, Cordill, Trezise and Scott-Craig. 

NAYS: None 

MOTION CARRIED:  7-0 

 

8. Other Business  

 

A. Form based code initiative. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided additional information on the Form based code initiative. He 

noted a revised version of the code was included in the packet and is the result of recent meetings 

with the Director of Planning and Development and consultant team.   

 

Planning Commission Comments: 

• Concern that the regulating plan is outdated as the railroad is not shown and the river is not 

listed.  Good maps are needed with detail.  

• Idea to create a sub-committee with members from the Planning Commission and the Township 

Board to meet and discuss how to best move forward.  Principal Planner Menser offered to 

speak the Township Manager and Director of Planning and Development to discuss options.  

 

9. Reports and Announcements 

 

A. Township Board updates. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided an update on recent Township Board activities, noting the 

scheduled Township Board Meeting on August 20, 2019 was cancelled and the upcoming Township 

Board Meeting on September 3, 2019 will include the 2020 Budget.  

 

10.  Project Updates 

 

A. New Applications - None 

B. Site Plans Received - None 

C. Site Plans Approved - None 

     

11.  Public Remarks  

 

A. Appellant Sergey Barysheva, 2767 Mount Hope Road, expressed concern with Special Use 

Permit #19-74011. 

 

Principal Planner Menser suggested Mr. Barysheva contact the Planning and Development 

Department to schedule a meeting and discuss his concerns. 



1

Peter Menser

From: Lick, Brian P. <blick@clarkhill.com>
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2019 2:14 PM
To: Planning Commision (DG)
Cc: Peter Menser; ninetysixdegrees@aol.com; karthikeyan_narayanan@yahoo.com; Mark 

Kieselbach
Subject: Preliminary Plat # 19012 (Giguere Homes)

Good Afternoon, 
I am writing to oppose the approval of the Preliminary Plat # 19012 submitted by Giguere Homes because it does not 
comply with the conditions of rezoning as proposed by Mr. Giguere, agreed to by the concerned property owners, and 
approved by the Township. Specifically, as Suzanne Flowers (2601 Elderberry) and I discussed with Peter Menser and 
Mark Kieselbach on June 20, 2019, the Preliminary Plat # 19012 does not comply with conditions 6 & 7 of the approved 
rezoning, which require:   
 

6.            Establishment of a 20 foot wide preservation area along the north side of the parcel, including deed 
restrictions on Lots 3, 4, & 5 requiring the preservation area remain undisturbed. 
7.            Establishment of a 10 foot wide tree buffer area on the south side of the 20 foot wide preservation area 
along the north side of the parcel, including deed restriction on Lots 3, 4, & 5 requiring preservation of any trees 
within the buffer that have a trunk diameter greater than or equal to 12 inches. 

 
The rezoning conditions were the result of the October 10, 2018 meeting facilitated by the Township between 
concerned members of the community and Giguere Homes.  The 7.36 acre parcel is entirely wooded with mature 
trees.  Conditions 6 & 7 were proposed to address specific concerns regarding the preservation of the mature trees on 
the north side of the parcel.  In response to the concerns of community members and neighboring parcel owners 
regarding tree and habitat preservation, Mr. Giguere offered conditions 6 & 7 to establish a total 30 foot wide 
preservation area to preserve the existing mature trees on the north side of the parcel.  The intended purpose of 
conditions 6 & 7, as offered by Giguere Homes, and as understood and accepted by the concerned citizens, and as 
approved by the Township, was to protect a 30 foot wide area of the mature trees on the north side of the wooded 
parcel.    
 
Between the time Giguere Homes initially submitted its rezoning application in January 2018, to the time Giguire Homes 
submitted the Pre‐Preliminary Plat Application in April 2019, the parcel survey flags always followed the tree 
line.  Because the survey flags followed the tree line on the north side of the parcel, and based on Mr. Giguere’s 
representations that conditions 6 & 7 would address concerns regarding the preservation of the mature trees on the 
north side of the parcel, the community and the township were led to believe that conditions 6 & 7 would provide a 30 
feet wide tree buffer on the north side of the parcel to protect the existing mature trees.   
 
However, as depicted on the Preliminary Plat, and as observable in the field, neither the 20 foot wide preservation area, 
nor the 10 foot wide tree buffer area, actually protect any of the mature trees or wooded area.  The tree line depicted 
on the Preliminary Plat is well outside of the 20 foot wide preservation area and 10 foot wide tree buffer area.  In fact, as 
drawn, not a single mature tree exists within either the 20 foot wide preservation area, or the 10 foot wide tree buffer 
area. As drawn on the Preliminary Plat, the 20 foot wide preservation area and 10 foot wide tree buffer area only extend 
across grasslands, wetlands, and open water.  Because the Preliminary Plat does not protect nor preserve any of the 
mature trees on the north side of the wooded parcel as promised, it does not comply with conditions 6 & 7 of the 
rezoning, and should not be recommended for approval by the Planning Commission.   
 
I respectfully request that the Planning Commission recommend that the Preliminary Plat # 19012, as submitted by 
Giguere Homes, be denied until resubmitted/redrafted to comply with rezoning conditions 6 & 7, including preservation 



2

areas on the north side of the parcel which protects at least a 30 foot wide area of the existing mature trees on the 
wooded parcel.   

Thank you for your time and consideration.  
Sincerely, 

Brian P. Lick 
2613 Elderberry Drive 
Okemos, MI 48864 
(517) 881-2468

This email message and any attachments are confidential and may be privileged. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please notify us immediately by reply email and destroy all copies of this message and any 
attachments. Please do not copy, forward, or disclose the contents to any other person. Thank you.  


	Agenda
	9A Communications
	9B Minutes
	9C Bills
	9D Treasurer's Quarterly Report
	11A 13B 2020 Township Budget
	12A Amendment to Chapter 66 Tax Exemption – PILOT Introduction 
	12B Bond Authorizing Resolution
	13A Special Use Permit 19121 Woodward Way
	13C Franchise and PEG Fees
	13D Tentative Preliminary Plat 19012



